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Chairman Statement

FEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is my
pleasure to present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2017.

A YEAR IN REVIEW

UMP is one of the leading corporate healthcare solution providers
in Hong Kong serving more than 1.4 million medical and dental
patient visits annually. Our business model of working with
corporates and insurance companies to tailor-made comprehensive
healthcare service offerings to their staff and policyholders allows
us to have a sticky, steady and growing members and patient base
at the primary care entry level, and thereafter allowing UMP to
deliver additional add-on services to customers including specialist
services, secondary dental services and other auxiliary services.

UMP’s existing business has continued to perform well in FY2017.
In FY2017, as UMP continues to gain further brand recognition for
its services from its corporate customers and patients, the total
number of patient visits has continued to increase as compared to
the same period in FY2016. In addition, UMP has successfully
opened its new medical imaging and day surgery centre in
Kowloon. We have also been investing in different specialties and is
currently reviewing potential acquisition opportunities to
strengthen UMP’s presence, service offerings and network locations
in Hong Kong and Macau.

FY2017 marks another important milestone for us following the
completion of our IPO in November 2015. Since our IPO, we have
been working hard to expand our presence in China and within a
short period of time, UMP now has over 8 service locations covering
both Beijing and Shanghai. During this financial year, UMP has also
undergone strategic group restructurings, laying the foundations
for fast expansion of its clinic network and services in the PRC.

During FY2017, UMP has partnered up with Healthcare Ventures (a
substantial shareholder of the Company) and NWS to pursue an
asset-light operating model. Under such asset-light operating
model, HAML (a 50:50 joint venture owned by Healthcare Ventures
and NWS Subsidiary as of 30 June 2017) takes the lead to invest,
establish and acquire clinics in the PRC and has appointed UMP as
the manager to manage such clinics. Subject to meeting certain
requirements, we will be receiving management fees for managing
such clinics.
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Chairman Statement

FEHE

HAML has acquired the four PRC clinics recently established by us.
Going forward, we will continue to work with HAML to select
strategic sites to open up further clinics and medical centers in the
PRC. We will be focusing on the development of our corporate
healthcare solution business, leveraging on the network of clinics
owned by HAML as well as clinics owned by other third parties. In
addition, should opportunities arise and subject to the terms of
agreements we have signed with HAML, we will also maintain
flexibility to selectively open up clinics and medical centers in the
PRC. We believe that such new asset-light model will be beneficial
to the Company and our shareholders as a whole. For further
details of the aforesaid transaction, please refer to the
Announcement and the Circular.

Our FY2017 EBITDA excluding PRC Developing Business was
HK$66.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.3%. With
such strong cash flow from operations, we have proposed a FY2017
final dividend of HK2.2 cents per Share, subject to shareholders’
approval at our forthcoming annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

Hong Kong and Macau

Despite intense competition, we managed to achieve an organic
growth of 9.7% for this fiscal year for both corporate healthcare
solutions and clinical healthcare services. With a healthy cash
reserve, we will strengthen our collaborations with strategic
partners to establish a Hong Kong-PRC-Macau intercity outpatient
and inpatient service network to provide bespoke healthcare
management services for individuals and corporations and
insurance policyholders.

We shall continue to work closely with corporations and medical
insurance organisations on providing comprehensive healthcare
solutions, and, with a mixture of caution, innovation and flexibility,
strive to capture a leading market share.
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PRC

Recent government policy reiterates accelerating the development
of healthcare services as a strategic move to enhance the supply-
side structural reform to increase quality and efficiency and provide
sustainable growth. The ongoing healthcare reform has
encouraged greater private sector participation to offer alternatives
to those seeking a more diverse scope of medical services and
better products to the growing middle class population, and to
reduce overcrowding in public facilities. The private healthcare
sector has been moving fast to keep pace with the escalating
demand for health services prompted by rising incomes and the
aging population.

We have developed a clear and shared vision on the private
sector’s potential contribution to health system goals and strive to
identify areas where we can contribute most effectively in the long
term. It has been our intention to build a strong primary healthcare
workforce by introducing career development prospects for
medical and health workers with enhanced compensation and
standardised training to support competency. We hope this
strategic planning will help increase recruitment, retention and
motivation of primary care doctors, and to improve people’s trust
in the quality of care at the primary care level.

We believe that there is significant market demand for corporate
healthcare solutions and private clinical healthcare services in the
PRC where the growing middle class population has become
increasingly health conscious and often felt under-served by the
existing public hospital system due to long waiting time. This
population, with rising income and strong purchasing power,
generally views good health as a priority in achieving a better
quality of life for their families and is willing to pay for more
convenient medical access and quality healthcare services. Private
healthcare services providers like us are well-positioned to fill this
demand gap.
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PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution

In addition, we believe that corporations in the PRC are increasingly
looking for alternative ways to retain their staff. The ability to offer
integrated healthcare solutions to employees and their family
members will likely become one of the key considerations for
employees in choosing which corporation to join. During the past
financial year, we have received increasing interests from insurance
companies and employee benefit organisations who are keen to
develop and offer innovative preventive and outpatient products
for corporate staff.

We have been working closely with insurance companies to design
cost effective products to the market, with UMP providing guidance
on effective health maintenance and effective cost control
measures to balance healthcare needs with corporate budgets. In
addition, we have also noticed increasing interests from corporates
to offer cross-border healthcare services to their staff, as well as
insurance companies offering cross border solutions to their
policyholders. We believe our ability to offer healthcare solutions
covering Hong Kong, Macau, Beijing, Shanghai and Guangdong
areas will provide us with competitive advantages as corporates
and insurance companies are increasingly looking to work with
service providers that are able to offer one-stop multi-regions
solutions for their staff and policyholders.

Our clinic network expansion

As we expand our product offerings in the PRC, we will continue to
work closely with HAML to select strategic sites for our clinic
network expansion, thereby further reinforcing our service
capability in terms of both scope of services and our geographical
reach in key cities in the PRC. Our initial focus will continue to be in
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

We will be managing a new medical centre to be established by
HAML in Guangzhou Central business district area. Such medical
center is expected to commence operations in 2H2018. In
Shenzhen, we are now working with a strategic partner to also
establish our presence there. As we establish our flagship “hub”
medical centers in each of these key cities, we shall also be
establishing, acquiring and integrating further smaller “spoke”
clinics in each of Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.
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The UMP Training Programme

Our clinic network expansion strategy would also entail working
with clinics on an affiliation basis. We will introduce to these
affiliated clinics our UMP clinic management protocols and
proprietary IT management systems to ensure efficient monitoring
of healthcare services and claims administration. Most recently, we
have partnered up with Zhu Hai International Travel Healthcare
Centre ("Zhuhai ITHC") whereby Zhuhai ITHC will also become one
of UMP’s service points in Zhuhai, thereby expanding UMP's service
capability further within PRC.

We believe there will be more similar public-private partnerships
going forward as we continue to expand our product offerings in
the PRC. To achieve such partnerships, UMP is actively promoting
and rolling out its own doctors and clinic management training
programmes to potential doctors, partners and government
entities. Our UMP training programmes are put together by
seasoned family medicine doctors who are also actively involved in
assisting the PRC government in popularising family medicine
doctors as gatekeepers for the population’s health. The UMP
training programmes focus on the latest clinical knowledge and
skills for common diseases and treatments, communication skills,
quality assurance and annual assessment.

We are developing an internal ongoing training programme for our
full-time PRC doctors based upon the Hong Kong family medicine
vocational training curriculum and the needs of PRC patients. These
programmes are further localised with input from local PRC family
medicine doctors to ensure they are executable in each of the
region we operate in.

We see significant market potential for UMP to extend our
corporate healthcare solution services to the PRC market. Over the
past 25 years, we have accumulated significant experience in the
design and administration of health plans with insurance
companies, ultimately delivering a win-win situation where both
insurance companies and a medical group like us are able to

generate financial returns.
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OUR APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all the staff and
members of the Board for their contribution to deliver this
significant business growth of the Group both in Hong Kong and
the PRC in the past year. We are all inspired by their energy,
enthusiasm and professionalism. | would also like to take this
opportunity to thank our shareholders and business partners for
their enduring trust and support. My colleagues and | are excited
and confident about the future, and we are working hard to fulfill
such goals.

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

IS it
AANERRARBERHFFAEETINEZTEKE
ERE-—FHEBFARTRAR/AREEREHE
RIFLER - WEZWES - BB REER
1 o NEFE o RATRREEE UL M S R BP0
BRERMEBEAERBH — B AN ERE NS -
ARR D AR AGERFED BE KT
MEL BB TEHENERBR -

FRERITBAREL

BABBEEERAT
—E—tEEH



Management Discussion and Analysis

THEBFARRSH

OUR BUSINESS

UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines:

1.

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the
design and administration of tailored healthcare benefits
plans for its Contract Customers. UMP aims to provide
convenient, reliable, coordinated, comprehensive and
affordable healthcare services through the well-established
and multi-specialties UMP Network. As at 30 June 2017, the
UMP Network comprises more than 600 points of services
located across Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group's Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance
companies, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their policyholders or employees of
their policyholders and (ii) corporations, which enter into
contracts with the Group for healthcare services for their
employees and/or their dependants. When designing
healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates closely with
the Contract Customers and designs and refines corporate
healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or
occupational health-related concerns, scope of healthcare
benefits desired, employee demographic as well as their
budget.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services
UMP provides medical, dental and auxiliary services to Self-
paid Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i) general
practice services, which serves as the first point of contact for
the patients and (i) specialist services covering more than 18
different specialties. For dental services, UMP provides both
primary dental care and secondary dental care such as dental
implants. For auxiliary services, UMP provides services such as
medical imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy and
vision care.

PRC Health Check-up Business

Our PRC Health Check-up Business currently operates one
medical centre in Beijing and two medical centres in
Shanghai, delivering on average over 2,000 health check-ups
per month for the PRC residents traveling abroad for study or
for work. Our PRC Health Check-up Business also conducts
health check-ups for corporate employees.
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4. PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical
Healthcare Business (PRC Developing Business)
Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare
Business represents our development of corporate healthcare
solutions and clinical healthcare services in major cities in the
PRC. The first phase of our investment will be focused on
Beijing and Shanghai:

. in Beijing, we have partnered up with CR Phoenix
Healthcare Group through a 50:50 joint venture. Such
joint venture arrangement with CR Phoenix had
changed following the series of transactions as
described in the Announcement and the Circular, which
were approved by the shareholders on 27 February
2017; and

o in Shanghai, through our wholly owned operations.

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 6.3% from HK$293.1
million to HK$311.7 million (before intersegment elimination) due
to a general increase in patient visits and average spending per
visit, while our operating profit (operating profit before tax and
before non-recurring items) has increased approximately 4.7% from
HK$30.3 million to HK$31.7 million. Our results show that we are
able to generate increase in revenue through the marketing to and
the delivering of a comprehensive suite of services to our corporate
customers, insurance companies and patients.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 14.6% from HK$204.8
million to HK$234.6 million (before intersegment elimination) due
to a general increase in average spending per visit, while our
operating profit (operating profit before tax and before non-
recurring items) has decreased 17.6% from HK$20.6 million to
HK$17.0 million. The increase in revenue is in part due to the
expansion of specialist services and auxiliary services to our patients
in Kowloon during FY2017 and for the same reason these newly set
up centres which are still in the ramp-up period dragged down the
operating profit.
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PRC Health Check-up Business

In FY2016, we completed the acquisition of Shanghai Eaton
Consulting and its subsidiaries on 30 October 2015, which
generated revenue of HK$22.9 million between 31 October 2015
and 30 June 2016.

Revenue for this business for FY2017 has been recorded for
HK$42.8 million with the acquisition of UMP Pudong on 17 October
2016. Assuming the acquisitions in FY2016 and FY2017 were
completed on 1 July 2015 and 1 July 2016 respectively, our PRC
Health Check-up Business would have generated revenue of
HK$33.0 million for FY2016 and HK$45.5 million for FY2017,
representing a year-on-year increase of 37.8%.

PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare
Business

Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution Business is currently in
development phase and therefore did not generate any revenue in
FY2017, while the PRC Clinical Healthcare Business has recorded
revenue of HK$1.8 million.

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit for
our business lines for FY2017 and FY2016 for comparison:

Revenue by business lines

PEIREMEL

R2016 T EE - KPR 2015610 A30H5E
AU LSRR REZAREMBRAR - ©
20156E10 A31 HE2016F 6 A0 B B E4L.
WA29B&8BTT -

BEZEN 201610817 B UkEE iR e - 2%
BR20177TVBRFEHRBBARLSBEEET
BRZ 2016 B B 2017 B U E B B0 Wi >
B 2015F7 B1H K2016F7 A1H T -
MR B R ERR 20169 BF E K& 2017
FHREENRELERABOBEEBTNISSHE
EBIT  IRFIEIN37.8% °

FE R EERREERT RRERERR
RE%

BB S EERREART REBRKR
MFEEE - HItR2017 T REEYERES
ERWA - M BERRBRERERSHREZ
PRSI A8 EEETT

TREFNF IR 2017 B BF [E K 2016 81 B 4F
BRI ESRIMA R EE R B AR E

BEBREDBA

Year ended 30 June

BZ6H30HLEE
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000
FHIT

Increase/

2017 &
HK$'000
THxT

(decrease)
1/
OBd)

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate BB ORI EERRRE

Healthcare Solution Services fROR T B AR TS 311,668 293,112 6.3%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical B R IBPIEG IR B R IR AR

Healthcare Services 234,581 204,760 14.6%
PRC Health Check-up Business o B i XS 42,797 22,916 NMEETK
PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution ~ Bl ¥EFRIEF R TR

& Clinical Healthcare Business K WG IR B BRI 7% 1,792 - NMEETK
TOTAL &5t 590,838 520,788 13.5%
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Operating profit by business lines

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate BB RIBPIDEBERE
Healthcare Solution Services BRIR T RARTS

Operating profit margin 4 A8 KIS =R

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical B R IBPIEG IR B R R AR
Healthcare Services

Operating profit margin BT

PRC Health Check-up Business H B BRI TS

Operating profit margin e

PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution R B> ¥ BB (RIERIR =

& Clinical Healthcare Business KRR EERERER

Business lines revenue presented above are before intersegment sales (1)
elimination.

Operating profit by business lines represent operating profit before tax for 2
each business line and excluding non-recurring items.

Operating losses for PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare (3)
Business for FY2017 included losses of PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution
Business in Shanghai and Beijing, PRC Clinical Healthcare Business in Shanghai

and share of losses of joint ventures of HK$14.0 million (FY2016: HK$10.0
million) from the joint venture with CR Phoenix Healthcare Group in Beijing.

The losses primarily represent startup costs including rental expenses, office
renovation, recruitment of management and medical staff and training costs.

BEBRGB D KENE

Year ended 30 June
HE6H30RILEEE
2017 2016 Increase/

2017 & 20164  (decrease)
HK$'000 HK$'000 #hn,
FHBxT T CR)

31,673 30,332 4.4%

10.2% 10.3%

16,977 20,600 (17.6%)
7.2% 10.1%

15,368 6,835 NMEHTA

35.9% 29.8%

(33,538) (17,484) NMEET K

ERMEFIEBRRNRET D AR 8 & H AT -

BEBREADEENBRBZEBRNOBRBALER
B TEEFEEIAER -

FECERERERRIEREREBERBELBR
2017 B FERE A EREENRE £F L RAF
B EBERBERSRR LEH T BEEKEER
BEBHBBARSEEEHEEEEEENL R
MAEBERRAMEEBI140EEB L0160 HFE
100EBET) - BIEXZAMENE  2EHER
T OWARRE  BEEEEREREASNRE
AR

BABBEEERAR
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Presentation of our PRC Healthcare Business going forward
Following the disposal of our clinics to HAML and the full
integration of our PRC Health Check-up Business into our Group,
going forward, we will be presenting our PRC Healthcare Business
as one segment only. We believe such presentation would better
reflect our overall operations in the PRC as we integrate the
management and the operations of all the clinics and medical
centers owned and managed by UMP. We are in the process of
revamping some of our clinics so that all of the clinics will be able
to deliver comprehensive service offerings including preventive
services and outpatient services. As such, in our future financial
reports, our PRC Developing Business segment will be renamed to
"PRC Healthcare Business”
businesses:

and shall consist of the following

PRC Health Check-up Business;

PRC Clinical Healthcare Business, where such services are

provided at the medical centers owned by UMP; and

PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution business.

FINANCIAL REVIEWS
FY2017 compared to FY2016

Revenue

During FY2017, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau, (i) the provision of clinical healthcare
services in Hong Kong and Macau and (iii) the PRC Health Check-
up Business, which primarily represents revenue generated from
the provision of medical examinations for local residents in the PRC
and immigration visa applicants.

We are actively expanding our corporate healthcare solution and
clinical healthcare business in both Beijing and Shanghai through
the establishment of medical centre network in these two cities.
Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution Business is currently in
development phase and therefore did not generate any revenue in
FY2017, while the PRC Clinical Healthcare Solution Business has
recorded revenue of HK$1.8 million.

ARZFPEBRREER

B8 % A B TR h B 2 P DA I P B BB e 3R 7%
EHBARNEER  RARE BfISHHPERE
BREXB2IISE D80 - HAIEE - AR
HPGaBaBBMBANERE 2 2R NER
PLZEEREE BRI EERRREM
KRB BELE - RAEBHMOZHT - A
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 2T IR 2 E RS - BIEENRE K

PR o Bt - REAIREOFBRET -

?E$M$I%%“%h&%%($l SRR
fERT] - BB IR

B R R

TEERRBERREERS - RS
A2 BT ORERE - &

BEH

TECEBRREBORTEER -

B 7 B
2017 AU E B2 2016 B U E LL 8%

A

K207 HRFE - ZAINRATEZEEA)
REBIRFRAE NP RRHEXERRIER
RITER ¢ (i) BB SORPITR R R B BRI AR
F&m¢l£ﬁ¥%%ﬁ%k$%ﬁ?i@
A EEER B RRE B HEARTERR
%)

BRI RE ESERAEYA HFEBHH O
1% BRETRMRZMERTHEEEER
AR R RBRBRREER - HMINFE
TEBTREBHEASTREFERFENERRE
ER - iR 2017 AR B I R E A AUA
i B R B R AR R H RS MR AT
BBWAISEEBTT
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Total consolidated revenue increased by 12.7% from HK$456.0
million in FY2016 to HK$514.0 million in FY2017, primarily due to (i)
an increase in revenue from HK$433.1 million to HK$469.4 million
from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services to
Contract Customers and provision of clinical healthcare services to
Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau, and (ii) an increase in
revenue from HK$22.9 million to HK$42.8 million from the PRC
Health Check-up Business, which we acquired on 30 October 2015.

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract
Customers in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution
services to Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau increased
6.3% from HK$292.2 million in FY2016 to HK$310.5 million in
FY2017.

J Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Contract Customers increased by 7.1% from
HK$276.1 million for FY2016 to HK$295.6 million for FY2017,
primarily due to an increase in the average price per patient
visit in FY2017 as well as the increase in the number of visits
from the patients seeking Medical Services.

o Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Contract Customers remained relatively stable at
the range of HK$15.0 million to HK$16.1 million for both
FY2016 and FY2017. The number of visits slightly decreased
from 22,012 in FY2016 to 21,301 in FY2017.

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and

Macau

J Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 13.5% from
HK$94.3 million for FY2016 to HK$107.0 million for FY2017,
primarily due to an increase in both the patient visits and the
average price per patient visit in FY2017 driven by higher
spending by patients who needed to utilise our auxiliary

services.

J Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 11.6% from
HK$46.5 million for FY2016 to HK$51.9 million for FY2017. The
average price per patient visit increased in FY2017.

BIT AW AR 2016 EFE 456,08 &5 T
IR127%ZE 2017 I FE514.088BBT - T)
FERR ()RR FIRHEDEERRERRA
FRREARRES R B & B & IZHEE
REFERERBAEEWRARLSBIEEET
EINE469.4BEBTT K (i) KRER 20154 10
A0BWENTBEEBRERHKRABR297
BETTIENE4A28EEETT °

REBREMBENEFRERULCEBERER
R R

REMBAE KRGO FPIREBLHEERR
fRERR T R RIE AU A 2016 B B 4F 5 292.2
BEBITEING63%ZE 2017 RFE3055E8
BT o

s EBE -MANEFREEBZERFMKA
H2016 R FE 276 1B 8B ITEINT 1%
E7HBFE2956A8FL hE
ZHRESKREERENEZ Y2 ER
2017 T E N AR BERDINK
I

o FR 2016 BFER2017UBEFE -
MEHEFPIREIIBURE AU A 458
HEBE NT1508EELE1618E
T o B2 ABH 2016 B B E 22,012
NIRE O™ A 2 2017 BABEE 21,301 A

IR e
RE B R RPT IR 4L R R B R R 2 R3S

e EBR MEERRERHEERBHKA
F20168f B £ fE94.3F 8 /& T 1& i1
13.5% Z 2017 T EE 10708 &8 7T -
DEEZERREFEFEARMEEIREDN
BENRSEETS  BERZRER
RIZ BN 2017 BIEE A -

e IR -mMAEEREREFRRBEAUA
20168 B F E4658 8 7% 7T # i1
11.6%Z 2017 B FEESN9B BB -
IR B 2017 BB EE & N
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PRC Health Check-up Business

Revenue contribution from the PRC Health Check-up Business,
which we acquired on 30 October 2015, increased from HK$22.9
million in FY2016 to HK$42.8 million in FY2017. The number of
patient visits for FY2017 was 36,810.

For reference, Shanghai Eaton Consulting and its subsidiaries
generated revenue of HK$10.1 million from 1 July 2015 to 30
October 2015 and UMP Pudong generated revenue of HK$2.7
million from 1 July 2016 to 16 October 2016. For illustration
purposes, if we had completed the acquisitions on 1 July 2015 and
1 July 2016 respectively, the revenue for the PRC Health Check-up
Business would have increased by 37.8% from HK$33.0 million in
FY2016 to HK$45.5 million in FY2017 (or an increase of 39.9% under
constant RMB currency basis). The following table provides further
breakdown of the revenue and visits regarding the PRC Health
Check-up Business:

Revenue contribution post-acquisition 520154 10 A 30 B W B & &)
on 30 October 2015 (HK$'000) IWABR(FHTT)

Revenue per local currency (RMB'000) L& E¥TEWA (AREF L)

No. of visits P IRE
Revenue contribution assuming R BEER7 A1 BERW
acquisition was completed WABR(FETT)

on 1 July (HK$'000)
Revenue per local currency (RMB'000)
No. of visits P IRE

2016 RMB:HKD exchange rate at 1.16740
2017 RMB:HKD exchange rate at 1.15043

HEWEEFERAARETT)

PEIERER

AR 2015410 A 30 B W ER B 8E i ¥ 7%
UL A BB 2016 B IR FE 22.9 & B 7 Jo i
E017HRFEL28BEBIT - 2017 K F
ET 2 N8 536,810 AIK °

ER2ZE LSRR REZAREMRBARTRN
2015F7A1HZE2015F 10 A30B E£ WA
101 E8ET M EEBER2016F7A18
E2016F10H16HEERA2TBEEE T
EFIRR AR - MBRMABIN2015F7 418 K
20167 A1 BEMRUWEE - PEIBEBHREBIA
12016 N FE 330 E BB T IN37.8% 2
2017 A FE 4558 BT (RIZETE AR
HEEE AL NN39.9%) o« TREHT|FHHBIRE
B A R B2 XN B R — PR

Year ended 30 June
BE6H30RALEE

Increase/
(decrease)
1/
OB4)

2017
2017 &

2016
20164

42,797 22,916 NMEET KA
37,201 19,630 NMEET KA
36,810 23,281 NMEET K
45,473 32,989 37.8%
39,527 28,259 39.9%
38,509 33,844 13.8%

20165 ARHE H B TTER £1.16740
2017 F ARME XS TTIEE 4 1.15043
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains primarily comprise administrative support
fees (including fees derived from providing administrative support
to Affiliated Doctors, Affiliated Dentists and Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers), dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, interest income from held-to-maturity
investments and the gain from the series of transactions as
described in the Announcement and the Circular, which was
completed on 23 March 2017. Please refer to the Circular for further
details.

Other income and gains increased by 530.6% from HK$8.5 million
in FY2016 to HK$53.6 million in FY2017. The significant increase was
primarily due to the one-off gains, including gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and gain on remeasurement of previously held interests
in joint ventures, derived from the series of transactions as
described in the Announcement and the Circular of approximate
HK$46.2 million in FY2017.

Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical
Services, Dental Services and Auxiliary Services rendered within the
UMP Network, as well as fees paid to third party laboratories and
testing centres for services rendered to the Group.

Professional services expenses increased by 11.3% from HK$258.4
million for FY2016 to HK$287.6 million for FY2017, primarily due to
an increase in the cost of services rendered by doctors, dentists
and other professionals, which was in line with the Group's
increased revenue in FY2017.

HABW A K Wz

HW AR am T BRRBTBERER (B
BB - BT B N BB RIS IR E
RETBREMEENER)  RERAXE
BFFABSNEREENRERA - KEFHE
ERHRENNBIAA RN 2017 43 A 23
B SER R A S BB K ATl — i B2 F ) Y as
BRGE— ISR 2B -

HMUA MU H 2016 BHFEE85AEB T
HAN530.6% E 2017 AR FES53.6 BB BT °
EEEABEEIZEAR201T7THBREEZAE
MBI — @R R FEEA XK (BE
HEWRBARZWEREFTE2BEFEA]
NEEZRZ ML) 446 2BBETT »

EXRKER

BEXRBEATECREAEBL  TERBHHR
BREENUMPREANRENERRS - 7
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Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share-based payment expense, as well as
pension scheme contributions for nurses and administrative
personnel, and also include those of the Directors and key
management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 27.4% from HK$78.7
million for FY2016 to HK$100.3 million for FY2017. Employee
benefit expense increased primarily due to general increase in staff
costs, full-period recognition of staff costs from the PRC Health
Check-up Business for FY2017, the clinical staff costs relating to the
operation of the Shanghai clinic which commenced operations in
July 2016, the expansion of staff number in Shanghai for the PRC
corporate healthcare solution business, the consolidation of
corporate head office in Beijing upon the acquisition of additional
shareholdings in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) in March 2017, the
increase in number of staff for the headquarter office and clinics in
Hong Kong in connection with the Group's expansion plans in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses increased by 15.8% from
HK$35.4 million for FY2016 to HK$41.0 million for FY2017, primarily
due to the full-period recognition of rental expenses from the PRC
Health Check-up Business for FY2017, the establishment of the
Shanghai clinic as well as the corporate head office in Shanghai and
the increase in rent for those existing premises for which leases
were renewed.

Cost of Inventories Consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by 16.5% from HK$17.6
million for FY2016 to HK$20.5 million for FY2017, primarily due to
an increase in the amount of drugs and other medical consumables
consumed for the provision of clinical healthcare services to
patients in Hong Kong and Macau. Such increase is generally in line
with the increase in revenue from the provision of clinical healthcare
services in Hong Kong and Macau in FY2017.

EERAFAX
BERINAXTIECRELIRITBRABURE
ERTEZERABNH S MBBRAK - iR
FEE R SR ST A SRR 2 AT BIER -

EERAMAXH2016HHFE/STEES T
EIN27.4% E 2017 B FE 1003 BB BT ©
EERFMASEINEBEHNE TRAEERE
- 2017 RFELHERTEERER
HE TR - BN 201657 ARALIEN HiF
P EEBNLEIRA BN %5
BREFATEREBBALSETAZ R
2017 F 3 AIEMEMA B (b)) IR EA L
TR ARIRNREE  AERNFEEEEN
BRI NESENBEERZATNETIHE
FTEL °

MEEESRERAX

VXM REERTM2016MEFEE3LH
BATTEMN58%E 20177 WHREEZL0HESE
T EEHRE017VREE 2 BHERATEH
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NP ERANEERBEXIGMAERH
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Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by 83.3% from HK$9.6
million for FY2016 to HK$17.6 million for FY2017, primarily due to
the purchase of specialised equipment and decoration for the new
medical imaging centre and day surgery centre in Kowloon, the
setting up of the Shanghai clinic and the refurbishment of existing
facilities in Hong Kong.

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net primarily comprise general overhead expenses
such as utilities, operation and other administrative expenses as
well as repair and maintenance expenses incurred with respect to
the Group's offices and medical equipment, printing expenses and
bank charges.

Other expenses, net, decreased by 26.4% from HK$42.4 million in
FY2016 to HK$31.2 million in FY2017, primarily due to HK$16.4
million of expenses incurred in connection with the Global Offering
which did not recur in FY2017 while partially off-setted by the
increase of legal and professional fees due to the the series of
transactions as described in the Announcement and Circular which
were completed in March 2017.

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures

Share of losses of joint ventures increased by 40% from HK$10.0
million in FY2016 to HK$14.0 million in FY2017. Within such losses
there were (i) incremental employee benefit expenses relating to
the establishment of the corporate head office in Beijing, (ii) clinical
staff costs relating to the operation of the Beijing clinic in Fortune
Plaza (which commenced operations in October 2016), (iii) pre-
opening expenses (both rental and employee benefit expenses)
relating to the establishment of another two clinics in Beijing, (iv)
rental expenses for the corporate head office in Beijing and (v)
expenses for the new establishment of a joint venture company,
Shanghai He Dun.

ERE#E
FEREHA 2016 ER 9.6 A BB LI N
833%E2017MBEE176BEBTL TEMH
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Summary of operational data for FY2017 with comparative figures 2017 B B 4F [ H) 48 44 815 2 2016 B IR S Lt
for FY2016: BHEHE

Revenue by operating segment REEDHE D HBA
Year ended 30 June

BE6H30RILEE
2017 2016 Increase/

2017 & 2016 FF (decrease)
HK$'000 HK$'000 #hn,/
FHETT FAETT CR )

Provision of corporate healthcare 22 EBEREHER

solution services ESES 310,520 292,241 6.3%

Medical BeiE 295,567 276,138 7.0%

Dental R 14,953 16,103 (7.1%)
Provision of clinical healthcare RHEREERBRE

services 203,503 163,779 24.3%

Medical B 151,636 117,258 29.3%

Dental 78 51,867 46,521 11.5%
TOTAL 45t 514,023 456,020 12.7%
Number of visits by operating segment REEDHEDRDIXE

Year ended 30 June Increase/
BEZ6H30RLEE (decrease)

2017 2016 #hn,/
2017 & 20164F O )

Provision of corporate healthcare 12 fit {2 B ERE IR

solution services ES 1,253,674 1,249,387 0.3%

Medical B 1,232,373 1,227,375 0.4%

Dental 7FH 21,301 22,012 (3.2%)
Provision of clinical healthcare EHERRERREBRE

services 171,884 164,258 4.6%

Medical BeR 134,825 128,129 5.2%

Dental oL 37,059 36,129 2.6%
TOTAL &t 1,425,558 1,413,645 0.8%
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KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and office equipment, medical equipment,
computer equipment and software, and motor vehicle in relation to
the Group's premises and operations. Property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment amounted to HK$43.9 million and HK$38.4 million,
respectively. The increase was primarily due to the establishment of
new medical imaging centre and the day surgery centre in
Kowloon.

Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments primarily represent the marketable
corporate bonds issued by listed corporations with fixed interest
rates from 1.33% to 4.875% per annum. The marketable debt
securities which will mature within one year and more than one year
are classified as current assets and non-current assets, respectively.
The Group receives related interest payments semi-annually and
annually.

As at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the Group's held-to-maturity
investments amounted to HK$61.0 million (of which HK$15.0 million
is classified as current assets and HK$46.0 million is classified as
non-current assets) and HK$56.7 million (of which HK$30.0 million is
classified as current assets and HK$26.7 million is classified as non-
current assets), respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the Group’s goodwill
amounted to HK$41.4 million and HK$32.8 million, respectively. The
increase in goodwill was primarily due to the acquisition of a
medical clinic in Shanghai during the year.
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Investments in Joint Ventures

We established a 50:50 joint venture company, UMP Healthcare
(Beijing), with CR Phoenix Healthcare Group in July 2015. Under the
terms of the original agreement, both UMP and CR Phoenix have
undertaken to commit up to RMB50 million each into UMP
Healthcare (Beijing). Such funds will be used to establish the
Healthcare Management Model and a medical centre network in
Beijing, as well as to recruit local management team and healthcare
professionals. In March 2017, the subscription of new shares in UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) by UMP Healthcare China was completed,
upon which UMP Healthcare (Beijing) became a subsidiary of the
Company, please refer to the Announcement and the Circular for
details.

We also established a 50:50 joint venture company, Shanghai He
Dun, with a dentist group in late July 2016 for the purpose of
establishment of a platform with dental professionals in Shanghai
and to provide dental services to the Group in Shanghai.

As at 30 June 2017, the net carrying value of the investments,
including the share of net assets or net liabilities and the amount
due from a joint venture, in Shanghai He Dun amounted to HK$0.9
million.

The net carrying value of the investments in Shanghai He Dun
representing capital injection was HK$1.1 million (or RMB1.0 million
equivalent) from UMP to Shanghai He Dun and was offsetted by the
HK$0.2 million share of loss from Shanghai He Dun.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables primarily comprise receivables due from Contract
Customers under fee for service plans and capitation plans. Most
Self-paid Patients of medical and dental practices settle in cash,
although payments made by credit card will be classified as trade
receivables until they are settled (typically within two to three days).
Contract Customers typically settle payments within one to two
months of the provision of services to their members. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its Contract
Customers. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

As at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$56.8 million and HK$47.5 million, respectively. The
annual receivable turnover ratio remained stable at 9.9 for both
FY2017 and FY2016. The receivable turnover ratio was calculated by
dividing the Group’s turnover during a given period by the average
trade receivables during the same period.
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Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily comprise professional fees accrued and
owing to Affiliated Doctors and amounts owing to suppliers of
medical equipment and consumables. Trade payables are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three
months.

The Group's trade payables amounted to HK$53.7 million and
HK$47.3 million, as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, respectively.

Net Change in Financial Position

The Group's net assets amounted to HK$595.6 million and
HK$410.6 million as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, respectively.
The increase was primarily due to the consideration received upon
the completion of the series of transactions as described in the
Announcement and Circular which was completed in March 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group intended to
satisfy its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash
generated from operating activities, net proceeds from the Global
Offering and the net considerations received from the series of
transactions as described in the Announcement and the Circular.
The Group may also seek to borrow to satisfy liquidity
requirements. As of 30 June 2017, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of HK$434.1 million.

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any
bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO
As at 30 June 2017, the Group had no net debt. The Group's
gearing ratio was not applicable as at 30 June 2017.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 30 June 2017. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES
The Group acquired a medical clinic in Shanghai, namely /85%
P2 BB A BR A 7] (formerly known as E/8REBRFIZHBHR A F)
("UMP Pudong”), from a third party for a total consideration of
RMB8.3 million (approximately HK$9.5 million) during FY2017. The
completion thereof has been taken place in FY2017 and UMP
Pudong became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as at the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Announcement and the Circular, UMP
Healthcare China agreed to subscribe for shares which, together
with the existing shares in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) held by UMP
Healthcare China, representing 70% of the enlarged issued share
capital of UMP Healthcare (Beijing), and NWS Subsidiary also
agreed to subscribe for shares representing 20% of the enlarged
issued share capital of UMP Healthcare China. Furthermore, the
Group agreed to dispose of UMP Management (which own, among
other things, three PRC clinics recently established by the Group)
to HAML for a consideration of in the sum of RMB79.5 million and
HK$2.8 million. Upon completion of the aforesaid transactions in
March 2017, UMP Healthcare (Beijing) became an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and UMP Healthcare
China remains as an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, UMP Management ceased to be subsidiary of the
Company. The series of transactions were completed on 23 March
2017.

On the same date, on 23 March 2017, the Group also disposed of
its 100% equity interest in UMP Management lll which own, among
other things, one PRC clinic recently established by the Group to
HAML and assigned the shareholder’s loan to HAML for a
consideration of in the sum of RMB22.3 million and HK$3.4 million.
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As per the announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2017, on
13 April 2017, UMP Corporate Administration Services Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and as purchaser,
entered into a provisional agreement for sale and purchase with
Mr. Liu Wai Lun, Jeffrey, an independent third party of the
Company and as vendor, and Midland Realty (Comm.) Limited, an
independent third party of the Company and as agent, pursuant to
which UMP Corporate Administration Services Limited agreed to
acquire, and Mr. Liu Wai Lun, Jeffrey agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Excellent City Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, for a consideration
of HK$56,650,000. Excellent City Limited is principally engaged in
property investment in Hong Kong and is the sole legal beneficial
owner of offices 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 on 18/F, Nam Wo Hong Building,
148 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The acquisition has
been completed on 10 August 2017 and Excellent City Limited is
now a wholly-owned subsidiary of UMP Corporate Administration
Services Limited. The Group plans to relocate its existing Sheung
Wan branch office to the said property after the tenancy
agreements expire in March 2018 for the purpose of coping with
the expansion of the Group, enhancing efficiency and
strengthening internal control.

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during FY2017.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from strengthening the Group's current business and the
future plans as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have
any specific future plan for material investments or capital assets as
of 30 June 2017.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related to
deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property, plant
and equipment for the Group’s medical, dental and auxiliary
services centres. For FY2017, the Group incurred capital
expenditure in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$37.0
million (FY2016: HK$26.8 million).
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INDEBTEDNESS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any material off-
balance sheet arrangements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain
transactions in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk, primarily relating to the Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure when the need arises.

Credit Risk

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

With respect to listed equity and debt investment, the Group
purchases and holds only through various creditworthy financial
institutes.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2017, the Group has pledged certain deposits with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$0.8 million (30 June 2016: HK$0.8
million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a bank in favour
of an independent third party for potential damages of dental
equipment and a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a
landlord for leasing of a medical centre of the Group.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had a total of 407 full-time
employees (FY2016: 392 full-time employees). For FY2017, the staff
cost (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries and
other benefits) was approximately HK$100.3 million (FY2016:
HK$78.7 million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis, together with reference to the profitability of the Group,
prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and market
conditions within the general framework of the Group’s
remuneration system.

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible participants are
entitled to subscribe for the ordinary shares in the Company for
their past and potential contribution to the growth of the Group. As
at 30 June 2017, 44,908,000 options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme remained outstanding and 1,492,000 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised
during FY2017. As at 30 June 2017, 2,426,000 options remained
outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and no
share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been
exercised during the year ended 30 June 2017.

In addition, the Company has also adopted the Share Award
Scheme on 30 June 2016 to provide an incentive and reward to
selected participants for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group. No award has been granted under the Share Award
Scheme since its adoption.

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results
and comparable market statistics.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.2
cents per Share for FY2017 (FY2016: HK2.0 cents). The proposed
final dividend will be subject to approval of shareholders of the
Company at the 2017 AGM to be held on Thursday, 30 November
2017 and is payable to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 7
December 2017. It is expected that the final dividend will be paid
on or about Thursday, 21 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong (F&#3T), aged 74, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 23 April 2015 and re-
designated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is
primarily responsible for the overall formulation, supervision and
guidance of business strategies, planning and development of the
Group. He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is also a director of various members of the
Group.

With over 42 years of experience in family medicine practice, Dr.
Sun is a Founder Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. He is a Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family
Medicine at the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Honorary
Clinical Assistant Professor in Family Medicine at the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Sun is one of the pioneer Hong Kong doctors to
participate in the healthcare development and training of medical
professionals in the PRC. With his wealth of experience in the PRC,
in particular his involvement and exposure in the training
programmes of various institutions, he plays a leading role in the
strategic planning and development of the Group's healthcare
business in the PRC.

Dr. Sun is the father of Dr. Michael Sun and the father-in-law of Mr.
Patrick Tsang, both of whom are executive Directors. He is the sole
shareholder and a director of East Majestic Group Limited. He is
also the sole shareholder and director of EM Team Limited.

He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1967 and became a Fellow
of the Hong Kong College of General Practitioners in September
1987 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the
specialty of Family Medicine in December 1993. He was also
registered as a specialist in Family Medicine in March 1998.
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Ms. KWOK Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (S8 E ), aged 49, is the Managing
Director of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 5
November 2014 and re-designated as an executive Director on 29
August 2015. She is responsible for the overall management and
business development of the Group and initiating and leading
business projects in collaboration with medical insurance
companies and corporate customers. Ms. Kwok is also responsible
for developing the management team with a view to enhancing
operational efficiency and expanding the Group’s business
activities. Ms. Kwok is one of the key members in establishing the
administration arm of the Group. She has over 22 years of
experience in health schemes management and providers network
administration to support the healthcare plan’s implementation in
the Group's network. She is actively involved in developing the
infrastructure of the Group such as information technology
platforms and medical network facilities. Ms. Kwok is also a director
of various companies of the Group.

Ms. Kwok obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Business
Studies (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in November
1991 and obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Peking University in
July 1996. She also obtained a Master of Science in Management
(Health Services Management) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003.
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Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (B % %), aged 46, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is primarily responsible for
providing strategic directions on co-operations with different
business stakeholders in China and globally. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited. He is also a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CTFE and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Tsang has over 22 years of
international capital markets experience, and was previously
managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital Markets at
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he worked from
2003 to 2012.

Mr. Tsang is an executive director of Melbourne Enterprises Limited
(stock code: 158), a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) and a non-
executive director of Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 94), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was also appointed as a non-executive director of i-Cable
Communications Limited (stock code: 1097) on 15 September 2017.

Mr. Tsang is the son-in-law of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an executive Director
and the brother-in-law of Dr. Michael Sun, an executive Director.

Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Columbia
College of Columbia University in New York, USA in May 1994.
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Dr. SUN Man Kin, Michael (#2838 ), aged 39, was appointed as a
Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a specialist in Radiology and is
responsible for expanding the global imaging business of the
Company as well as building the physician networks. Dr. Michael
Sun has over 12 years of experience in medicine and has been the
Chief Radiologist of the Group since July 2012. He is currently a
radiologist, a director and a shareholder of ProCare Medical
Imaging and Laboratory Centre Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. He is also a consultant radiologist at
Causeway Bay MRI Centre. Dr. Sun is also a director of various
members of the Group.

Dr. Michael Sun is the son of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and executive Director and
the brother-in-law of Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive
Director. He is also a director of East Majestic Group Limited.

Dr. Michael Sun obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in December 2002. He
became a Fellow of the Royal College of Radiologist in October
2007 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Radiologists in
October 2010. He also became a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine in the specialty of Radiology in June 2010.
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Mr. LEE Kar Chung, Felix (ZZXRH8), aged 36, was appointed as a
Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is responsible for corporate
development, international operations and merger and acquisitions
for the Group. Mr. Lee joined the Group as director, corporate
development and strategy of the Group in September 2014. He is
currently a Senior Vice President of CTFE with responsibilities in
making investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally
and a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director of
China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as Phoenix Healthcare Group Co., Ltd) (stock code:
1515), a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lee is also a
director of various members of the Group. He has over 12 years of
experience in law and finance. He was an associate with the law
firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in February 2008
to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an analyst in the investment
banking department until January 2009. He then joined the
investment banking department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong
branch and last held the position of director in the Corporate
Advisory Group, where he worked from January 2009 to August
2014.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London School of
Economics and Political Sciences and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004,
respectively. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
September 2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luen-Wai, John B88s Jp (Z#{£), aged 68, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is an
independent non-executive director of New World Development
Company Limited (stock code: 17), an associate of CTFE. Mr. Lee is
also the managing director and chief executive officer of Lippo
Limited (stock code: 226), an executive director and the chief
executive officer of both Lippo China Resources Limited (stock
code: 156) and Hongkong Chinese Limited (stock code: 655), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was also appointed as a non-executive non-independent
chairman of Healthway Medical Corporation Limited, a company
listed on the Catalist Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and an investee company of Lippo China
Resources Limited, on 2 August 2017. He resigned as an
independent non-executive director of New World China Land
Limited (former stock code: 917), an associate of CTFE, with effect
from 1 September 2016 after the listing of its shares on the Stock
Exchange had been withdrawn on 4 August 2016 following its
privatisation.

Mr. Lee is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Association of Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts. He was a
partner of Pricewaterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers)
in Hong Kong and has extensive experience in corporate finance
and capital markets. Mr. Lee is an Honorary Fellow of the City
University of Hong Kong and a Justice of Peace in Hong Kong and
an awardee of the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Lee is active in public service. Over the years, he has served as
a member or chairman of different government boards and
committees in Hong Kong, including a member of the Hong Kong
Hospital Authority and the chairman of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Currently he serves as
a Trustee of the Board of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme and the chairman of its Investment Committee, a member
of the Appeal Boards Panel (Education) as well as a member of the
Public Service Commission.

BYFHTES
FWMEBRE(HLHNESE AFHL) 685% A
2015F 11 A6 ARREZERBIIFNITES »
BRARBABEZEZEGIFENREREZESGE
8o FRERBAARBLENBE AN RER
BRAR(BRMDNRE  17)NBLIERITES -
FEENRBNEBRAR (RMDAIE - 226)F
FHRREFTRAER  NEEBEARLAR (K
IR - 156) REBEABR AR (RH AR -
655) FITE FFRITHUAEHR - ZF R AR
FIER EMAR - BR2017F8 A2HERTE
& Healthway Medical Corporation Limited (—
KNF IR B AR ZPABRAFSMR EH Z
RE MANBEBERABZRESE) 23k
HITIEBIULESF - WN 201659 A1 B EHEA
RNEEENBEATERFEMESR QA
(RIS - 917) B IEMITES - HRf)
PRBE R ATy _E I BEZE AL AL RN 20165 8
R4 BEREE -

FRERRBBRARITFT ST - R
HEFARGHMAGERBEGHMAGER
B - RERBEEIAGHENERHCGRE
BABKEEMEBH)ABAZ— R
EMEMNBEAMSTHRAEEERLR - FE
REBWTARBLREBRLRBBAFHL I
EREBNTHREBNBRRAEZAEZE -

FREBBS2EARER  EBEZF BB
REBREIZEAINRABRFEZEG@2ZE®E
B HEREREEBEREERZZERFNY
REREAEEETIE RARBREERA
BEtEEREEeREREZBEER
LRZEE(HB)ZERAKEMALZESR

B o

34

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFSREREEBRRE

Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald s85.r (ZEI#R), aged 63, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Li is a specialist in Family Medicine in private practice
in Hong Kong. He is the immediate past President of the Hong
Kong Academy of Medicine, the President Elect of the World
Organisation of Family Doctors (WONCA) and Censor of the Hong
Kong College of Family Physicians.

Dr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University, USA, and
a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and November 1980,
respectively. He became a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
General Practitioners in September 1987, Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine in December 1993, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons in August 2004, Honorary
Fellow of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners in
September 2005, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
Family Physicians in May 2007, Fellow of the Faculty of Public
Health of the Royal Colleges of Physicians of the United Kingdom
in February 2010, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Family
Physicians of Malaysia in April 2011, Registered Mainland China
Medical Practitioner in April 2013, Honorary Fellow of the American
College of Physicians in November 2012, Honorary Fellow of the
Royal College of Physicians of Thailand in April 2013, Fellow of the
Academy of Medicine, Singapore, in August 2013, Honorary Fellow
of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland in October 2014 and
Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of General Practitioners in
November 2014.

He served as Member of Council of Cornell University. He is a
Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family Medicine at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Honorary Professor of the Li Ka
Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong.
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Dr. Li is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association and member of Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
council. He is the chairman of Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre
and also the chairman of the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council and serves as a member on the committee of the
Community Care Fund Task Force. He is an Honorary Steward of
the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is the Adjunct Associate Professor
of the Faculty of Health Science of Macau University of Science and
Technology. He is the Honorary Adviser of The Hong Kong Award
for Young People. He is also a member of the steering committee
on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and
Professional Development, the Health and Medical Development
Advisory Committee of Food and Health Bureau of the
Government of Hong Kong, the member of the committee on
Promotion of Organ Donation of Food and Health Bureau of the
Government of Hong Kong as well as the member of High Level
Steering committee on Antimicrobial Resistance of Food and
Health Bureau of the Government of Hong Kong.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun, Mike (58 #2), aged 64, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015. He is
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 1001), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years’ working experience in
banking industry. Mr. Yeung began his career with the HSBC Group
in 1972 and advanced himself in the organisation by taking up
different positions under various business streams including
personal banking, sales and marketing, branch operation and trade
service. In 2001, Mr. Yeung was relocated to Shanghai and took up
the role of branch manager of HSBC Shanghai. In June 2006, he
was seconded to Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and appointed
as the head of personal financial services and wealth management.
He assumed the role of Deputy Chief Executive and Head of Retail
Banking and Wealth Management in May 2007. Mr. Yeung retired
from HSBC Group in January 2014. Mr. Yeung is a member of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee in
Shanghai and the Honorary President of Hong Kong Chamber of
Commerce in Shanghai. He was awarded the “Magnolia Gold
Award” presented by the Shanghai Municipal government. Mr.
Yeung was also awarded a Professional Diploma in Company
Direction by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2017.
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Company Secretary

Ms. MA Hoi Wan (5 8l &), aged 42, is the Finance Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible for a full
spectrum of internal functions within the Group, including
accounting and finance, business and operation analysis,
information technology, human resources and administration. She
has over 17 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance.
Ms. Ma first joined the Group as a consultant in November 2000 to
June 2001 and subsequently became a full-time Accounting
Manager from July 2001 to June 2005. She was promoted to
Assistant Financial Controller in July 2005 until she left the Group in
May 2007. Ms. Ma re-joined the Group as Financial Controller in
April 2010. She is also a member of the Management Committee
and a director and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong
Museum of Medical Sciences since 2012 and 2013 respectively.

Ms. Ma obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1997 and obtained a Master of Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2003. She has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2001.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company believes
that high standards of corporate governance provide a solid
foundation for the Group to manage business risks, enhance
transparency and maintain high standards of accountability. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise sound
internal control and aim to protect Shareholders’ interests in
general.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code during FY2017, except for the
deviation as disclosed in this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, consisting of five
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and executive Director, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen, as
Managing Director and executive Director, Mr. Tsang On Yip,
Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael and Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix as
executive Directors, and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike as
independent non-executive Directors.

Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has maintained on its website and on the website of
the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying their
roles and functions, and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
the gender, age, cultural, educational background and professional
experience of the Board members. The appointment of Directors
will be based on the Group's own business model and specific
needs, having due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-
balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company. The Board will review and monitor the implementation
of board diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Dr.
Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, is also the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in an experienced and qualified person such
as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership while allowing effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Group.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangement
when the Board considers appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During FY2017, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Roles of the Board and Management

The Board oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and performance of the Group. It is collectively responsible for the
management and operation of the Company. The Board is the
ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the
Articles, the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
management of the Company. The Board and the management
have clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various
internal control and check and balance mechanisms. The Board
does not delegate matters to the Board committee(s), executive
Directors or management to an extent that would significantly
hinder or reduce the ability of the Board as a whole to perform its
functions.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board plays a major role in the supervision of corporate
governance to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
governance framework and the long-term sustainable Shareholders’
value by way of, among others:

(@) to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).
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Board Meetings and Supply of and Access to Information
Under code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
and under code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.
During FY2017, the Board held five meetings and Directors’
attendance records are set out below:

Directors

E=

Executive Directors

BITEE

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
FRIBE (L EHRITHAES)

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director)
HEEm+ (EFALE)

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

G EEE

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael

BB

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

FRIAGESE

Mr. Jiang Tianfan (resigned on 15 June 2017)
TR A (522017 6 A 15 HEHT)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYHHTEE

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS P
PEHMB S (s - AFML)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s85 Jp
TEIREE (g2 E A FHL)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of executive
Directors.
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Notice incorporating the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
be given. All Directors or Board committee members are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
Meeting agenda and accompanying meeting papers are sent to all
relevant Directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular Board
meeting or committee meeting.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and the
chairmen of Board committees in preparing meeting agendas and
ensures that the Corporate Governance Code as well as all
applicable laws and regulations are duly complied with. Minutes of
Board meetings and Board committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient details of the matters considered and decisions reached
at the relevant meetings. Draft and final versions of the minutes in
respect of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are sent
to all Directors or Board committee members respectively for
comment and records within a reasonable time after the relevant
meetings. All minutes are properly kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for the Directors’ and Board committee members’
inspection.

All Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to the Company's business and make further enquiries or
retain independent professional advisors where necessary. The
management provides all relevant explanation and information to
the Board so as to give the Board the information it needs to
discharge its responsibilities. During FY2017, the management has
provided all members of the Board with adequate information
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects.
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GENERAL MEETINGS BRERAE

During FY2017, the Company has convened and held one annual R2017BIEHEE » ARG EBERERBIT R
general meeting (“AGM") and one extraordinary general meeting REREAE ((REBAEAE ) R—ARERE
("EGM"). Attendance records of the Directors at the general RIKE ([REERAE]) - EENREAS 2
meetings are set out as follows: HE L sEF s T

Number of meetings attended/held

BHE BITRERE

Name of Directors AGM EGM
EEnH BREBFRE BRI RS
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong BRRTEE

(Chairman and (BEFQFEFITHAEHR)

Chief Executive Officer) 1/1 1/1
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen PEELL

(Managing Director) (BEFAEAETE) 11 1/1
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick B ELE 11 1/1
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael R EREEE 11 0/1
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREEE 11 11
Mr. Jiang Tianfan TR

(resigned on 15 June 2017) (R 2017 F 6 A 15 HEFE) 1/1 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors BV FEHITEE

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP THME S E

(H%FEE KX TF4L) A 7
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP TEIREEE

(REFEE - X-F#HL+) 11 11
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike THERE ST A 11

BABBEEERAR
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the
provision under the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment subject to the
provision of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles
and the provision under the letter of appointment.

The Articles provide that each Director is subject to retirement from
office by rotation and re-election once every three years and that
one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third) of
the Directors shall retire from office every year at the annual general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting while
any Director appointed by the Board as additional Director shall be
subject to re-election at the next following annual general meeting.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package covering the statutory and
regulatory obligations of Directors, organizational structure,
policies, procedures and codes of the Company, terms of reference
of board committees and charter of responsibilities of internal
audit. The Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and
conferences to enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties as
a director. The Company Secretary from time to time updates and
provides written training materials to the Directors, and organizes
seminars on the latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable
laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

EE2ZEE BERRER
ERTEFEHARFRILRBAL - /=
FUYAETERAMMBEEESHERT
VSRS B AR5 & KRBT »

BRI TEFCEARBRILRER - F
HEZERMEAN=F WAETEIZME
e BESHRERINEXRZERANGK
\X o

ERMAMEAE BSEFRAB-_FHESTE X
WA EEEL BFERB =12 (H&ELO
BAIR=nD2Z2— ABOMESKEARBR
BAFEREGLRE - HESERENABBRRZE
REOEMES  HEHEEHEZERNERE
BRAGR/IL  WEARZAG LERET M
MEFSZINEMNEIEZAR TERREA
FRE LEESIE -

EERIIREXER
BEFERDEBIFRETNREARARFN
BERN  XBARBNER - SHREESEH
ES—hzE  EANERORERE AT
BRESFNEELREEET  ARFAMNMEBR
B B BFETA BEFEEETZEEN
BIESE URAMEFEENEE - AQF
SEEE2NMANGNEE UEEEFHERE
THBETHOME - ARMETRHRERERE
AR EMBINER - AR B ETRAR
MERASERREFRS RBEAOED - R
AIMEERIIEEERRHIE -
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The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings received by R AIMERFEFEIEI Z2HFINLE - B
the Directors. The trainings received by the current Directors during 2017 N[ - MAEBEFERIZIINBE RN
FY2017 are as follows: T

Name of Directors Training Matters Nete

EEHR Sl

Executive Directors

BITEE

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

BRI EE (L EHFITHAAE) A B, C
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen

(Managing Director)
A B (EFARAEE) A B, C

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
BLRERE A B,C

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
A RBAE A, B, C

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix
TRIALE A B, C

Mr. Jiang Tianfan (resigned on 15 June 2017)
TR 4 (R2017 4 6 A 15 A BHE) A B,C

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUHHITEE

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP
TR E (L HES A THE) A, B, C

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp
TERE L (REEE A THT) A B, C

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

1BEREE L A B,C
Note: A. Corporate governance FisE A TEER
B. Regulatory updates B. EERMBER

C. Directors’ Duties C. EEEMT

BaBmEEEaRAT
“E-LFER
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

CODES FOR DEALING IN THE COMPANY'S

SECURITIES
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code for

dealings in the Company’s securities by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors have complied with the Model Code
during FY2017, save for the non-compliance incident as mentioned
below.

The Company was informed by Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $8S JP, an
independent non-executive Director, that he purchased 92,000
Shares on 4 August 2016 (which was a date falling within the black-
out period from 28 July 2016 to 26 September 2016). Dr. Li
explained that such purchase was due to an inadvertent oversight
as to the commencement date of the black-out period. Upon
becoming aware of such inadvertent oversight, Dr. Li immediately
sold such Shares on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Li also advised that he
has donated the gain of approximately HK$2,000 to Hong Kong
Red Cross. Dr. Li confirmed that he was not in possession of any
inside information of the Company at the time of such purchase
and sale. In response to such incident (albeit inadvertent in nature)
and with a view to ensuring strict compliance with the Listing Rules
and the Model Code going forward, the Company has reminded all
Directors of their respective obligations under the Listing Rules and
the Model Code, including with respect to the restrictions in
dealing in the Company'’s securities. In addition, the Company has
provided a refresher course as to the Listing Rules and corporate
governance to Dr. Li.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on
terms that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model
Code. To the best knowledge of the Company, there was no
incident of non-compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees during FY2017.

EERERASEER
AATEARATEERSHA BRIDEE M
EERBMABELR -

BEEXRRNARZNTH

ARAR MR ETAEAEEEEAR AR
HHITATA

KETRESFLARSHEK  ARFER
SOR2017HBFERETERESTA - T

AEERR AR -

RAREBLIENTESTEHRE &£ (weme
= oAxrmr)EH HR2016F8A48 (A
20167 A28H E2016F9 A26 B £ & Hi A
Z BH) B E 92000/ 1%m - TEBARE - §
BIEE AN EYEE MG R ANE LR
7o FRAENERIEB OB 2% BIRER
FrbEZERG - TEAENMSHNEEMEBA
T FEEREKREEL2000ET TEREERE
REERMNEBF L RANBITMAZHE - AFE
HEXEH(BREBRZME) R ABHER B &R
BESF LR RELESTA - AAFERES
REEFESAR LMHRAREETAIETH
% BREEBAQRAEFORS o g - A
AREMTEBEREEHLETRAIREGEESR
BT ©

AIREREASREAREENREREE AR T
REETEFRZHOET LR BEERTER
SHESTRIFTRIIRZE - LARBRATA - 2017 B4R
FEVEIRERRBEETEARRFNIRTE
AEYER
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing such remuneration policies. In arriving at its
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration Committee will
consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group. The Committee either determines or makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and it also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
twice a year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike, and an
executive Director, namely Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick. Dr. Li Kwok
Tung, Donald $8S JP serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The composition of the Remuneration Committee
meets the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the
Listing Rules.

During FY2017, the Remuneration Committee had performed the
following works:

. determined and reviewed the remuneration policy of the
executive Directors;

. assessed the performance of executive Directors;
. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

EE2ETZE®

FHMEES
AABKHFHNEESWIRAEMBIEEE -
Al A AN B 48 Uk (www.ump.com.hk) X B 22 BT
AU (www.hkexnews.hk) 2| & -

FNZBEARARREREENEREERE
FIFBNBCR MO - MRS IER R EERE
MR BIRT R - MBEFGEREZ ° #r
MEZEeEHEHEZRN  @ZRRBEAFX
HoFH - EFMEERRBERAEERNE
B BEAL Y 08 R kAT - R B B kL ERIETT
EELERERENTMTENESSRERE
& THFATEENFHRNEEERER
& MR EEEFRIBITIMAGHLER
HARERABITERE -

HNEEGRA=HREBAENK  BIEREEL
IENITEETHREE (memes  xva+) &
BRGETERPITEETLELRELE - THHRE
EREmEE A Tar) EETNEESEE -
FHEZEeMARFTE EHRAIREEMBL
MRRE -

K207 RFE - HHREGRITIATER

o FIEUEBRWITEFMHBMEEK

o FHMERITEFMRER:

o HERBMTEFREREEASNTH
FEREFERLER -

BABBEEERAT
—E—tEEH
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The attendance records of the committee members to committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

Remuneration Committee Members

FHMEEERE

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp (Chairman)
TRRE A (memes  x Tt (FE)

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
WRE S

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are disclosed in note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established its Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company's
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
reviewing the leadership needs of the Company to ensure the
continued ability of the Company to compete effectively. The
Committee is also responsible for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their annual
confirmations on independence. The Nomination Committee
meets at least once a year and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

ZEERBHFERESSRNLCHEHIINT

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held

HERE,
BRETRE

2/2

2/2

2/2

FRAZEZHFMFBRERAMBRERMET I

EEO

REZE®
RARBIKIIRBREE S WIRNEE B AESE -
A FA AR R B 48 2 (www.ump.com.hk) K2 B 32 BT

Bk (www.hkexnews.hk) 2| E -

REZESREATHRTETENRE  HR
KZtit WA BB A R bRRES M
HEFSFHNEPRLES - HREEEN
PEERBATHEES EFZEAEHZ
EUARESHEE  MESFEREER I
BRRNRFNEEFTR - UBRARR AR

FEBRET - ZBgNAEN B LIENT
EFENEUM  WIEREFZ B EENFEE
RE - -REZBEEFHRIBIT - RERAE

RMHFACERABITHRE -
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lee Luen Wai, John 8BS JP and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8sJp, and
an executive Director, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong. Dr. Sun Yiu
Kwong serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
composition of the Nomination Committee meets the requirements
of chairmanship and independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2017, the Nomination Committee had performed the
following works:

. reviewed the current structure, size and composition of the
Board;
. assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and
. reviewed the time commitment of the Directors.
The attendance records of the committee members to committee

meeting(s) are set out below:

Nomination Committee Members

REZEEME

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman)
FRI8AE (EE)

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP
FEMB LA (a2 E X TFHL)

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp
TRHIRELE (REHES - A TFHL)

REZESHB=-RKEHENK  BIEMEBEL
FRITEETH R E mgres  xvu+) R
THREE (rumgs A THr) RATTEERR
BTEE FRRTIBEETIREZESERE -
REZEEMEKFTE LHREIPEFEMBEL
MRIRTE

R201T7HBFE - RELZBERITUTES

s EHARFREFEZHRMTRE BERK

CED

o FHEBIERITEEMNBIYM &

EHEFH QR EHMNHHEHE -

ZEERBHFZESERNLEEINT

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held

HERE
ERBTRE

11

11

11
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Audit Committee

The Company has established its Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s website at
www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities for
effective financial reporting controls, internal controls and risk
management. The Committee monitors the integrity of the
Company's financial statements, annual report and accounts and
half-year report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. It reviews, makes recommendations
and reports to the Board on findings relating to the financial
statements, reports and accounts, systems of internal control and
risk management and compliance issues on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee also oversees the Company’s relationship with
the external auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor. It is empowered to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. It reviews external auditor's management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response. The Committee meets at least twice a
year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBs Jp, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $85 Jp and Mr.
Yeung Wing Sun, Mike. Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS P serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit
Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and
independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2017, the Audit Committee had performed the following
works:

. reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and
made recommendation to the Board;

. reviewed the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Company;

BEREE®
RARIKBZEESWIRNEERESE -
Al A AR R B 48 3 (www.ump.com.hk) K2 B 32 BT
48k (www.hkexnews.hk) Bl E o

BENZEQNEFQER  ATHRTERE
HHEESETHERE - RMBERESE
NEEELEAREETZAN ZEGERA
REAMPBREK  FRERBAREFERS
ZEBMN WENETAEABNGERNE
RER - HRFRAAEMBHRE - & MK
B AMEEREARERHE  ULKREEE
MER  TRHAEFSFLEERER - =
%Z B MERARN R EINEZBENORIE -
ERZBIMNZEE - YHINERBEINERE
REHFREMESSELERS - HERERS
RESINERBMER B LRE - LAREZE
FiREEMAER RS AR - HIREMINE R
B4R T & 12 B RSB AR B 5 B B 1) e A BB
FEE BRI EMEASRME - UREEEE
HHEE - RES@BFRIBTMASHTE
RHUFTRERABITERE -

EREZEREH=-RKEMHEK 2EKNEHR
BYEMITES - BIETHELE igies
AFat)  FRIRBE (meH2E - A Fm1) R I5
BE s o B E (S HES  ATH+)E
AFEZZESEE FERZEEMENFTE L
TMRBIREEFBTIERRT

R2017 HRFE - ERREGRITATER

s EHTHMMFEMHRRAAMNEZTSIR
HHEERES

o FEHARARKBMERZFELRMHE
RBER
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o reviewed the remuneration, terms of engagement and the
independence of the external auditor and considered the re-
appointment of the external auditor;

J reviewed the arrangements for raising concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters;

o reviewed the Group's financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness, adequacy of

resources and competency; and

. considered and reviewed the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

The attendance records of the committee members to committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

Audit Committee Members

BEREEERE

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 8BS Jp (Chairman)
B (s 2E - xFaL)(EE)

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8s Jp
FRIRE A (REHEE - AF#L)

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which should give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
for such reporting period. In preparing the financial statements, the
Board has adopted generally accepted accounting standards in
Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

o RFISMNERBEDRF I - ISR E
M5 WEEERINEZEED

s ERNAMYMBHE AMEERIEMLE
HAWAIRE NS EBREEREN T
B

o  WBRAEBEEEL  RAREERAI
EEIR Z G AR A - BRI R M R R
iRk

ERMEMHRE HERE/RE

ZEeRBHFEZESEHRNLEHIINT

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held

HERE,
BRBTRE

2/2

2/2

2/2

ESERUBRRNEE

EXQRERBEVBHRE  EERATFHRKR
AEBRZREPRANEBAR - BIHERAR
RenE RREVBEHREE  EFRCHEM
UHFEERABTBARETEARAEZEFEK
R EHER - 2 FRAEZHE RS - X
BREREEERRUBRE - ESTARME
RAKEREZZRTFETICE - AIELEER
BARKEBFBMR -
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The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for auditing and reporting its opinion on
the financial statements of the Group and the independent
auditor’s report for FY2017 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and overseeing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including clinic chain operations, business development, financial
reporting, human resources, information technology and handling
and dissemination of inside information.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and
monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of
the systems.

The Internal Audit Department, with assistance of external
professional firm engaged by the Company, is responsible for
providing the internal audit function and performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

EEQUWAREHAEHAEEFELER
BRERREZEMXIBEREE 2 ERNERT
AR Z - AL ES SRV BHRERFDE
BRAFECEEE -
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The Company also established a procedure to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

During FY2017, the Board, in conjunction with the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function. The Board considered that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems for
FY2017 was effective and adequate and no significant areas of
concern has been identified.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries by the external auditor of the
Company for FY2017 are set out below:

ARRFRIEFNERRBRERTIRIE
FAARBMBRE - NEESHEMEERH
HA[E N IEE BV

RV7HERFE EZSBHRAEZEZESR
BARRKLEKME AR AIBEIEHIE N B K
M BREARREGR - NEEZ L ER
Be T EMER BT EEMERET B
UREBTAESIMEIREREBEENES
KR -BZERBAEBR07HEREER
EREERANPELHEBEI TR - WEH
A E KA -

BB AT &
R2017 B - AR ASNERBATH A A
AR EL B 2 TR BRI R B R T P43
ZHERFIMT :

HK$'000
THT

Audit service RZEURTE 1,900
Non-audit services* FERZBUR TS * 1,170
3,070

* Non-audit services include corporate governance advisory services,  * IRBRBEECEELERRY  BE ek

environmental, social and governance advisory services, PRC tax analysis and
certain agreed-upon procedures.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of the Company provides that any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

ERBERY - FEBRBOTRE THERRF -
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ARBERABAESBHERE  EA—BXZ
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MARRIBRRREMNKRESEEEBNESS
FARMEZHERER  BEREFS MK
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A Shareholder may lodge a notice of his intention to propose any
person (other than himself/herself) for election as a Director
together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected to the head office of the Company or
at the registration office where the branch register of members of
the Company is kept provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days
and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Other than the above concerning a proposal of a person for
election as a Director, there are no provisions in the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for
putting forward proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at
general meetings. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not

normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1404-1408, 14th Floor
Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2511 1152

Email: ir@ump.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communication with Shareholders and in particular, through its
annual general meeting and other extraordinary general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries. The Directors, Company Secretary or appropriate
members of senior management, where appropriate, also respond
to inquiries from Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

Under the Listing Rules, all resolutions proposed at Shareholders’
meetings must be voted by poll except where the chairman of a
general meeting, in good faith and in compliance with the Listing
Rules, decides to allow resolutions to be voted on by the
Shareholders on a show of hands. Details of the poll procedures
will be explained during the proceedings of Shareholders’
meetings. The poll voting results will be released and posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company at www.ump.com.hk.

To provide effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.ump.com.hk. All the financial information and other
disclosures including, inter alia, annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and Articles are available under the section of
“About us — Investor Relations” on the Company’s website.

Shareholders can direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make a request for such
information. Designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry
lines of the Company have been provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report to enable the
Shareholders and the investment community to make any enquiry
in respect of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During FY2017, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and Articles of Association.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

OVERVIEW

This report is the first Environment, Social, Governance (hereinafter
'ESG’) Report ("ESG Report”) published by the Company, which
describes our relationship with key stakeholders, and our approach
in complying with applicable regulations and guidelines regarding
professional ethics, provision of quality medical services and
environmental protection. The reporting year of this ESG Report is
aligned with our financial year.

BASIS OF COMPILING THE REPORT

This ESG Report was compiled in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. Through engaging key
stakeholders, we have identified issues substantially important to
them and covered these issues in this report.

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

Unless otherwise specified, the contents and metrics reported in
this ESG Report cover our operations in Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC.

SOURCES OF DATA AND ASSURANCE TO
RELIABILITY

The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our
internal statistical reports, internal policies and other internal
documents. The Board hereby confirms that no false or misleading
statements were made in this ESG Report.

BOARD APPROVAL

Upon review of the management team, this ESG Report was
approved by the Board in September 2017.

ESG AND OUR COMPANY

UMP is a leading corporate healthcare solutions provider in Hong
Kong. We partner with corporations in the design and
administration of corporate healthcare benefits plans, and provides
healthcare services to, the members and employees of such
corporations. The Group offers a wide range of healthcare services
through a network of UMP Medical Centres and affiliated clinics in
Hong Kong and Macau. The Group is also actively expanding its
network in the PRC.
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Our key activities also include provision of clinical healthcare
services, including medial services, dental services and other
auxiliary services, to our individual clients through self-operated
medical centres. As of today, the UMP Network has expanded to
over 600 strategic points of service, including over 60 UMP-branded
clinics and medical centres, and over 500 affiliated clinics.

Since the Group's inception in 1990, we have dedicated ourselves
to promoting a healthier community by providing convenient,
accessible, affordable and coordinated healthcare services to the
public. As the Group continues to define the standards of
excellence in our healthcare services, we ensure that we act with
integrity and comply with applicable laws and regulations. Our
practitioners uphold high standards of ethical and professional
practice. The Group stands as a family-friendly employer. This
allows us to attract and retain talents that stand as the backbone of
our operations to satisfy the needs of our patients and customers.
We maintain constructive relationships with other stakeholders
including investors, suppliers and the wider community, as well as
minimise adverse environmental impacts. With the contribution
from our practitioners and employees, we aim for continuous value
creation within the community.

Robust ESG management enhances our competitiveness as it
facilitates understanding of stakeholders’ needs and meeting their
expectations. Through maintaining various communication
channels and strengthening our relationship with customers and
patients, the Group is able to obtain Contract Customers and meet
demand from patients in a timely manner, and anticipate their
needs as well as requirements for efficient and reliable healthcare
solutions. This is helpful for the Group in allocation of resources for
developing robust systems and various infrastructure to increase
our competitiveness. It also strengthens our ability to work with a
large network of doctors and specialists and administer healthcare
benefit plans.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

The Group's business operation in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC
is subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to, among
others, the registration and licensing of clinics, apparatuses and
practitioners, treatment of clinic wastes, marketing and promotion
of products and services, drugs possession and distribution, labour
practices as well as protection of confidentiality and personal data
privacy.
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Compliance with the law is the cornerstone of the sustainability of
our business. The Group has internal policies and systems in place
designed with a view to ensuring compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. Written procedures and guidelines are formulated
and distributed to our medical professionals and clinical staff.
Training programmes are also provided to familiarise staff with the
procedures and guidelines in our medical centres.

OUR MANAGEMENT OF ESG ASPECTS

At UMP, we consider managing ESG risks as an important driver to
the sustainable growth of our business. The Board is responsible
for evaluating and determining our ESG-related risks, and ensuring
that appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place. The implementation of ESG strategies
and programs is delegated to the head of departments.

The Quality Assurance & Safety Committee, which consists of
practitioners and senior managers of the company, adopts and
implements policies and procedures concerning healthcare services
at our medical centres. The Quality Assurance & Safety Committee
is also responsible for assuring the quality of our services through
clinical audits, issuing care and clinical guidelines, administering
continuing professional development and overseeing staff
management regarding operational aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with the Code Provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
Three board committees have been established for overseeing
different functions. Our Directors serve different roles in the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All existing policies and practices in relation to
management and corporate matters are reviewed by the Board on
a regular basis for compliance with new requirements. More
information on governance and the Board is available in the
Corporate Governance section of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Our relationship with patients and customers

The majority of the Group's patients are the healthcare benefits
plan members of our Contract Customers, comprising insurance
companies and corporations. We also serve self-paid patients who
visit UMP medical centres. We understand that our patients rely on
us to maintain their health and well-being. We honour the trust our
patients and Contract Customers place in us, and in return, we
reassure them by maintaining service quality and serving them in a
professional and ethical manner. For more information about our

patients, please refer to "Our Patients”.

Our relationship with practitioners

UMP relies on practitioners, which include doctors, dentists and
auxiliary service providers, to provide direct services to patients.
They are the direct touch-point of our patients. Their professional
and ethical conduct is crucial to our business success.

The Company strives to maintain a sustainable standard in its
business practices. The practitioners practising in UMP medical
centres are duly qualified and competent to provide professional
services to our customers and patients with due care. Affiliated
practitioners registered in our panel network are considered
suppliers of the Group and do not exclusively serve the Group.
These affiliated practitioners are engaged by a dedicated team
through regular clinic visits.

It is crucial for us to maintain a network of practitioners covering a
vast geographical area. We consider this as one of our competitive
advantages in the corporate healthcare solution market.

Our relationship with suppliers

Apart from our affiliated practitioners, we procure mainly medicine
and medical equipment from pharmaceutical companies and
suppliers of medical consumables. The Group adopts a centralised
procurement system where the Group purchases and stocks up on
drug items and medical consumables centrally and in bulk and
distributes to medical centres as and when required. The medical
centres are solely responsible for maintaining their own drug items
and medical consumables inventory. This has allowed the Group to
control the quality and costs of our purchases as well as risks
associated with corruption and bribery.
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The qualifications of suppliers as required by applicable laws, and
whether the products or services fit our purpose are our top
priorities in making purchasing decisions. While the environmental
and social risks of our supply chain, such as pollution and
infringement of labour rights, are considered low in general, the
environmental and social performance of suppliers is a less

important priority.

Our relationship with employees

Our workforce in direct employment relationships with the Group
comprises 119 corporate staff and 288 clinical staff. They provide a
strong support in ensuring the smooth operation of our business
and play an important role in supporting the delivery of efficient
services to our Contract Customers and patients. As such, talent
attraction, retention and development are the key concerns and
focuses of the Group. For more information about our employees,
please refer to “Our Employees”.

OUR PATIENTS

The well-being of our patients forms the cornerstone of the Group's
business. We strive to be a patient-oriented healthcare services
provider by taking patients’ interests to heart. Enhancing patients’
trust and confidence is our everyday goal, and we hope that we can
provide our patients with good experience whilst using our
services.

SERVICE QUALITY ASSURANCE

To reassure our patients and provide quality healthcare services,
the Group has authorised the Quality Assurance & Safety
Committee, which comprises a group of senior medical specialists
in different disciplines and the Group’s Dental Director, to monitor
the performance of our medical centres and provide advice on the
continual improvement of our clinical and professional services.

SAFEGUARDING PATIENTS' RIGHTS

We respect every patient without regard to individual differences.
The Group does not tolerate any discrimination and ensures that
every patient is treated equally while using our healthcare services.
In addition, we ensure that our patients have access to accurate
information regarding diagnostic results, treatment options, service
fees and other appropriate information.
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PROTECTION OF PATIENT PRIVACY

Collection and documentation of patients’ personal information,
especially their medical history, is essential for provision of
appropriate treatment. The Group strictly follows the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) relating to
the collection, retention, handling, disclosure and use of personal
data, including medical history. We respect the patients’ right to
confidentiality and take responsibility for protecting our patients’
information. To avoid information leakage to unauthorised third
parties, we strictly control the risk of improper use of information.
Procedures have been set up to guide employees on handling
printed and electronic documents with personal data.

PATIENT RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT

Professional and quality service starts with listening to our patients’
needs and concerns. Through establishing communication
platforms, we hope to engage and build stronger bonds with our
patients. The Group is among the early adopters of mobile apps as
a client engagement platform in the healthcare industry of
Hong Kong. The mobile app, “UMP AR % “, has been provided to
healthcare benefits plans’ members as a platform to access our
latest information, such as the availability of our doctors, the range
of healthcare services offered, and the location and opening hours
of our medical centres.

Patients are also welcomed to provide feedback or file complaints
through the Group's website, hotline, or directly to our frontline
staff. We keep a detailed record of the incident together with the
complainant’s information and will subsequently launch an internal
investigation. If the complaint relates to medical and dental
practice, it will be passed to our Quality Assurance & Safety
Committee for further investigation.
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CLINIC ENVIRONMENT AND INFECTION
CONTROL

Environmental hygiene at our medical centres is given the top
priority at UMP. Through the introduction of appropriate pathogen
control, the Group believes that safe delivery of our services can be
achieved.

In the design of our medical centres, the Group has always adhered
to the compliance of laws and regulations and strive to maintain
high standard of clinic environment and infection control. We
ensure our medical centres are adequately ventilated and
illuminated. Sufficient water supply facilities, sanitary facilities and
hand-washing facilities are available to our patients and employees.
Further actions are also taken for preventing the transmission of
disease within clinics, concerning for example proper sterilisation
procedures and treatment of reusable medical equipment. These
procedures and guidelines are easily accessible by our clinical staff.
Proper training on clinical infection control is also provided to
clinical staff with the aim of reducing transmissible disease at our
medical centres and improving staff knowledge on epidemic
diseases.

Proper handling of waste generated is also a means of controlling
infection. For our approach to treating clinical and general waste,
please refer to “Our environment — Treatment of waste”.

OUR PRACTITIONERS

The professionalism of our doctors, dentists, auxiliary service
providers and other medical professionals in the UMP Network
defines who we are. Our reputation as a leading healthcare
solutions provider is built on the skills, competence and integrity of
our network of practitioners. It is, therefore, crucial for the Group to
carefully select our practitioners and regularly review their service

quality.
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We adhere to a deliberated process to identify and attract qualified
and suitable practitioners to join our network, and also ensure all
our practitioners are competent to deliver healthcare services with
quality to our patients. The Group also provides necessary
resources to support the practitioners to enhance their skills and
knowledge. Policies on selection, remuneration and training are
regularly reviewed by senior management to deliver clinical care
that meets or exceeds local and international standards, and to
promote sustainable growth of the Group's business.

OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group depends on the skills, competence and attitude of our
employees to deliver quality healthcare services to our patients.
Through investing in attracting, retaining and developing our
employees, we aim to be the employer of choice within the
healthcare industry. We are committed to being a family-friendly
employer, and have introduced family-friendly employment policies
and practices at work to foster a pro-family culture. The Group was
awarded as a Family-friendly Employer in 2016 by the Family
Council as recognition of our efforts.

OUR WORKFORCE AS OF 30 JUNE 2017

Total workforce

Composition by gender
Male
Female

Composition by employee category
Corporate staff
Clinical staff

Composition by age group
<30
30-39
40-49
> 50

Composition by location
Hong Kong
Macau
PRC
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WORKFORCE TURNOVER AS OF 30 JUNE
2017

Overall turnover rate

Turnover rate by gender
Male
Female

Turnover rate by employee category
Corporate staff
Clinical staff

Turnover rate by age group
<30
30-39
40-49
> 50

Turnover rate by location
Hong Kong
Macau
PRC

OUR EMPLOYMENT POLICY

Together with our employees, we embrace a disciplined and
collaborative working environment. Detailed rules and guidelines in
the Staff Handbook lay out our expectations for employee conduct
as well as the employees’ rights and responsibilities in the
workplace. Our emphasis on anti-discrimination and equal
opportunity in the workplace are outlined in the Equal Opportunity
Policy within the Staff Handbook. The policy was developed to
ensure that every all our employment practices are free from
discrimination, harassment, vilification and victimisation. Under the
policy, our employees and any applicant for employment are
protected from any form of discrimination, including sex,
pregnancy, disability, race, marital status, family status or sexual
orientation, during the employment period or job application.
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As part of our comprehensive employee benefits package, all
employees are entitled to enjoy rest days, statutory holidays, paid
annual leave, sick leave, maternity and paternity leave,
bereavement leave and examination leave. Our employees can
participate in a medical and dental scheme which is designed to
cover their medical costs. In addition, we promote mental health
among our employees such as offering departmental meal
allowance, organising workshops to promote awareness in
preventing musculoskeletal disorder and working pressure as well
as various staff activities to enhance good relationship between the
staff.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

Promoting employee development is the Group’s long-term
initiative. In addition to mandatory orientation training, we arrange
for and sponsor our clinical staff to receive appropriate external
training relevant to their duties, for example training on performing
injection, blood taking and pharmaceutical dispensing. Professional
support is also offered to ensure that our employees are able to
effectively manage and administer the Group's operations. We plan
to expand our training programmes for employees in the coming
years, with a focus on clinical and customer services.

All our employees are subject to the appraisal system which reviews
their work quality, job knowledge and work attitude. While
appraisals encourage employees to continuously improve, this
process helps align employees’ personal goals with the Group's
expectations and objectives. Therefore, the results obtained
provide a valuable reference for management to reassess our
staffing policy, formulate future training plans and identify
promotion opportunities.

HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK

At UMP, we strive to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment for our employees, patients and visitors. Safety
procedures and good housekeeping practices are implemented at
our medical centres in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. Further, we take a proactive approach to improve the
health and safety at work by requesting our staff to report all
identified safety hazards and unsafe medical procedures to the
clinic-in-charge and the Human Resources & Administration
Department.
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We believe every employee plays a role in creating a safe and
healthy workplace. Employees are required to follow appropriate
safety procedures as set out in the General Office Safety and
Housekeeping Rules. Special medical equipment, such as
irradiating apparatuses, can only be operated by certified staff.
Staff performing certain medical procedures are required to use
protective equipment and clothing to prevent injury or infection.
Further, regular training concerning the safe and proper use of
medical equipment is provided to clinical staff.

Infection control at clinics is also a significant means of keeping our
employees healthy and safe. Please refer to “Our patients — Clinic
environment and infection control” for details.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BUSINESS ETHICS

As a professional healthcare service provider, we strive to maintain
high ethical standards. As the Group continues to grow, we will
work with our employees to maintain our strong ethical values.

There is no tolerance to any form of corruption at UMP. Guidelines
in the Staff Handbook formally establish our expectations for our
employees when receiving gifts from suppliers and clients. In order
to prevent conflict of interest, employees are recommended to
return gifts with a written explanation, donate them to charity
through the Group or keep the gift and make a donation to charity
which is equal to the market value of the gift. Where necessary, we
require our employees to report to their supervisors and the Human
Resources & Administration Department.

The Group encourages openness, accountability and transparency.
When inappropriate behaviour or violations of the Group's Code of
Conduct is observed, employees can file a written report directly to
the Head of Human Resources & Administration, General Manager,
or the Chairman. During the reporting year, no legal cases
regarding corruption were brought against the Group or our
employees.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group is aware of the environmental impact of and risks
resulting from our operations, from the generation of waste to the
consumption of energy and other resources. We take responsibility
for our operations by incorporating a commitment to environmental
protection and conservation of resources into the Group's policies.
Our policy assists us to consider environmental sustainability in our
decision making process and to evaluate the environmental impacts
of our operations while maintaining a high standard of quality and
reliable services.

TREATMENT OF WASTE

The operations of the Group are subject to environmental
regulations, including those relating to medical waste disposal. We
recognise the potential risk to both the environment and human
health if medical waste is not properly treated. It is our duty to
handle waste in a legal, safe and professional manner.

Written procedures in relation to handling medical waste have
been effectively implemented at UMP medical centres to ensure
that waste is properly managed and safely disposed of. Training is
provided to all our clinical staff to make sure they are well aware of
the procedures. We dispose of all medical waste generated at our
medical centres in Sharps Boxes, which are further stored in plastic
bags. The plastic bags are stored at a designated area inside our
centres until they are collected by a licensed waste collector once a
month for further treatment. During the reporting year,
approximately 4.15 tonnes of medical waste were handled at our
medical centres, including but not limited to used tweezers, used
syringes, contaminated pads and cotton balls, used suction tubes
for computer tomography, human tissue specimens after
examination, dental amalgams and expired medicine.

In addition to medical waste, our medical centres generate a
significant amount of general, non-hazardous waste, which includes
paper, face masks, plastic gloves, drug packaging, disposable
gowns and bedding, and other uncontaminated containers. These
types of waste are handled separately from medical waste, but also
with care.
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RESOURCE CONSUMPTION

The provision of healthcare services at UMP involves the
consumption of paper. The consumption of paper in our medical
centres is mainly used for patient registration forms, medical
records and prescription labels. The Group has been exploring
opportunities to upgrade and enhance our clinical management
and administrative IT systems in order to achieve optimal use of
resources. For instance, the Group is planning to upgrade the
Group's E-Claims system and electronic medical records software,
which is expected to reduce the consumption of paper.

Electricity consumption is the most significant source of energy
consumption at UMP. Electricity consumption at medical centres is
mainly due to the use of medical equipment, for example
sterilisation with high temperature and x-ray imaging apparatuses,
and general lighting. The use of medical equipment at medical
centres is, however, inevitable for diagnosis and treatment. The
technical competence of equipment is our top priority in making
purchasing decisions and energy rating is a secondary priority.
Nevertheless, we continuously explore energy conservation
initiatives to reduce energy consumption from other energy
sources. We have installed LED lighting in some of our medical

centres.

Packaging is often involved in our operations due to the nature of
our business. Plastic zipper bags and plastic bottles, in particular,
are used for packaging medicine and drugs dispensed to patients.
Such packaging is essential for keeping medicine appropriate for
consumption. As such, we see limited potential in significant
reduction of the consumption of packaging materials.
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OUR COMMUNITY

It is our mission to promote public health in the communities we
serve. Besides providing excellent healthcare service to our
patients, we make an effort to care for the health and well-being of
the wider public. Our continual commitment in taking the
responsibility to care for the community has gained us recognition
as a Caring Company, awarded by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services.

During the year, we focused our resources in raising awareness on
public health. By leveraging our knowledge and resources, the
Group has published health education leaflets, and organised
healthcare seminars and exhibitions. This year, we also partnered
with Orbis in World Sight Day 2016 to show our commitment to
fighting blindness and vision impairment around the world. The
Group also participants in Carol Singing Festival organised by Child
Development Matching Fund, a poverty relief initiative introduced
by the Hong Kong Government, for the 7th consecutive year. The
Group donated approximately HK$20,050 to several charitable
communities during FY2017.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for FY2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set out
in “Chairman Statement” on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report and
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 28 of this
annual report, which forms part of this report of Directors. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, key
relationship between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers, the environmental policies of the Group and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
are set out below.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Groups' results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Strategy Risk

As part of business strategy, the Group has recently begun to
expand its operations to certain major cities in the PRC. As the
Group has very limited experience in the PRC market, such
expansion strategies are subject to uncertainties and risks such as
strain on managerial, operational and financial resources,
competition with existing healthcare services providers in the PRC,
differences in the business, regulatory and political environment,
difficulties in obtaining the requisite permits, licences, certificates
or other government approvals in connection with the Group's
operation in the PRC, difficulties in establishing a brand, reputation
and new customer base, difficulties in recruiting skilled and
qualified healthcare professionals and management personnel, and
difficulties in securing suitable premises for the medical centres. In
addition, the private healthcare market in the PRC is still
developing. Medical expenses of corporate employees are
currently covered by mandatory government insurance
programmes. There is no assurance that corporations in the PRC
will be willing to top up healthcare benefits payment for their
employees and offer additional healthcare services by private
providers, such as the Group.
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Reputation Risk

The Group's success in Hong Kong depends significantly on the
recognition of its brand and reputation as a leading corporate
healthcare solutions provider. However, Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers working in the Group may from time to
time be subject to complaints, allegations or legal actions
regarding the adequacy of patient care, treatment outcome and
medical services provided, which may harm the business, results of
operations, financial condition, brand and reputation of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group's business operations, Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary
Services Providers in the Group’s network working in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC are subject to extensive laws, regulations and
licensing requirements, any failure to comply with such laws,
regulations or licensing requirement could harm the Group's
business, results of operations, financial condition, brand and
reputation.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE GROUP
AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure the
Group's sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group recognises the importance
of good environmental stewardship. In this connection, the Group
strictly adopted and implemented policies and procedures to
ensure environmental protection. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in relation
to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. During FY2017, no
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions

were reported to our management.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC while the Company
is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its
Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our
establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. During FY2017, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC in all material aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for FY2017 and the Group's financial
position as at 30 June 2017 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 119 to 126 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents
per Share for FY2017 (FY2016: HK2.0 cents). The proposed final
dividend will be subject to approval of shareholders of the
Company at the 2017 AGM to be held on Thursday, 30 November
2017 and is payable to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
7 December 2017. It is expected that the final dividend will be paid
on or about Thursday, 21 December 2017.

Together with the interim dividend of HKO0.5 cent per Share paid in
April 2017, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for
FY2017 will be HK2.7 cents per Share (FY2016: HK2.0 cents per
Share).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of this Report of
Directors, are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on page
251. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company for FY2017 are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
FY2017.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for FY2017
are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 30 June 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$372,206,000, of which HK$16,283,000
has been proposed as final dividend for FY2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group's property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

BORROWINGS

During FY2017, the Group did not have any bank borrowings or
entering into any bank loan facility and as at 30 June 2017, the
Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings or
indebtedness.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets during the year are set out in section
headed "Pledge of Assets” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
Charitable contributions made by the Group during FY2017
amounted to approximately HK$20,050.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2017, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 31.85% of the Group's
revenue for the year and the largest customer included therein
accounted for 11.92%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the
year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
shareholders of the Company that owned more than 5% of the
issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during FY2017.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during FY2017 and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix
Mr. Jiang Tianfan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBs JP

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Notes:

(1) As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15 June 2017, Mr.
Jiang Tianfan resigned as a director of the Company on 15 June 2017 due to
his other personal engagements.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. The details
of Directors (as required by the Listing Rules) who will retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM, will be
provided in the accompanying circular. The re-election of each
Director will be subject to vote of shareholders of the Company by
separate resolutions.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Tsang On Yip,
Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike
shall retire by rotation at the 2017 AGM. All the said Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2017
AGM.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company the names and the
titles and nature of office held in the public companies or
organisations prior to the acceptance of the appointment and
promised to inform the Company timely of any relevant change.
The Company will also require Directors to submit written
confirmation twice a year, and update their biographical details, if
any.

THE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out in pages 29 to 37 of this
annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a three-year
service contract with the Company, subject to termination before
expiry by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years which commenced from the date of his appointment
and shall be terminable by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2017 AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration payable to the senior management in
the Group are as follows:

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000
1,500,000 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T

BAFHTESNBELRIE

ARRIEEESBLIFRTESRIE LA
FEIMEAMEB RS R EB LS M BN
ERFEERE - ARARRAAEILIFNT
EEYBBIAL -

EENRESH
ERTERCEARAT L= FMREAL
AWARE A B AR — FELRM=EAR
BT HBEBAK L -

BEBUIIFPTESCEARBRILRER - B
HZERRER N RE=F  ZEKATA
ER—HTEIREAM=ZEARE T ELEREAN
ML °

BEZZNEE017FRRAEFAS B2
BENEEEARFR LA BHARR KB
REN—FARLEMBAFELEECEERE
BN RIS B X -

EEREREEENTH
EERARE DA RETEE 2 FHFERRN
RERIRA T REM T RS -

ENAKESREREABZHFNFENOT

Number of Employee
(FY2017)

BEAK
017 FRFE)

82

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Report of Directors

EFEHE

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's remuneration policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and a share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out in pages 87 to 92 of
this annual report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during FY2017.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic
Group Limited and EM Team Limited, our controlling Shareholders,
have undertaken to the Company in a deed of non-compete
undertaking that, subject to and except as mentioned in the
Prospectus, they would not carry on, engage, invest, participate or
otherwise be interested in any business which competes or is likely
to compete with any of the existing and/or future businesses
carried on by any member of the Group in relation to the provision
of corporate healthcare solutions and consultancy services in non-
UMP medical centres in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-compete undertaking for
disclosure in this annual report during FY2017. No new business
opportunity was informed by them as at 30 June 2017. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-compete undertaking and are
of the view that the non-competition undertakings have been
complied with by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited
and EM Team Limited for FY2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business at any time during FY2017 and up to and including the
date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were set out
below:

EERFETHRAERAQFHE
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(i) The Company (i) &AQF
Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares shareholding (%)
E=nA e/ KR B/ HERAHE AR R ELBI (%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 14,300,000 1
FTH ) ERAEA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,426,000 2
8 Filih A
Long position Interest held by his controlled 243,756,343 3
e corporations
EnmEEERSE
260,482,343 35.32
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen  Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 1
PEELT HE EnlEEA
Long position Beneficial owner 17,748,657
HE ERfEEA
29,128,657 3.95
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares shareholding (%)
Esps HE/ KR A7) B4,/ HERAEE BARR LA (%)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 10,242,000 1
FRBEE i) ExfAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,138,000
3] ExfAA
11,380,000 1.54
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 1
BXEEL e ERfAA
Long position Beneficial owner 11,990,000
3] ERlEEA
12,590,000 1.7
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 1 0.08
BRERE HE BEHEBA
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBSJP  Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.03
FHBRE sagngs Aer)  HR E&BAA
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBSJP  Long position Beneficial owner 308,000 0.04

TERBE mengs A THL) 1A

ExHAA

Notes:

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 18 August 2015 pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 30 June 2016 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation,
and is also deemed to be interested in 44,155,000 Shares held by EM
Team Limited, also being his controlled corporation.
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(i) Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the
SFO)

Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited "

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity

EEpR HE/ %R

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Long position Beneficial owner
Michael

BXBEE Sy} EmBAA

(i) HEZEE(ERERIFZRHERH)

EREBEXEREBRFLOARQTM

Approximate
Number of  percentage of

shares shareholding (%)

BHEE BORRELH (%)

625 6.25

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited @

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity

tHsEEH O HIRPOERLAT

Approximate
Number of  percentage of
shares shareholding (%)

EEnA "R/ KR 227) REOEE ARSI (%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Long position Beneficial owner 95 7.60
Michael
BN EBREAE e BEoEE A
Notes: FifsE -

(1) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited.

2) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway Bay
MRI Centre Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18
August 2015. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as
follows:

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees. In determining the basis
of eligibility of each eligible participants, the Board would
take into account such factors as the Board may at its
discretion consider appropriate.

(b) Summary of Key Terms
o The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all outstanding share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 44,908,000, being
approximately 6.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2017.

. The subscription price for the Shares under the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$1.2228 per Share.

. All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may only exercise their options in the
following manner: (i) 10% of the option shares shall only
be exercisable from the first anniversary of the grant
date up to and including the end of the Option Period;
and (ii) 90% of the option shares shall only be
exercisable from the second anniversary of the grant
date up to and including the end of the Option Period.

. The “Option Period” means the period from the Listing
Date and end on the date immediately before the
seventh anniversary of the Listing Date.

o the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was only in force
during the period from 18 August 2015 to 9 November
2015, and no further options are to be granted
thereunder but in all other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the exercise of any options granted.
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(c) Outstanding Options Granted under the Pre-IPO Share (c)
Option Scheme
Details of movements of the share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June
2017 are as follows:

REBXLOHBXEMNBRESEHCRY
(Y 12 R AT RE RS AR A
HE2017F6A30BEFEHERARE
ERBREEE T RENEREEH
BT

Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BREETIFRINROHE
Cancelled/
Exercise Asat Granted  Exercised Lapsed
price 1 July during during during
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share  Exercise period 2016 the year the year the year
R2016F 35}
5N B Riti B8 BROEE &S 7R1R  ERERE FREMHE HE/ KN
(dd/mm/yyyy) (HK$)  (dd/mm/yyyy)
( ) (#7) )
Directors
£
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Chairman, Chief Executive 18/08/2015 1.2208 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,430,000 - - - 1,430,000
Officer and Executive 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 12,870,000 - - - 12,870,000
Director
FRIEE IF - TREHRATES
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Managing Director and 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 - - - 1,138,000
Jacquen Executive Director 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
PEELL BELOERNTES
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
DRERE BiTESF 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - - - 540,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Executive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
ExBEE HTE% 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - - - 540,000
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Executive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 - 1,138,000 - -
FRHB #HiTEs 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
Sub-total: 38,260,000 1,138,000 37,122,000
et
Employees
]
in aggregate - 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 354,000 - 354,000 - -
A 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
Sub-total: 3,540,000 354,000 3,186,000
Bt
Other eligible grantees
HAERRERA
In aggregate - 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 460,000 - - - 460,000
Ak 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 4,140,000 - - - 4,140,000
Sub-total: 4,600,000 4,600,000
et
Total: 46,400,000 1,492,000 44,908,000
a5t
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015. Details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward the Eligible Persons (as defined in sub-
paragraph (b) below) for their contribution to the Group and
to align their interests with that of the Company so as to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

Participants

The Board (including any committee or delegate of the Board
appointed by the Board to perform any of its functions
pursuant to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme)
may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may
determine to an employee (whether full-time or part-time) or
a director of a member of the Group or associated companies
of the Company (the “Eligible Persons”).

Total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
(including but not limited to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No options shall be granted to any Eligible Person under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other Share option
schemes of the Company which, if exercised, would result in
such Eligible Person becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of Shares as, when aggregated with the total number
of Shares already issued or to be issued to him under all
options granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the
Shares in issue at such date.

BARALBRERBIRESE
ARATN205F 1M A2EHEMB R AMARE
BEERRAERTE - BN AMBERBIEAEIE
BT

(2 B
BRAABERBRETENENET
HELEBHSERALTITX(O) DB
FTAE)HASEELNER - SHAZ
HBARNBME— 0 BAKBHERNIE
FARAEEE -

28RE

EXS (BREFERBEERARAEER
BREAINRASBETERAMERE
MEMZESHREETIAR) T2ENE
QRS-S9 PN NN A NG
BE(TwmEBRE) XEF(SER
ATDEIBRE URABEESAE
EWNERRHEA -

(b)

() ABRTRHBE
BEERAAZREEERESEI AR
AR E AR AR 8 (BB E TR Y
RN ER BB E) B FREMAT
EEREETERBETEHITNROE
o AHTEBAR ETRABEETR
DIRER) 10% ©

BESRETERERN LR

R IE B R AP % SR E AR ERT 8 A
REMEAE A B R B AER S B
ATEHOBRERITER  S8ER
AEERALAERBNRMNDEE
FERBERREREZOAR(BHEZ
R)IE@EREANEMERNZME
Pt (BREITE - SEELRARITER
B Mo A BITIREEETHR
AR HEEZ B E BTN 1% RIF
SIRBEERAFEERBIRET S RA
NEEREAMEEER & R&B e ER
AT FEAAE -

(d)
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(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

Any vested option which has not lapsed and which conditions
have been satisfied or waived by the Board in its sole
discretion may, unless the Board determines otherwise in its
absolute discretion, be exercised at any time from the next
business day after the offer of options has been accepted.
Any option which remain unexercised shall lapse upon the
expiry of the option period, which period shall be determined
by the Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer
date of the option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum
period for which an option must be held and performance
targets that must be achieved before an option can be
exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing or
by telex or facsimile transmission or (if the Board agree) by
electronic communication received by the Chairman (or a
person designated by him with the approval of the Board) for
such period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from, the
date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to the
Eligible Person concerned provided that no such offer shall
be open for acceptance after the expiry of the duration of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An offer of options not
accepted within this period shall lapse.

An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option and such payment shall not be refundable
and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise
price.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of offer of the option; (i) the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (jii) the nominal
value of the Shares.

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

TEBRERBRD 2R

BREZSREABURBERSTEEN
EAA] B 53 88 T R 28 20 R0 i A A 10 2 A {1
HREFSREEEBBRER LGNS
% AREABREZORNOT —EZ
X BBERTEE o i RTTE M BB A2
RIBREHIR E MRS R - LR
HEFSET ATFBEEABREEY
B HEE 14 -

TEBREMNCAFABREZREN
fR
EEENEERNBERENBRIEETRE
WA 75 8 B O 2 A 8 A IR I ZRE K
ZREBR

BEABRECHRRZEABREREM
IE
BRETNREZSGATLBNEHEAE
BATHEBSE(HENRRE(RE
ZHE)FT30AA) M - ZA R
ERMAYBBERXBEEX(NESS
AE)BBEFE(REEEEFSMHAR
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B AR CREERERESSH
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Life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme () BARALAHRERBRENEZES

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire automatically BEERARAREERERETENREA
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of BIEER - B AHAEERERETS
the Listing Date, subject to early termination provisions in the BEEE FMER AT —RKEPE
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. e

The summary below sets out the details of the movement TXHEINERBERAFEERERE
during the year ended 30 June 2017 of all the options granted BRI EEREREZ=2017F6
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme: A30BIEFENEHFE

Number of Shares issuable
under the share options
BRETTFRIRGHE
Cancelled/
Exercise As at Granted  Exercised lapsed As at
Date of price  Exercise 1 July during during during 30 June

Grantee grant per Share  period 2016 the year the year the period 2017
R2016F HRE  R17F
ERA RHAM BROGEE  THEY 7A1B  FRERE FRETE ZH/ XM 6A30A
(dd/mm/yyyy) (HKS)  (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/B/%) (Bn) (B/R/%)

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong 30/06/2016 127 30/06/2017 1,213,000 - - - 1,213,000
(Chairman, Chief -29/06/2021
Executive Officer and
Executive Director) 30/06/2018 1,213,000 - - - 1,213,000
FRIRE -29/06/2021
(2R fTHAHF
HiTEE)
Total 2,426,000 - - - 2426000
4
No share option was granted, exercised, expired, cancelled HZE2017F 68308 IHEE - EER
or lapsed under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during REARTE B 0 N B B = 14 BE AR A S 2 e 4T
the year ended 30 June 2017. W ITE - B - SERyehen o
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The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all the share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 73,600,000, being 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares currently available for issue under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 23,174,000 Shares,
representing approximately 3.13% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June
2016, to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives for
the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the
adoption date. The maximum number of Shares which may be
awarded to a selected participant under the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed one per cent (1%) of the issued share capital of the
Company in each year. The Board shall not make any further award
of awarded shares which will result in the nominal value of the
Shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding two per cent (2%) of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not granted
and vested any Shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Scheme” in this report, at no time
during FY2017 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

RERARBEEABREAERERA
RBERBRESBATRO ZMAR
BAEERHITER - HB A EITZK
7 8B R %&73,600,000% - BNA 2 A
R A HE BITARA10% °

REBEEAARAEERERESENT
TR AR 0 48 815 23,174,000 % + 48
ERAFHRAPARARABEBEHITRALY
3.13% °

% 17 3% B =t &l
RABER20165 6 830 B AR (7 2B &t
ZEAETAEBREIEERAER (BIEES
BRERE  XBERKEB)NERKSG
FRENTTE o IR0 RENET S 5 R B A RET
10FAER - MESSREETRERTER
BRI - REROERTESFARTERE
B2HEENBRHESHE TEBBARFE %
TRAME D2 — (1%) © i — & L =ZERK
NEERESGRERG BB R LR,
HEBAAARITHREETRANBE D 2=
2% - AIZEESTNEE— SR ERRY -

RAFRAEE - AAFL R B s E
2R SR B A AR -

ESWERONES ZEF

BRIANRE [RE AT &1 ) I [ Betn 22t &l ]
SEIRPTREIN - 72017 B B E A A ] B
B ARBHEERMEARHRARME AR
BER LS EF A BB AR B S AT EAME
B R oD SRAB 7 R BT 2 B o

92

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Report of Directors

EFERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance subsisted in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of
FY2017.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director and officer of the Company
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs and damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by
or omitted in or about the execution of their duties in their
respective office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2017, so far as was known to the Directors of the
Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial Long/short

shareholder position Capacity

"E/ %

FERRES L8

Beneficial owner

EGHEA

East Majestic Group Limited  Long position

8

Beneficial owner

ExBAA

EM Team Limited Long position

30

g%ﬁ’éijﬁﬁ% C RYHEHNZE

BRAGFHRATWEEIN - R2017HERFEA K
FR BMESFNEEFAMENTRE - ™MD
AFBNEAR S  KHAENTERIRE
BAE KRR

ESNEEFRERX

RIBFFRRA] - ARARREMEHMITEN
ARBEERDHFANBATERNRREE N
ERMERER  EERXEEA-ATEAR
HRETESEREBIEPRELBRENEAM
REMSIBEE RS ARAERFR BAK

BEMRAXMEXEE -

ARRERAEEEZLSRAERBEEN
BEERERABEERR

FERRRAQTRG RAEARRKRG
RIS ROR R

R201756 A30H » IBARBEEMA - A
TAL/BERB(BFXARAEETRAER
SMRARB Z P RBBERMDFHEE - A
BREBARBESLMEHRIFEXVEE2
Ko 393 BRG X IRI AR 22 ) R b 22 P 4 B8 2 M s
HR - RN AR AARERE S LG D)
ERIFRFEZECMAZERIKXR

Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying shareholding
shares (%)
R4,/ 166 B R A
R E R (%)
199,601,343 1 27.06
44,155,000 1 5.99
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Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares (%)
R4, 1HE BLA R BR L I
TERRMSE =87 ROBE (%)
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
(Holdings Il) Limited controlled corporations
e RRMERNEERSE
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
(Holdings) Limited controlled corporations
iR EamEEEERAE
Chow Tai Fook Capital Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
Limited controlled corporations
e RRmETEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
Limited controlled corporations
EARE (7R) BRAR] 1B REMARNEERE
CTFE Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
controlled corporation
BRBRE iR EamEEEERE
Healthcare Ventures Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 14.97
iR BERBEEA
CR Phoenix Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
controlled corporations
B A REMARNEERE
Unison Champ Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 14.97
controlled corporation
iR EahmEEEERE
Pinyu Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 14.97
m e EREAA
94 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes:

1. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343 Shares held
by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation, and was also
deemed to be interested in the 44,155,000 Shares held by EM Team Limited,
also being his controlled corporation. Dr. Sun’s interests in Shares are disclosed
in this annual report in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its associated Corporations”.

2. Healthcare Ventures was wholly-owned by CTFE, which was wholly-owned by
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH"). CTFH was held as to 78.58% by
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC"), which was in turn held as to 48.98%
by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited ("CYTF") and as to 46.65% by
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited (“CYTFII"). By virtue of the SFO,
CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIl were deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare Ventures was interested.

3. Pinyu was wholly-owned by Unison Champ Limited, which was wholly- owned
by CR Phoenix. By virtue of the SFO, Unison Champ Limited and CR Phoenix
were deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Pinyu was
interested.

According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock
Exchange website, Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMF")
and Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. (“"SLCMLF")
beneficially owned 97,750,000 and 20,382,000 Shares respectively.
SLCMF was held as to 80.93% by Snow Lake China Offshore Fund,
Ltd. (“SLCOFL") and accordingly SLCOFL was deemed to be
interested in the 97,750,000 Shares held by SLCMF pursuant to the
SFO. Snow Lake Capital Limited (“SLCL") and Snow Lake Capital
(HK) Limited ("SLCHKL"), which were wholly controlled by Mr. Ma
Sean, were the investment manager and the investment adviser to
both SLCMF and SLCMLF respectively. Accordingly, Mr. Ma Sean,
SLCL and SLCHKL were deemed to be interested in the aggregate
holding of 118,132,000 Shares owned by SLCMF and SLCMLF
pursuant to the SFO, representing, for illustrative purpose, 16.02%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2017.
Out of these 118,132,000 Shares, 84,476,000 Shares (representing,
for illustrative purpose, 11.45% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 30 June 2017) are interests in cash-settled equity
derivatives.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the Directors
have not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

MEEE -

1. TR T & A W0 AR B 7 1845 %1 2 7% [ East Majestic
Group Limited 5 & #9 199,601,343 i% % 15 9 1 & #
e REATHEBRRNBE KRB RESH 2 EZEEM
Team Limited 575 844,155,000 A& A% D R 15 ©
REERBROZERERAFE [EERFETH
ABRARAIEBEEE 2 B’ - AHRARG & E
HFaER AR | —EREE o

2. Healthcare Ventures B A AE X2 EHA - /&
AECEHARE@FER)BRAR(CIFHD 28
# A o CTFHE# Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
(TCTFC]) %5 H78.58% &) i # - M CTFCH 5l M
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited ([ CYTF)
. Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
(TCYTFIL) #57 48.98% K 46.65% HI IR #E 1R 1K & %
RERERA - MAMEEE - CTFH » CTFC » CYTF &
CYTFII#1% & 1 Healthcare Ventures ¥ 5 # = ) A
—HARRFRRG AR

3. i #4 B Unison Champ Limited 2 & #A + 1 Unison
Champ Limited HE BRI A B EZEHE - RIEFE
% KBS 5] - Unison Champ Limited & # & Bl &
EEER AN MR EGERNRE — SR EAE

25
m °

RIBE X TR A SRS HEER - Snow
Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. ([SLCMF]) &
Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd.
([SLCMLF]) & Bl & =5 ¥ A 97,750,000 % &
20,382,000/ F& 17 o SLCMF H5 Snow Lake
China Offshore Fund, Ltd. ([SLCOFL]) # &
8093% M MIBEZES B EIKA -
SLCOFL# 48 &1 SLCMF ffT # 97,750,000 A% %
DHREEREZ HEERELEZEEFN
Snow Lake Capital Limited ([SLCL]) X Snow
Lake Capital (HK) Limited ([SLCHKL]) &
SLCMF & SLCMLF 2 12 E B IR A RITERIM ©
Eit - BIEBEBFHFRBEKRG - FE8EE-
SLCL }2 SLCHKL# 1% & 5 SLCMF K& SLCMLF
A 45 H 2 118,132,000 B 15 R B fE % (12
HEPARAE  HER2017F6A308 AR A
BT AR4R%E16.02%) ° F35% 118,132,000 i%
B - 84,476,000 %15 (252 AR A & - 48
ER2017F6A30BAAR B EITRALLLE
11.45%) B AR S EERESTTE T A 2 s -

BEXHBEESIN N2017F6A308 EF
T ARHBTAMAL(BEFIARTRSITRA
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERS

Save for the transactions mentioned below, none of such related B TXFTILRZ S9N - EBEA LTS EXIR
party transactions constituted a non-exempt connected transaction 1§ F T RBIE 14 A SN R QAT FEHREBER
or a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuantto S FERIER S - AR A B HNE E R M IR
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with  1BE#IE BT TR BNE 14AZHIFERTE ©
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

as and where applicable and relevant.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions FRRSERERS

The Company has entered into certain non-exempt continuing AR RIDEI VS TIERRIFEMETS - HRN
connected transactions, the annual caps and the actual transaction 20178 BEENEE FREBEEX 52 5EE
amounts of which for FY2017 are set out as follows: FT

Actual Transaction

Annual cap for Amount for

the year ended the year ended

30 June 2017 30 June 2017

Connected Transaction Connected Person (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
BZ2017% BZ2017%

6A30ALFE 6A30ALFE

HEELR HEBRRZEH

(FEx) (FEx)
A Property Leasing Framework Agreement Rich Point Group 4,100 3918
MEREERME Rich Point & &
B. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael 5,000 3,421*
Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael BxRELE

EEXBRENER

C. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 5,000 4,541
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick EXisvid- I
BERERENERRE

D. Medical Services and Administration Agreement  UMP Healthcare (Beijing) 3,800 Nil
BERERERTZ BaB%OtR) z

E. Advisory Services Framework Agreement UMP Healthcare (Beijing) 8,000 Nil
BHARBIER BaBBOtR) =

F. Medical Services Framework Agreement CTFE 19,000 11,809
BERBERDZ BARRBEE

G. Medical Services and Administration Agreement ~ HAML 1,500 850
BEREREEHZ BEEEER

* This transaction amount includes the fees paid or payable by Causeway Bay ~— * IR P& RBEEANRD R R EE A 738 S5 ) £ iR
MRI Centre Limited, an associate of the Company, to Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael. FLOERABBNENEREXREENER -
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The above non-exempt continuing connected transactions are

subject to reporting, announcement and, in respect to items (E), (F)

and (G) above, independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

In respect of items (E) to (F) above, upon the listing of the

Company'’s Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the

Stock Exchange approved the annual caps of these continuing

connected transactions and granted a waiver to the Company from

compliance with independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

In respect of item (G) above, the Company obtained approval from

its independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 8 February 2017.

A.

Property Leasing Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Rich Point Group
entered into a property leasing framework agreement (the
"Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group leased properties from Rich Point Group for
the purposes of operating medical centres and warehouses.
The major terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

with respect to the relevant leased properties, the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and the relevant Rich
Point Group member shall enter into individual
agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions of the leasing arrangements, including rental
amount, payment method and other relevant terms;

the terms of the individual agreements shall be on
normal commercial terms or, from the Group's
perspective, more favourable to the Group;

the rental amounts payable under the lease agreements
shall reflect the then prevailing market rates and no less
favourable than the terms and conditions offered by
independent landlords or lessors of comparable
premises; and

the Property Lease Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date until 30 June 2018 and
may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.

PR BEEERSEETHR  AEN
R (5 EAL(E) » (F)R(G)R) B BCERILEIRTE ©

s LB BZ(FIEIFMREHEMEXFIMS -
RARBBMD RE R ER EHR - B Pt
ERERBWEXHNFE LR - WAARRQF
R ETEIRRIAERE

RATE I (G)ER2017E258H£17
ZARRBIRRESRIAE S E I RERE -

A MREEERGE

AN AR 20154 11 A 13 B E2Rich Point
SEFTY—OMEHEEERBE (W
HEEERBZED Bl XAEBE8RA
Rich Point E B EYE AN KL ERF
ODREE - HENEZERAT

J HEMABREME  ARm Rk HHE
Fff /8~ 7] B2 48 B Rich Point & B X
BARERI M ER % @ sTAHEE
ZHOEBGIRGEY - RiEHES
S8 IR REMABRBIER

o (AR KB — AR P SR IRAR
RN MAREME - RFHRK
HRAKEEAR

e MEWBBETENNHESEER
BRERHIRTTERETNERAEL
B E T T R EMNRR K
et -

o YFEMEEZEBEE LM AHERE
2018F 6 3081 AJEEHFRE
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The management has made reference to the historical rentals
paid for such properties to ensure that the rents payable
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are fair
and reasonable to the Group. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of
the Company, holds more than 30% interests in Rich Point.
Accordingly, Rich Point is an associate of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
and a connected person under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the total rent paid by the Company to Rich
Point Group for FY2017 was HK$4,100,000 and the actual
amount paid or payable to Rich Point Group was
HK$3,851,412.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael”),
pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael as a consultant to provide medical services, in
particular radiologist services, to the Group. The major terms
of the agreement are set out as follows:

. Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael shall provide consultancy
services to the Group, including the provision of medical
services, in particular radiologist services;

. the annual fees charged by Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael to
the Group will be negotiated on an arm’s length basis,
and shall be on normal commercial terms which, from
the Group's perspective, are no less favourable than
those which the relevant members of the Group could
obtain from independent consultants of similar
expertise, experience and reputation for a similar role,
scope of services and responsibilities under similar
circumstances; and

o the agreement shall commence from the Listing Date
until 30 June 2018 and may be renewed by mutual
consent of the parties.
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Report of Directors

EFEHE

The management has made reference to historical aggregate
fees paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr.
Sun Man Kin Michael of similar scope of services to ensure
that the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to
the Company. Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael is an executive
Director, and accordingly, a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael for FY2017 was HK$5,000,000 and
the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael was HK$3,420,953*.

* This transaction amount includes the fees paid or payable by Causeway

Bay MRI Centre Limited, an associate of the Company, to Dr. Sun Man
Kin, Michael.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick
On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick”),
pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick, as a consultant to provide Medical Services, in
particular Dental Services, to the Group. The major terms of
the agreement are set out as follows:

. Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick shall provide Dental
Services to the Group;

o the annual fees charged by Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
to the Group shall be negotiated on an arm’s length
basis, and shall be on normal commercial terms which,
from the Group's perspective, are expected to be no
less favourable than those which the relevant members
of the Group could obtain from independent
consultants of similar expertise, experience and
reputation for similar role, scope of services and
responsibilities; and

o the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick shall commence from the Listing Date until 30
June 2018 and may be renewed by mutual consent of
the parties.
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Report of Directors

EFEHE

The Company has made reference to historical aggregate
fees paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr.
Lee Pak Cheung Patrick of similar scope of services to ensure
that the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to
the Company.

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick is a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company, and accordingly, a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick for FY2017 was HK$5,000,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick was HK$4,541,261.

Medical Services and Administration Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) entered into a medical services and administration
agreement (the “Medical Services and Administration
Agreement”) to govern certain transactions between the
Group and UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group. The details of
the transactions and the major terms of the agreement are set
out as follows:

o the Group shall make available its medical centre
network in Hong Kong and the PRC and provide
Medical, Dental and other Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group;

. the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group shall make available
its medical centre network in the PRC and provide
Medical, Dental and other Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the Group;
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Report of Directors
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o the service fees payable under the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement shall be determined by the
parties through arm’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms and with reference to the prevailing
fees charged by the Group or the UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group offered to independent customers with
similar scope of services. The administration fees
incurred shall be charged on a cost basis; and

. the Medical Services and Administration Agreement
shall commence from the Listing Date for a term of
three years and may be renewed by mutual consent of
the parties.

The service fees payable under the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement have been determined by parties
through arm'’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms and with reference to the prevailing fees charged by
the Group or the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group offered to
independent customers with similar scope of services.

UMP Healthcare (Beijing) was previously a joint venture
company formed by the Group and CR Phoenix, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, on a 50:50 basis and is currently
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which is
controlled as to 30% by CR Phoenix. Accordingly, UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) was and remains an associate of CR
Phoenix and is currently a connected subsidiary of the
Company, and a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services and Administration
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees paid by the Company
to UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group for FY2017 was
HK$3,800,000 and the actual amount paid or payable to UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Group was nil.
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Report of Directors
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Advisory Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) entered into an advisory services framework
agreement (the “Advisory Services Framework Agreement”)
to govern the certain transactions between the Group and
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group. The details of the
transactions and the major terms of the agreement are set
out as follows:

the Group shall provide to the UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group, on a non-exclusive basis, advisory services
(primarily by secondment of relevant senior or
managerial personnel of the Group) in respect of certain
managerial, technical or operational functions relating
to the establishment of a medical network in the PRC
and other advisory services and Auxiliary Services as
may be agreed between the Company and UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) from time to time;

with respect to the relevant advisory services, the
relevant members of the Group and the UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Group shall enter into individual
agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions, including scope of advisory services, service
amount, payment method and other relevant terms;

the terms of, and the service amounts payable under
the individual agreements will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and an arm’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group's
perspective, are no less favourable than the prevailing
market rates of comparable scope of services;

The fees for the services to be provided under the
Advisory Services Framework Agreement by the Group
will be determined on the basis of the comparable
remuneration or fees paid to (i) independent senior or
managerial personnel and (i) doctors and dentists with
similar calibre and experience; and

the Advisory Services Framework Agreement shall be
effective from the Listing Date until 30 June 2018 and
may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.
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UMP Healthcare (Beijing) was a joint venture company formed
by the Group and CR Phoenix, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, on a 50:50 basis and is currently a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which is controlled as to
30% by CR Phoenix. Accordingly, UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
was and remains an associate of CR Phoenix and is currently a
connected subsidiary of the Company, a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Advisory Services
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees paid by the Company
to UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group for FY2017 was
HK$8,000,000 and the actual amount paid or payable to UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Group was nil.

Medical Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and CTFE has entered
into a medical services framework agreement (the “Medical
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
the employees of CTFE and/or its associates. The major terms
of the agreement are set out as follows:

. the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services to the employees of CTFE and its associates;

o the relevant members of the Group shall enter into
individual agreements which prescribe specific terms
and conditions, including scope of medical services,
service amount, payment method and other terms;

. the terms of, and the service amounts payable under,
each individual agreement will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and on an arm'’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than those which the
relevant members of the Group could offer to
independent third parties, with a comparable scope of
services; and
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. the Medical Services Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date for a term of three
years and may be renewed by mutual consent of the
parties.

The management has made reference to the prevailing price
of medical services offered by the Group to other customers
and the historical service fees the Company received for
medical services with a similar scope to ensure that the
service amounts payable during the service period are fair
and reasonable to the Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of the Company and,
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees to be received by the
Company from CTFE for FY2017 was HK$19,000,000 and the
actual amount received or receivable by the Company was
HK$11,809,274.

Medical Services and Administration Agreement with
HAML

On 15 December 2016, the Company and HAML entered into
a medical services and administration agreement (the
“Medical Services and Administration Agreement”) to govern
certain transactions between the Group and HAML and its
subsidiaries (the “"HAML Group”). The major terms of the
agreement are set out as follows:

. the Company shall, or procure the members of the
Group and their respective associates to, on a non-
exclusive basis, make available the medical centre
network of the members of the Group and their
respective associates in the PRC and Hong Kong and
provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the HAML Group;
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. HAML shall, or procure its subsidiaries to, on a non-
exclusive basis, make available the medical centre
network of the HAML Group in the PRC and Hong Kong
and provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the Group and their
respective associates;

. the Company and HAML shall enter into, or procure
their subsidiaries or associates to enter into, separate
contracts for the Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services
in accordance with the principle of the Medical Services
and Administration Agreement to set out the specific
terms and conditions of the services, including but not
limited to the scope of services, service amount,
payment method and other relevant terms;

o the service fees shall be determined by the relevant
parties through arm'’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms and with reference to the historical
service fees paid for the Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services and the prevailing fees charged by the Group
or the HAML Group offered to independent customers
with similar scope of services;

. the effective term of the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement shall commence from 23
March 2017 (being the date on which all conditions of
the Medical Services and Administration Agreement
have been fulfilled) until 31 December 2026.

HAML is a joint venture company formed by NWS Subsidiary
and Healthcare Ventures, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, on a 50:50 basis. Accordingly, HAML is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the
Medical Services and Administration Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees payable by the
Company to HAML for FY2017 was HK$1,500,000 and the
actual amount paid or payable by the Company was
HK$849,950.
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The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 30 June 2017 and confirmed that:

(@)  the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal
commercial terms or (ii) (where there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms) on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(¢)  the transactions have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that (i)
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board; (ii) nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were
not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (i) nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and (iv) with respect to the aggregate
amount of each of the above continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

The Company and all Directors had reviewed all connected
transactions and confirmed that the Company was in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group during FY2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme as
disclosed on pages 87 to 92 of this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company, or existed during
FY2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
provided by the Snow Lake Group, and to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company had maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during FY2017.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 2017
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

%5 3L # BB 3R 5

EY:

To the shareholders of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UMP
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 119 to 250, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matters is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

REEEE
FRREAFEERERMNEXHE - K8
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREBEZEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ARELEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

B R T AL

RANETNNEEERERSEE

As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$41.4
million, which represented 6.9% of the Group's net assets.
R2017F6A30R BEFREEAMNABEET  HER B5E
BEFEMN69% °

Impairment assessment is performed by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the goodwill relates. The recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units have been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets.

ARG EEHER B ReEEEUSIReELEL AR
ZEMEEEmMEL - ReEEEM 2 ATREI SR IREEAEE
AE RYBREFECRERERAEE

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to (i) the
magnitude of the carrying amount involved; and (ii) significant
estimates involved in the estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated, including,
amongst others, expected future cash flows and discount rates.
BWEFHHBRMZETMEBEN REAANMPREAEREE
RiVEstaBmokReEE BN ERABEMIRERMG &
F(HAER) MR RReRERFTEE

The Group's accounting policies, disclosures of estimation

uncertainty and impairment assessment of goodwill are included in

notes 2.4, 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.

ﬁ%@ZAﬂ'B{” BT EERR 2 KE LB RENED
RERE R MmRMIEE24 - 3% 130

Pl

We assessed the key assumptions used in
management'’s cash flow projections for
impairment assessment of goodwill,
including, amongst others, budgeted
revenue, growth rate and discount rate,
taking into consideration the historical
results, market conditions and trends and
reliability of previous projections.

BT EEEERBERETGEL 2R
LREFAMAIERR  BRESBRE)

BEEA BERXRFELR  AERBE
B R BB IEERAZAERE -

In addition, we involved our valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the
discount rate adopted in the value in use
calculation using cash flow projections. We
also assessed the adequacy of disclosures
in connection with the impairment
assessment of goodwill

SN - AN HEERZ /\Tﬁ%ﬁj]fﬁzﬁuﬂﬁ
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREBEZEE G

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ARELEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 WK IR E T (S

RANETNMEEERERSEE

As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$56.8 million and represented 9.5% of the Group’s net assets.
Impairment assessment of trade receivables is performed by
management when there are indicators of impairment by
considering factors such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of debtors and default or significant
delay in payments.

R2017F6A30R - BEHRUFHAZERMERS68HELT  HE
B BEEEEEREZ95%  BHRWHIEZRENEHAERER
HIRBEFREET EEEREZRBEEBAREZERREINERE
RN R R RE 1 A M B2 BN B IRE AR AT e -

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to (i) the
magnitude of the carrying amount involved; and (ii) significant
estimates involved in determining the future cash flows from such
receivables based on, among others, ageing of these receivable
balances, customers’ and debtors’ creditworthiness, past repayment
history and historical write-off experience.

BEMEEHRMACEZMNEBER  RERNMMFREERERE
K (i) EE B HEWHIBH AR RE S NEAMG - HhEHEZ
FRBFIAER R  TPREBAZEE  BEERLHELB

The Group's accounting policies and disclosures of accounting
estimates on impairment assessment of loans and receivables and
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 20
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

EEERER R EYRIBRER E 2 aHEFHA R E 5 BB IER
BZEABRERED SN ERE M HmRME24 - 35820

We assessed management’s impairment
assessment by (i) sample checking the
ageing of the receivable balances, past
repayment history and historical write-off
experience; and assessing customers’ and
debtors’ creditworthiness by reference to
their financial information, where
appropriate; (ii) considering whether any
debtor or group of debtors was
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in payments; and (iii)
reviewing subsequent settlements of the
trade receivables.
HADEB()HERKRIBS G ZRE
BEETLHSBEMFLE - Y(ER)
2REFPREBAZHBEHTERE 2
EE: ()ZERLAEAEBARERA
ARIERERV BN  EL TR
K (i EHE S REFIE 2 RREMNBR -
FHEE IR E LR (E 2 R o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I ZBENHR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREBEZEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ARELEE

Purchase price allocations of business combinations

EREHZBEEIE

RANETNNEEERERSEE

On 17 October 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in

lapist ’9‘%% 2 E8 B BR A 7] (formerly known as /& 1R 5 1R FT 22 56
B R 2 7)) ("UMP Pudong”) from an independent third party for a

consideration of RMB8.3 million (equivalent to HK$9.5 million). As at
the date of acquisition, the aggregate fair value of the identifiable
net assets of UMP Pudong amounted to HK$0.9 million, with
goodwill of HK$8.6 million recognised arising from the acquisition.

R2016F10R817H - EEEZKEARBIIAEET(HHERNIS
BEET)M— %?%*””*Hﬂkﬁ%t/ BrEEPIZ AR A R (BT L
BREBRPIZEER AT ([ LEKE]) 2HAE - RWERH - &
BB ABAIEEFEAABEAHARIIAREL  CHABWE
EEZEELOBEAT

On 23 March 2017, the Group subscribed for additional 6,668
ordinary shares of UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited (“UMP Phoenix
Healthcare”), a previously 50% owned joint venture, for a
consideration of RMB32.3 million (equivalent to HK$36.3 million) (the
“UMP Phoenix Healthcare Subscription”). Immediately after the
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Subscription, the Group's equity interest
in UMP Phoenix Healthcare and its subsidiaries (the “UMP Phoenix
Healthcare Group”) increased from 50% to 70% and the UMP
Phoenix Healthcare Group became subsidiaries of the Group
thereafter. As at the date of acquisition, the aggregate fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group
amounted to HK$92.8 million, with gain on bargain purchase of
HK$0.4 million recognised arising from the acquisition.
R2017%43A238 - & & B B B # 916,668 UMP Phoenix
Healthcare Limited ([ UMP Phoenix Healthcare | + & i@ #H 50% 1
mZAERE)EEEK RE/RARKRIBET(HENR3IES
7 70 ) ([UMP Phoenix Healthcare 52 B 18 ]) o ZX B UMP Phoenix
Healthcareu B EIEE - E5EMR UMP Phoenix Healthcare K& Efff
‘A A ([UMP Phoenix Healthcare &£ & |) 2 A% # F7 50% 1% = 70% -

ﬁﬁUMP Phoenix Healthcare R B H gk 7 BEEBEMMELRF - R
FEEIEA A * UMP Phoenix Healthcare R Bl 2 Al R E EFE D
ABEARANZSEEET EHRWEFEEL ZHBIEK04
AEATT

With the assistance from our internal
valuation specialists, we evaluated the
valuation methodologies and assumptions
used in the purchase price allocations by (i)
examining the terms of the relevant sale
and purchase agreement and subscription
agreement; and (i) assessing the valuation
methodologies adopted for the purpose of
determining the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and the consideration transferred.
ERNIBEEERBE T > HAEEBONE
B E B ek KRB mE R R (i)FT
L EE W B BRI EENRIAZEAE
AR FEERE AR BEMRAGETE

HEBEBORMMBEETNEREBR -

In addition, we considered the
independence, objectivity and competence
of the external valuer engaged by
management. We also assessed the
adequacy of disclosures in connection with
the business combinations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BAREZSE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matter matter

ARELEE BEANETNNEEFARERSE

Purchase price allocations of business combinations (Continued)

EREHZBEESE (H)

The Group engaged an independent external valuer to perform the
purchase price allocations on the fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business combinations. The
purchase price allocations are significant to our audit due to (i)
significant judgement involved in the identification of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed; and (ii) the determination of the
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
and the consideration transferred, including, amongst others, fair
value of the Group's previously held 50% equity interest in the UMP
Phoenix Healthcare Group, is dependent on a range of estimates,
including discount rates and interest rates.

EREZR B IMNEERDBL RIS E OF th P WS AT 3851 & 2 I B
BREZARBEETEEEIR -BEEBIEKERMNESNE
BEXR REAR : ()BRIAKBEEENMARGEY REAHE:
N (NEEMBBAIBMNEERMARBEUANMMEBREZAAE
EBE(ETeIE) SEBEIBAEPEZ UMP Phoenix Healthcare &
[ 50% et 2 AR BEKBZ AL - BREFEREHNX -

Details of the business combinations are disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRAXHAHZHBREA M BRRMEEISFIHKE
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai, Cary.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

26 September 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

malRaX

Year ended 30 June 2017
BE2017F6H30 AL FE

2017 2016
2017 F 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
REVENUE PN 5 514,023 456,020
Other income and gains L PN E 5 53,626 8,489
Professional services expenses EERBKER (287,603) (258,398)
Employee benefit expense BTHEMAX (100,291) (78,667)
Property rental and related expenses MEE e RARERAX (40,979) (35,391)
Cost of inventories consumed BRETERA (20,500) (17,585)
Depreciation and amortisation HrE N 5 (17,561) 9,611)
Other expenses, net HAh 2 8 (31,241) (42,441)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE AR S & 18 -
Joint ventures A& N7 (14,002) (9,967)
Associates b/ T 1,622 1,805
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT 8 R 6 57,094 14,254
Income tax expense St & R 9 (8,850) (7,372)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRERF 48,244 6,882
Attributable to: AT & 77 e
Owners of the Company RARHEAA 44,085 6,676
Non-controlling interests FEE R =R 4,159 206
48,244 6,882

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AR T EEERER A

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS ELEERER

OF THE COMPANY 11

Basic ER HK6.01 cents #&1ili HK1.01 cents /&1l
Diluted s HK5.94 cents &1l HK1.01 cents /&l

BaBmEEEaRAT
“E-LFER
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEEBAR

Year ended 30 June 2017
HZE2017F6 530 A1 FE

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFE 48,244 6,882
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hft2EWA (EiE)
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) to ~ REBHEEHRHES

be reclassified to profit or loss in BREWEMEE
subsequent periods: WA (&) :
Changes in fair value of available-for- AHEEREARER
sale investments p=d) 18 418 _
Exchange differences on translation FrEBINEREHIE L E R
of foreign operations (919) (1.274)
Reclassification adjustment for M—IERFERNHERN
a foreign operation disposed of BINEBEHER DR
during the year FHEE 596 -
Reclassification adjustment for AREFEANRBAERR]
a foreign operation upon moMER (B R
subscription of additional interest in WEB AR Mt —E
joint ventures, which became BINEBIEHEF DR
subsidiaries during the year T 979 -
Share of other comprehensive loss of EREERAIREHAM
joint ventures ZFHEE (750) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  &£REME2EBA (&) -
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX  HIB5{18 324 (1,274)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FARHEHBARE
FOR THE YEAR 48,568 5,608
Attributable to: AT &7 e
Owners of the Company RARHEEA 44,424 5476
Non-controlling interests FEPRR M 2R 4,144 132
48,568 5,608
1 20 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RaMHkRE

2017
2017 &

HK$'000
FER

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

2016
20164

HK$'000

T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 12 43,934 38,416
Goodwill [EES 13 41,357 32,755
Other intangible asset HEithEmpEE 14 222 333
Investments in joint ventures REERBHKRE 15 920 23,814
Investments in associates REE N RIRNIEE 16 3,116 2,209
Held-to-maturity investments BERRHIRE 17 46,017 26,721
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 18 9,425 9,007
Deferred tax assets R IBEE 28 1,375 1,157
Deposits RES 21 15,263 16,281
Total non-current assets EMBEELTE 161,629 150,693
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =g 19 6,685 6,907
Trade receivables E 5 W GIR 20 56,791 47,450
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE - RES KX

receivables H At fE IR 21 8,849 9,434
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBE ABR

profit or loss NERmEE 22 2,356 2,026
Held-to-maturity investments BERIHIRE 17 15,005 30,007
Due from associates FEUR B A B R IE 23 6,193 593
Due from related companies JE s B BsE R R SRIE 24 5,284 -
Tax recoverable GIRLqEE A 753 446
Pledged deposits ERFER 25 821 783
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 25 434,073 261,299
Total current assets MEVEEBRE 536,810 358,945
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 26 53,747 47,291
Other payables, accruals and H A A RIR -

deferred income BT E A RBEEW A 27 37,155 41,530
Due to associates RN E O] 23 213 266
Due to related companies FE BABS N R F0B 24 423 -
Tax payable JERT TR 9,244 7,838
Total current liabilities mEAEERE 100,782 96,925
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFH 436,028 262,020
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRDAES

LIABILITIES 597,657 412,713

BABKEMERAR 121

“E-LFER



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaEMBRKRR

30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E i A=Ni
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIEEE 28 969 397
Provision B 29 1,074 1,718
Total non-current liabilities EREAELRRE 2,043 2,115
Net assets BEFE 595,614 410,598
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners RATHEE AELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 30 737 736
Reserves fEE 33 531,882 411,367
532,619 412,103
Non-controlling interests JEFEAR = 62,995 (1,505)
Total equity R 595,614 410,598
Sun Yiu Kwong Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
BRI EE
Director Director
E2 E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HREERBER

Year ended 30 June 2017
B E201746 30 A 1FF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

NN 1
Available-
Shares held for-sale
Share  Capital underthe Share-based investment Exchange Non-
Issued  premium contribution share award  payment revaluation Legal fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital  account  reserve  scheme reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total interests
Nhfts  AHHE
. . . £ 5 EiRE . .
BRARA RBEER LERE BT EERE G e &5 EBRES
Notes HKS000 — HK§'000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 — HK$000
it AT o T T T T v Thn
(note 33)
(HE33)
At31 July 2015 RA5F7A318 - - 2,726 - - - 5 5 3975 61,111 (1,520 66,191
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - - - - - - 6476 6,676 206 6882
Otl;]er comprehensive lossfor ~ EREMZEEE :
the year:
Exr:l{anﬁe differences on FERNEBNELEE
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - (1,200) - (1,200 (74) (1.274)
Total comprehensive income for ~ £M2 ARAEE
the year - - - - - - - (1,200 6,676 5476 132 5608
Acquisitions of subsidaries TEFEAT kg - - - - - - - - - - 38% 389
Acquisitions of non-controlling e IR IR
interests ) 3 - - - - - - - - - - (3,794) (3,794)
Capital contribution by BRIl
non-controlling interestsupon  FEEREREE
incorporation of a subsidliary - - - - - - - - - - 2 2

Dividends paid/payable to B/ Ef A RERRS

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (220) (220)
Final 2015 dividend M5 ERERE 10 - - - - - - - - (30000 (30,000 - (30000)
Issue of shares 1k 30 8 - - - - - - - - 8 - 8
Capitalisation issue of shares upon  ET&RH AR(LES

|istin? Kl 544 (544) - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares upon listing EHERIRG kil 18 3788% - - - - - - - 39040 - 39040
Share issue expenses Rip&TRx - (25,083) - - - - - - - (25,083) - (25,083)
Equity-settled share option ER&ERRERH

arrangements kil - - - - 7,546 - - - - 7,546 - 7546
Waiver of amounts due to the then E% e BB REERA R

ultimate holding companyend  RARE-2FEER

amajor beneficial shareholder of ~ [{RE

the Company - - 7405 - - - - - - 7405 - 7405
Transfer to legal reserve ERTEERE - - - - - - 583 - (583) - - -
At30 June 2016 and RA16F6ANAR

at 1 July 2016 M6F7R18 736 353229 3,131 - 7546 - 588 (1195 15,068 412,103 (1505 410,59
Profitfor the year ERTE - - - - - - - - 085 44085 4159 48244
Oﬁ;\er comprehensive income for - EREBZERA :

the year:

Changes in fair value of MRNEREZ AL EE

avalable-for-sale investments ~ £8) 18 - - - - - 48 - - - 418 - 418

Exchanf;e differences on wEEI £

translation of foreign operations (5% 2% - - - - - - - (904) - (904) (15) 919)
Redlassification adjustment for ~ Si—TBR\F i &R A

aforeign operation disposed ~ £K{EHEN B AR

of during the year ) - - - - - - - 596 - 59 - 59
Reclassification adjustment for ~ BRFRZEAELT

aforeign operation upon e (RUnANE

subscription of addtional 2 ]) M~ BANE A

interest in joint ventures, FHENARRE

which became subsidlaries

durin? the year ) - - - - - - - 979 - 979 - 979
Share of other comprehensive A EATEM

loss of joint ventures FHEBE - - - - - - - (750) - (750) - (750)

Total comprehensive income for N2 ERAEE

the year - - - - - 418 - (19 44,085 44,424 4144 48,568
Acquisitions of subsidiaries REREAT B - - - - - - - - - - 80 27830
Capital contribution by FERERTE

non-controlling interests 3 - - - - - - (167) 202 90,344 90,379 33147 123526
Dividends paid/payable to B/ EfSHER iSRS

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - (621) (621)
Final 2016 dividend M6 FREES 10 - - - - = = = - (14,676 (14,676) - (14676)
Interim 2017 dividend NIEPERE - - - - - - - - (3,658) (3,658) - (3,658)
Issue of shares upon exercise of  BRIEETERZIRA

share options 0 1 2,331 - - (508) - - - - 1,824 - 1,824
Purchases of shares for the share L/ {7 2Bl 2 E Ry

award scheme 2 - - - (5,843) - - - - - (5,843) - (5,843)
Equity-settled share option WEREERRERH

arrangements - - - - 8,066 - - - - 8,066 - 8,066
Transfer to legal reserve EETATHA - - - - - - 214 - (214) - - -
At 30 June 2017 N17F6FN0A 737 355560* 36,131 (5,843 15,104 48 635* (1,072 130949* 532,619 62,995 595614
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$531,882,000 * HEBEERORGEAVBRRAERNNG SRS

(2016: HK$411,367,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 531,882,000 % 7T (2016 £F = 411,367,000 7T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeHEeRE

Year ended 30 June 2017
EE2017F6H30AILFE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B B A 57,094 14,254
Adjustments for: NI E=S R
Share of profits of associates ey /NS Ve (1,622) (1,805)
Share of losses of joint ventures EhEERRIEE 14,002 9,967
Bank interest income HRITAEUA 5 (662) (430)
Interest income on held-to-maturity BEZIBREZF L
investments PN 5 (1,904) 413)
Interest income on available-for-sale AIEHERE ZFBUA
investments 5 (495) (29)
Dividend income from financial assets BARBEABRD
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEREBLA 5 (84) (98)
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial BARBEFTAEBREN
assets at fair value through CRMEEZAAEBE
profit or loss B8 (W) 6 (330) 696
Gain on bargain purchase S BUYEE 2 W 5 (401) (3,499
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEMB ARz K 5 (23,397) -
Gain on remeasurement of previously ENFEARBECAEE
held interests in joint ventures DA 2 Wk 5 (22,847) -
Depreciation and amortisation e R#HE 6 17,561 9,611
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - WEREE
property, plant and equipment ERZER 6 78 336
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 W R IEM 6 88 107
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ~ FEURES & A RIFRIERE,
amounts due from associates GRiER[@E) 6 (282) 1,687
Equity-settled share option expense N m A E R ER 6 8,066 7,546
44,865 37,930
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 111 (1,522)
Increase in trade receivables Z 5 FE W IRIE N (9,535) (1,670)
Decrease in prepayments, BRRIE - (RE® REA
deposits and other receivables PR IE R 1,188 6,868
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FEULER & N RIS IE
from associates (g m) (5,318) 1,282
Decrease in amounts due from JiE s i Bse 8 B R IERL A
related companies 4,648 -
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE T ZIRE N 6,379 5,327
Decrease in other payables, accruals HibfEFIE  TEIREA R
and deferred income BB B (1,154) (15,501)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FEfTESE &S A B FRIEE AN
associates OB (53) 117
Increase in amounts due to JE A< BB N B FRIBIE N
related companies 422 -
Cash generated from operations REEREENRS 41,553 32,831
Interest received BEFE 662 430
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNEB (5.142) (7,657)
Overseas taxes paid ERHEINGIE (2,230) (799)
Net cash flows from operating RETHEENRERE
activities B 34,843 24,805
1 24 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEReRER

Year ended 30 June 2017
BE2017F6H30 AL FE

2017 2016
2017 2016 %
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest income on held-to-maturity BAEZRIHRE 2 F B WA
investments 1,904 413
Interest income on available-for-sale A EERE 2 FBWA
investments 495 29
Dividends received from financial assets & AR BEET ABZH
at fair value through profit or loss TREEE 2 IR BUA 84 98
Dividends received from associates BN T 2 IRBEW A 2,255 1,458
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BE B B A ) 35 83,583 (4,557)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMTE AT 36 27,442 -
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERANIKRE (1,151) -
Increase in amounts due from MG B R A FIAE M
joint ventures (41,927) (34,010)
Increase in an amount due to e —MA & QR FIEE N
a joint venture 653 -
Investments in associates REERRIMRE (1,540) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BEMKEER
property, plant and equipment FT{S 318 5 75
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BERRBER
plant and equipment (21,584) (16,414)
Proceeds from disposal of HERERIEKRE
held-to-maturity investments FriS70Aa 68,713 -
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BB A ZEIH 218 E (72,848) (56,782)
Proceeds from disposal of &AM B SR E PTG IE
available-for-sale investments 19,402 -
Purchases of available-for-sale investmentsf# & a] it H &% & (19,403) (5,506)
Deposits paid for purchases of items of EEYE - MERXEER
property, plant and equipment TRHRES (8,377) (6,280)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time IR EHFETORD, ()
deposits (38) 236
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged REERERIEAE ABRAE
deposits with original maturity of more =il B Z KT
than three months when acquired S, (1 hn) 50,000 (50,000)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BRETHEE(FFA)
investing activities ReREFH 87,668 (171,240)

BaBmEEEaRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeHEeRE

Year ended 30 June 2017
EE2017F6H30AILFE

2017 2016
2017 20164
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BitEE TFE T FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEIENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRIDHIPTISFRIE 30 1,824 379,048
Share issue expenses D EEITER = (25,083)
Purchases of shares for the share award A% (D #2Eh 5T 2188 B A% D
scheme 32 (5,843) -
Advances from related companies NGRS = 163,140
Repayment to related companies EBRE AR08 - (208,108)
Decrease in an amount due to Rt —REBEFIERSD
a director - (1,644)
Capital contribution by non-controlling  JFZiEzE H &
interests 123,526 2
Dividends paid BEARIRE (18,334) -
Dividends paid to the then shareholders B 1 & 85 IR AL & - (30,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EANEZZS ¢ e o)
interests (621) (2,009)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEFEEL RS HREFE 100,552 275,346
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND B RBESESEYEMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 223,063 128,911
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, #MEFE RE8) v 3 & /558
net (289) (1,089)
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERASEEY
beginning of year 211,299 83,477
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRAERRAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 434,073 211,299
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B & RRSZSEMEHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITIE 404,073 161,199
Non-pledged deposits with original REEEREEA LR
maturity of less than three months =AAZ EERFR
when acquired 30,000 50,100
Non-pledged deposits with original RESEREIE A ABiBE
maturity of more than three months =& Az mEEAE
when acquired - 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RE BRI ER A E 2
in the consolidated statement of HeRBEeEEY
financial position 25 434,073 261,299
Non-pledged deposits with original REERREIEIE AHBA
maturity of more than three months =@ Az EEBFR
when acquired = (50,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ~ 4F&EEREXRANTIAZ
the consolidated statement of RekREEEY
cash flows 434,073 211,299
1 26 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A %580 RO i

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 1404-
1408, 14/F., Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

. medical and dental services;

o medical imaging and laboratory services;
. other auxiliary medical services; and

o healthcare management services

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).

1.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

ARAREEER
HeBBEBEBRARNERERSET
MR BRAGT - RAREBE XM
I AEBEEER KL ERAE 14
1 1404-1408 = °

FA- ARAREKES R (5HE K%
O EXBERREHERRERS
B

o BERBRREART RS

o BERNIRURE

o BEXGNEBRE

o HMEBERRS : &

o BERREZEERE
ARARRMDR2015F 11 A27BREH

BAERXSMARQE (BT HER
EmEm e

BaBBEEFR AR
“EB-tFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A %5 80 R B o

30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

AEAREEER @)

MEBLRER
ARABEEMBARZFHBWT

follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
AL S
REXEY

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
M RA

Percentage of

equity interest
attributable to
the Company

AAAE R A
2017

Principal activities

IRXH

UMP Healthcare Limited © Cayman Island/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare Limited @ RERs/ /5% 001%7T REER
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited @ British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited 0~ RBELE#S /&8 001%ET REARR
AP Care Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical and
laboratory services
AP Care Limited B 10,0007 70 RUBRRBRS
Dr. Lee Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of dental services
FRETHPLERAR EE 187 RATRIRS
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of electronic medical
claims submission platform and
information technology services
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited &k 100787 RUETBERHRSE
¥ 8 RiEBRMARS
Hong Tai Polyclinic Limited @ Macau MOP25,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
FRERARLRY P 25,000:2P9% RHtBRRY
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory  Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of medical imaging and
Centre (Kowloon) Limited laboratory services
LEBREFERLETO(NE) &R 1B R BEFERICRR
AR
UMP Corporate Administration Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision of
Services Limited company secretarial services
BaBBLXREARAR &R 1007 RERRRRELANERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A %580 RO i

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

1. RAREEERE®

MEBLRER (E)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
MR,/ R BRITER/
REXBE AfRE  ARFEEERLA IREH
2017
UMP Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of dental services
BRBKA NP LERAT &R 10,0007 BRI RUARAS
UMP Dental Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
e BB HREERAR &R 28T REER
UMP Health Centre Management Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
e BBRET OERERAT R 28T RERZR
UMP Health Plan Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
R BBRRAHERERAA R 28T REER
UMP Holdings (Macau) Limited © Macau MOP25,000 100 100 Investment holding
UMP Holdings (Macau) Limited AP 25000277 REER
UMP Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK§$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision of
medical services
BRBBHOERAR i 1007 RESRRRHEERRS
UMP Medical Centre (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
Limited
BagBhL(FE)BRAR R 10077 fRft BRI
UMP Medical Centre Management (1) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
Limited
HABBTLEE(F2)ARAT R 10000787 R BRI
UMP Medical Centre (New Territories) Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of medical services
Limited
BABHPL(HRERLA &R 2B RHBRRE
BeBEERAR AR 129
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

UMP Professional Management Limited

BRaBREXERARA

UMP Professional Management (Macau)
Limited ©
UMPEEEE(RF)BER AR

UMP Specialist Medical Centre Limited
BRBREHERTLERA

UMP TCM Limited
BeERREEARA

UMP Healthcare China Limited
("UMP Healthcare China") @
UMP Healthcare China Limited
(TUMP Healthcare China])

United Medical Services (China) Limited @
United Medical Services (China) Limited @
TRERERBRBRAR
ERBRERERBRAG
ERRREAAREAR AR
("Shanghai Eaton Consulting”) @

LERRRRAAREARLR)
([ LERR RN ) o

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
and business share capital
HMAL/ BRTEE/
REXBE EMBRE
Hong Kong HK$50,000,012
B 5000001277
Macau MOP10,000
il 10,000:RF5%
Hong Kong HK$2
&R 28T
Hong Kong HK$10,000
B0 100007
Cayman Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong
RERS/ /5% 157
British Virgin Islands/ US$100
Hong Kong
ZBRANE/BE 100%7t
People’s Republic of US$1,000,000
China ("PRC")
PEARAME(HE) 1,000,000%7T
PRC RMB3,500,000
i AEH#
3,500,0007

1. REAREEER @
MEATER (B
Percentage of

equity interest
attributable to

the Company

Principal activities

ALREERRLA
2017

IRXH

100 100 Investment holding and provision of

corporate healthcare solution
REBRLRHLFERRR
BANE
100 100 Investment holding and provision of
corporate healthcare solution

REZRRRHEZERRRE

BANE
100 100 Provision of medical services
RLBRRT
100 100 Provision of medical services
R BRI
80 100 Investment holding
REZR
100 100 Investment holding
REZK
100 100 Investment holding and provision of
healthcare management
REARRRHERRRER
100 100 Investment holding and provision of

healthcare services

REBR LM BRRRRS
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

AAREEER @)
WA TE R (E)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
ML/ i BRIEE/
REXBE AfRE  ALFEEERLA IREH
2017
L RRRMIDBERAF PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
("Beijing Eaton Clinic") @ele medical services
T RERFDBERAR i N RUEEREREERS
([ RBRPIZ B ) ool 3,500,0007C
LRRRADPERAT PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
("Shanghai Eaton Clinic") @b medical services
FERRFMZHERAR i AEH# REBERERERRE
([ EBREFDEH]) woe 3,500,0007C
LEREMZBARAR PRC RMBS5,000,000 100 - Provision of healthcare and
(formerly known as medical services
LERRRMDTERAR)
("UMP Pudong") @
FEREMDBERAR hE AEH# REBERERERRE
(AT LERBRADHERAR) 5,000,0007C
([ Lk ) oo
UMP Healthcare (Shanghai) Group British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare (Shanghai) Group EBRAEE/BR 0.01%7T REER
Limited ©
FEMEARERBRAR 00 PRC RMB15,000,0000 100 - Provision of corporate healthcare
solution
LERBLRERBRAR D T ARE RECFBRREBANTR
15,000,000 7.0
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$166.7 70 50 Investment holding
("UMP Phoenix Healthcare") @19 Hong Kong
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited ABRUIHE/ A 166770 REER
(TUMP Phoenix Healthcare ]) @@
BeBEERAR AR 131
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER®
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBABER (&)

Place of

incorporation/

registration
and business

EMARL/ M

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRAI%E/

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company Principal activities

REXEH HREA  ARFEERRLA

2017 2016

IRXH

UMP Phoenix Management Limited ®  British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 70 50 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Phoenix Management Limited @9~ EERZHE /E% 001%ET REER
FREHEEEREABRAF M PRC RMB30,000,000¢ 70 - Provision of corporate healthcare
solution
IRERBRERERERAR N R ARE RECEBRREBRATR
30,000,007t
UMP Medical Centre Management (Il Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and provision of
Limited (“"UMP Management Ill") ® medical services
BaBBTOER(E2)BRAR R 20,000,000/ 70 RERRRRHERRSE
(HaBBERE=])N
EBANREMYBERAF 6 PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Provision of medical services
EBANREMYEERRF EA i N RUEERS
10,000,00070
238 Day Surgery & Endoscopy Centre  Hong Kong HK$10,000 68 764 Provision of day surgery and
Limited" endoscopy services
BABFMEAREPLERAGY  FA 10000737 REABTMRARZRERE
238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 60 60 Provision of medical services
RENBRETOERAF &R 10,0007 it BRRY
Hirayanagi Shika Company Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 71.76 7176 Provision of dental services
THENBRAT E 500,000 7 RAUTRRS
Hong Kong ENT Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 50.5 50.5  Provision of medical consultation
and surgical services
FRERGPLERAR &R 10,0007 REERRART MRS
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30 June 2017
20176 H30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QA8R&EEER @)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARIER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
AL/ G BRTEE/
REXBE AfRE  ALFEEERLA IREH
2017 2016
Metro International Clinic Limited © Macau MOP100,000 69 69 Provision of medical services
AR EERMERARY il 100,0002F9% RUBERS
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory  Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.5 62.5  Provision of medical imaging and
Centre Limited aboratory services
LRBETERBTOERAR R 10,0007 RUBRTERICRRH
UMP Central Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 90 90 Provision of dental services
A BHTRHO(PR)BRAT R 10077 BRAL ST RURTS
UMP Dental Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 82.35 82.35  Investment holding
AR IRRERRAA &R 2,000,000 7 RAZK
UMP Physiotherapy Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 60 60 Provision of medical and
physiotherapy services
BaBEMERRT LERAT R 10077 RUBRIME B RY
UMP Tsim Sha Tsui Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 87.65 87.65  Provision of dental services
e RN NG } 00077 YRR
ABBANBL(RPB)ERAR  BE 10,0007% RETHRE
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2017 F 6 H30H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

30% equity interests of these subsidiaries are held on trust by a former
non-controlling shareholder on behalf of the Group. In the opinion of
the directors, through various contractual agreements entered into
between the Group and the former non-controlling shareholder, the
Group obtains 100% control over these subsidiaries. Accordingly, these
subsidiaries are accounted for as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

On 23 March 2017, Dynamic Ally Limited (“Dynamic Ally”), which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, subscribed for 20
ordinary shares in UMP Healthcare China for a consideration of RMB110
million (equivalent to HK$123,526,000) (the “UMP Healthcare China
Subscription”). Immediately after the UMP Healthcare China
Subscription, UMP Healthcare China is owned as to 80% by the Group
and 20% by Dynamic Ally.

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Shanghai Eaton Consulting from Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise
Management Company Limited (“GZ Ruian”) for a cash consideration of
RMB5.1 million (equivalent to HK$6.2 million). On 1 January 2016, the
Group acquired the remaining 30% equity interests in Beijing Eaton
Clinic and Shanghai Eaton Clinic from an independent third party for a
cash consideration of RMB3.2 million (equivalent to HK$3.8 million).
Further details of these acquisitions are included in notes 35 and 38 to
the financial statements.

On 17 October 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in UMP
Pudong from an independent third party for a consideration of RMB8.3
million (equivalent to HK$9.5 million). Further details of this acquisition
are included in note 35 to the financial statements.

ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂq(%é)
2 TV B ()

(a)
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% T 1 R 9 30% A o — & A SRS AR
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BN E B A EE IR R AT LM 210 & £ 1
W AEEEUS % E B A R #100% 72 5
e Bt ZEMBARIIEAAKENE
BHEAR -

S B AR EEAREMAIEBE
£

> S

7201743 A23 H ' Dynamic Ally Limited
([Dynamic Ally] » FBIRZEBBRARZE
BB ABD AREARENOBE T(HHE
123,526,000/ 7T ) 7R B UMP Healthcare
China # 20 i% & 38 A% (UMP Healthcare China
RHEEIE]) * UMP Healthcare China iR =
18 1% * UMP Healthcare Chinaf A~ & & K&
Dynamic Ally 5 5II#E 7 80% % 20% s
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(9) On 23 March 2017, the Group subscribed for additional 6,668 ordinary
shares of UMP Phoenix Healthcare for a consideration of RMB32.3
million (equivalent to HK$36.3 million) (the “UMP Phoenix Healthcare
Subscription”). Immediately after the UMP Phoenix Healthcare
Subscription, the Group’s equity interest in UMP Phoenix Healthcare
and its subsidiaries (the “UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group”) increased
from 50% to 70% and the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group became
subsidiaries of the Group thereafter. Further details of this business
combination are included in note 35 to the financial statements.

(h) On 23 March 2017, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in
UMP Management Il and its subsidiary (the "UMP Management IlI
Group”) to Healthcare Assets Management Limited (“HAML") and
assigned the shareholder’s loan to HAML for a consideration of in the
sum of RMB22.3 million and HK$3.4 million (equivalent to
HK$28,471,000, in aggregate). HAML is owned as to 50% by Healthcare
Ventures Holdings Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chow
Tai Fook Enterprises Limited ("CTFE") and owns 15% equity interest in
the Company, and as to 50% by Dynamic Ally. Further details of this
disposal are included in note 36 to the financial statements.

(i) These subsidiaries were newly incorporated/established during the year.

[0) As at 30 June 2017, the paid up capital of this subsidiary was
RMB1,000,000.

(k) As at 30 June 2017, the paid up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB4,500,000.

(1) During the year, additional share capital of HK$1,100 was subscribed by
non-controlling interest.

Except for UMP Healthcare Limited and UMP Medical China
Holdings Limited, the above subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

ANEIREBER &)
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1 fmBEXE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income s reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 1, the adoption of the above new and

revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on

these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements

in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial

statements. The amendments clarify:

0]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss
and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items that
will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that

apply when additional subtotals are presented in the

statement of financial position and the statement of profit or

loss. The amendments have had no significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Apply HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2014-2016 Cycle HKFRSs®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

except for the amendments to HKFRS 12, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that a
share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 July 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 July 2018. The Group performed a high-level
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This
preliminary assessment is based on currently available
information and may be subject to changes arising from
further detailed analyses or additional reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the Group
in the future. The expected impacts arising from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to
continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value. Equity investments currently
held as available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the
investments are intended to be held for the foreseeable
future and the Group expects to apply the option to
present fair value changes in other comprehensive
income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments
cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the
investments are derecognised.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) Impairment
HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group expects to apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that are
estimated based on the present value of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade and
other receivables. The Group will perform a more
detailed analysis which considers all reasonable and
supportable information, including forward-looking
elements, for estimation of expected credit losses on its
trade and other receivables upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for application now.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
guantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure
a more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15
and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
on 1 July 2018 may have a significant impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group's financial
statements. The Group is performing a detailed assessment
of the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption and it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the detailed assessment is performed by the
Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date of
a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 July 2019. The Group
expects that certain portion of the operating lease
commitments will be required to be recognised as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities upon adoption of HKFRS 16.
The Group will perform a more detailed analysis upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure
to be provided in the financial statements. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 July 2017. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose of
addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at fair
value, although they also have a broader application for other
situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs
to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 July
2017. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

24 EEETHEBRE &)

REBERAREEQARNRE (&)

M B ENRMREKRBHAE AT
BE  FHEERRNRER BB E
NAINIRE  BEEZTEENT= -
MeEEERERSABIRENNE - €T
HMBERT BAEEXELEE QT
MEARFENSEERE MR ZEH
- BlgRAABETERERTME
FIE - KEYHBMERTNERTES
SHEERRNARZEGIER  BEQ
AIRABEARNEMERBFEREAR
BEMMEMSREZEANEENERE
TR o

EBaotEEmE
EBAHARBEAR BB ZRETD
B R AR EERE  ZanBE
ER/TEEBZNEERNKERNNAQ
REE - AEBMRAERKEINES
ABBIE  RAKEEITARER S
TR Z B o XA HR A
SETAIGERBRE AR BENBKE
H AR EEFENEIGLS - S ER
WUREE T 1 FEE A i 2 (JE IR A B A
ST HA ARNRBREZ LD
HEEERE) - FFERESNMA Hi
HRE R A BEE - WEAERRK
AREERIIRER -

EAKBRBE -EEXBR  2RREH
fiRsR ~ B B B BRI MR R AR
AHARTEAZERMEEMEE - AMEHE
ENERETE - HPERERKEIR
TARAMTFRANTET AT OB -

MREBHAHOBEBRTEK  BEMTK
DB RRN AR EEEN
E MAkELENEAERERART

148

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

A %580 RO i

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent period.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain equity investments and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)y is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EES3BENE 5
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued) BT (4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following by H EE%??/\TEIHEH—IEM#E@
conditions applies: (Continued) B (8
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy ZEBR—BE=FERED
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; BERNF ME—EERZ
E=ZFEBNEE NG
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v ZEBRASEHNHEASH
the benefit of employees of either the Group or FRENEEREIRAM
an entity related to the Group; B BEEL R AT E
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEEHEIEMERNAL
person identified in (a); PRIk LR
(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vi) @OEMMERHALHZE
over the entity or is a member of the key BEAEEATYENSAZE
management personnel of the entity (or of a B (X Eiiﬁ“ﬂ’]!’ﬁj)ﬁﬁ
parent of the entity); and EEBEKE
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is (vii) ZER EMBEE (T
a part, provides key management personnel AR E  MAEENAEER
services to the Group or to the parent of the ZEARREETEETIERER
Group. %o
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME - BERSZEHRETE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less YW BERREBEKTRETITE R
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The FARERIEYIE - ¥ MEREE
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises HEMKA BEEBEBRFEZERE
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of EMHZERL MBI EERTE AR
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its FHE M EZEEAAR -
intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and ME - BMEMREEERERAELAX
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and H(ngERRsSER)  —RREEAS
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit BRI BB R P OBk - FEMERIZEERK
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where RERT  ERRETHREERTE
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a BRERIEREERAK - 1% - HE
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the RENTEHLHESRERESE - BIK
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, SEEZEXOERAERNEE Wi
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, HEAEMERFI MBI ETRITE -
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%

Medical equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 33.3%
Motor vehicle 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful economic life of 3 years.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

30 June 2017
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30 June 2017
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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30 June 2017
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of profit
or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is recognised in the statement profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the open
market for the share award scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is
presented as “Shares held under the share award scheme”
and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of an operating lease
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the
lease. Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the
expected costs to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period using estimated cash flows and an
equivalent asset is recognised and depreciated over the term
of the operating lease. The estimated future costs of
reinstatement are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end. Changes in the estimated
future costs are added to or deducted from the cost of the
corresponding asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

30 June 2017
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the provision of healthcare solution services, upon
the provision of the relevant services or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the fixed-fee service
contracts (including annual retainer and capitation
plans). Further explained in the accounting policy for
"fixed-fee service contracts” below;

(b)  from the rendering of medical and dental services, upon
provision of the relevant services;

() from the provision of healthcare management services
and administrative support services, upon rendering of
services;

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Fixed-fee service contracts

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed-fee in
which the level of services depends on uncertain future events
(the "Fixed-fee Service Contracts”). The Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are in general of one to two years and the Group
receives the related service fees upfront. The contract
customers cannot recover the service fee upon the expiration
of the respective fixed-fee service contracts period
irrespective of whether the plan members utilised any services
under the Fixed-fee Service Contracts.

30 June 2017
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed-fee service contracts (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, tests are performed to
ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts. In performing these tests, current
best estimates of future contractual cash flows under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the statement of profit or loss by
establishing a provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are recognised on a time proportion basis (i.e.,
straight-line basis) over the terms of the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts. At the time of revenue recognition, plan members
may not utilise any services under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts and hence, no direct cost will be incurred by the
Group in association with the professional services rendered
by the doctors, dentists and auxiliary service providers.
Accordingly, expenses incurred in connection with the Fixed-
fee Service Contracts are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
and consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees and
consultants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

In situations where the share-based payment transactions are
with employees of the Group, the cost of equity-settled
transactions is measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
these equity instruments are granted. In situations where the
share-based payment transactions are with non-employees of
the Group, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
by reference to the fair value of goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the
Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Group measures the goods or services
received, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

30 June 2017
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of the modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution occupational
retirement scheme (the "ORSO Scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme operates in a similar way to the
MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group's
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing employer
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Macau are required to participate in a social security fund
operated by the government of Macao Special Administrative
Region. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
fixed amounts of their payroll costs to the social security fund.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the social security fund.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

24 EESHBERBE 8

HiESEA (8)

RAESEE(E)

AEE T RE BREEREBERIANG
BGOSR E B R AR KRR A A 8
(TBRIRGTE]) - BUSRIRGTBILAKE
PaEestdlc T AKLE  EERER
NEEREBZEAKERBHIFER
HEBERAGE  AEEENZHER
EHEFORRL 08 WA R 2 AR R

AEBRHBEREZENNBLRRZIE
BASNENTRNEENHRENKRS
8 - REMB AR ERFMRANE
TEOLHF REARSEIHK - RE
RREASEENRA - KRR BE
Rk B REKR PR o

AEERNRFIREZHMBARIZEEA
SERRMIFHITRRERFEEZHE
REED - HWEHNBRAREREHEK
A zETEESRAHLEREES(E
HER - FRARKERBHEREES
ZRAB T RERIOR -

IR E
REIB BRI REBRA G L AR
RRAE-

FHRERKEZRELER  BRAR
AEBERAMEANERTESEIR
THIR B MR - Hitt - FHRERE
#ZLEREAREARAE -

BaBBEEFR AR 171

—E—tEEH



Notes to the Financial Statements

RA 35 3R R B o

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Fixed-fee Service Contracts

The Group enters into certain Fixed-fee Service Contracts in
which the Group uses its own medical and dental centres,
staff and other resources, including affiliated clinics and
affiliated service providers, to provide healthcare services
covered by the contracts. The level of services to be rendered
under the Fixed-fee Service Contracts is uncertain and
depends on uncertain future events. The Group has to
consider whether the cost of meeting its contractual
obligations to provide the services under the Fixed-fee
Service Contracts may exceed the revenue it will receive and
the probability of such risk (the “Risk”), when assessing the
pricing and provisioning for such contracts.

The frequency and severity of the Risk are affected by many
factors, including, inter alia, the health status and awareness
of the persons covered by the Fixed-fee Service Contracts
and that of the general public in Hong Kong, the outbreak/
potential outbreak of any epidemic, climatic changes, the
duration of those contracts (which in general are of short
duration), as well as a diversity of social, industrial and
economic factors. The risk associated with such factors
(including any undue concentration thereof and the
probability of the occurrence of certain events affected by
them) on the actual utilisation ratio for individual contracts is
the key source of uncertainty that needs to be estimated.

The Group manages the Risk through periodic review of the
estimated and actual utilisation ratio of individual contracts
and considers such assessment in revising the relevant fee
schedules and whether or not to renew such Fixed-fee Service
Contracts.

Revenue from provision of healthcare services

The Group provides clinical healthcare services and corporate
healthcare solution services to its contract customers. The
healthcare services can broadly be further categorised into
two types, that is, out-patient services; and in-patient services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Revenue from provision of healthcare services (Continued)
In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or
as an agent in the provision of healthcare services and
corporate healthcare solution services requires judgement
and consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances. The
Group is acting as a principal when it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with rendering of
services and report revenue on the gross inflows of economic
benefits. In evaluation of the Group acting as a principal, the
Group considers, individually or in combination, whether the
Group has (i) the primary responsibility for providing goods or
services to the customers or for fulfilling the order; (ii)
inventory risk before, during or after the customer order; (iii)
latitude in establishing prices, either directly or indirectly; and
(iv) bears the customer’s credit risk on the receivable due
from the customer. Conversely, the Group is an agent when it
does not have exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the rendering of services and report revenue
on the net inflows of economic benefits (that is, net of the
amounts collected on behalf of the principal). Having
considered the relevant facts and circumstances, the directors
consider that the Group is exposed to significant risks and
rewards associated with the rendering of out-patient services
while the Group is not exposed to significant risks and
rewards associated to the in-patient services. Accordingly, the
Group is acting as a principal for the out-patient services and
the related revenue is presented on a gross basis while the
Group is acting as an agent for the in-patient services and the
related revenue is presented on a net basis.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2017 was
HK$41,357,000 (2016: HK$32,755,000). Further details are
given in note 13 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a loan/receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment
of receivables arising from the inability of its customers and
debtors to make the required payments. The Group makes its
estimates based on, inter alia, the ageing of its receivable
balances, customers’ and debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers and debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be
higher than expected, the Group would be required to revise
the basis of making the allowance and its future results would

be affected.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate
healthcare solutions to contract customers; and

(b) Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare
Services") segment engages in the provision of medical
and dental services, health check and other auxiliary
services.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income, other income and gains, and share of profits
and losses of joint ventures and associates as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, other intangible asset,
investments in joint ventures and associates, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale investments and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2017

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REDIHER @)

BZE2017F6H8308 L EE R
20174%6H30H

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services
EENEFIRME
TEEERRRE KBS &
7R 5 R AR REERR TS a5
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET F#ET TET
Segment revenue: DEBWA -
External sales HNEB S 310,520 203,503 514,023
Intersegment sales DEFEHE 1,148 75,667 76,815
311,668 279,170 590,838
Reconciliation: AL -
Elimination of intersegment 2> #0RE f & K 84
sales (76,815)
Revenue WA 514,023
Segment results DERELE 31,673 23,678 55,351
Reconciliation: EEG -
Interest income FBUA 3,061
Other income Hi g A 3,590
Unallocated gains A9 B 46,975
Share of profits and losses of:  JE{5F ) K E518 :
Joint ventures SR WNG| (14,002)
Associates /N 1,622
Corporate and other RAEIREMARDEFX
unallocated expenses (39,503)
Profit before tax Fr B4 A g 57,094
BEBEEEFRAA 179
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30 June 2017

2017 F 6 H30 A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REHSTER @)

(Continued)

Year ended/as at 30 June 2017 (Continued) BZE2017F6830BLEE R
2017 %6 A 30 B (&)

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services
MEHNEFR4
EBERRE R &
R T R AR R R 7 &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR F#ET FET
Segment assets DEHEE 151,540 263,401 414,941
Reconciliation: SEHER -
Elimination of intersegment 53 B [ FE U FR B #K 84
receivables (76,060)
Corporate and other NRARHMARS LA E
unallocated assets 359,558
Total assets BEE 698,439
Segment liabilities THMEE 80,569 97,039 177,608
Reconciliation: AL -
Elimination of intersegment %3 %R [ FE < FXIE K 84
payables (76,060)
Corporate and other NRARHMARSEEE
unallocated liabilities 1,277
Total liabilities HwEE 102,825
Other segment information: Hftt 5 HEH :
Depreciation and amortisation T8 K& # §4 2,138 15,423 17,561
Capital expenditure* NG 10,949 26,039 36,988
Loss on disposal of items of  HEWE - BEK
property, plant and REEE MEE
equipment 61 17 78
Write-off of trade receivables 5 & 5 fE Yt 7018 65 23 88
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BABYBIEREYYE  BERSE  01F
equipment including additions from the acquisitions of subsidiaries and KEWEMNBARZASREEEWE - K
deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant and equipment. ERSEEE TS -
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(Continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Year ended/as at 30 June 2016

30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

4, REFIEE (@)

BZ2016F6H8308 L EE R
2016 6 A 30H

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services
ME AR FRE
B EIRAEE R R B8
AT R RIS IRIERR TS A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHBT
Segment revenue: DEBA :
External sales SNEREH & 292,241 163,779 456,020
Intersegment sales DEEHE 871 63,897 64,768
293,112 227,676 520,788
Reconciliation: AL -
Elimination of intersegment 2> #0RE f & 84
sales (64,768)
Revenue WA 456,020
Segment results DERELE 30,332 19,918 50,250
Reconciliation: BEG -
Interest income FBUA 872
Other income HAwlg A 4,118
Unallocated gain Roboas 3,499
Share of profits and losses of:  FE5FIE K E518 :
Joint ventures SR WNG| (9,967)
Associates /N 1,805
Corporate and other REIREAMRDEFX
unallocated expenses (36,323)
Profit before tax Fr B4 A g 14,254
BaBBEEER A 181

“E-LFER



Notes to the Financial Statements

A %5 80 R B o

30 June 2017
2017465308
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIPEE (E)
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2016 (Continued) BZEZ2016F6A30ALEE R

2016 6 A 30 B (/)

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services
M& A% PRt
REBERRRE B K 28 BT
fRR T R ARTE RIEARTS Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT FET
Segment assets DEREE 146,660 77,674 224,334
Reconciliation: SHED
Elimination of intersegment %3 B ] FE U R B #5 84
receivables (33,499)
Corporate and other NRARHMARD LA E
unallocated assets 318,803
Total assets BMEE 509,638
Segment liabilities il =R 71,140 59,142 130,282
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of intersegment 3 & ] & 1< ZRIE 1K
payables (33,499)
Corporate and other REIRHEMRDEAE
unallocated liabilities 2,257
Total liabilities maEE 99,040
Other segment information: Hft5ZER :
Depreciation e 968 8,643 9,611
Capital expenditure* BARFE* 3,690 23,145 26,835
Loss on disposal of items of ~ HE¥E - HEM
property, plant and REIEE MEE
equipment - 336 336
Write-off of trade receivables  #Mi$5 % 5 B U I8 55 52 107
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * EAMYBREANEDE  BENMERE BIE
equipment including additions from the acquisitions of subsidiaries/ REWERBRAR EBZAERGEED
business and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant and % BMEMEREEENETS -
equipment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group operates
within three geographical locations, Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC. Approximately 86% (2016: 91%) of the Group's
revenue was generated in Hong Kong. Less than 10% of the
Group's revenue was generated in Macau or the PRC.

4.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

REFIER @)

15 & R

HE2017F6A30BILLFE  KREBR
AR (BEE RFIRPE)EEHE
% o REEH86% (20164F : 91%) WA
REBE - AEBLR10%MAKER
FoskrR B - At - W HREINBE

Accordingly, no geographical information in respect of FPaU AR s &R} -
revenue from external customers is presented.
Non-current assets FRBEE
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 £
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Hong Kong BB 73,366 88,097
The PRC A [ 22,806 13,339
Macau B FY 1,754 2,372
97,926 103,808

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from two major customers which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers segment

is set out below:

LHFRBEEEMDEREE 2L
B TEEERIANEERBEE -

FERXFEHR

KEMAEBEF (EAKERAAEGH
EPRHOEBERRERRTRRB D
EREV UL 10% FIA LR E P ) B UL A B
LI

2017 2016

2017 20165

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FTHERT THBT

Customer A ZEA 61,249 60,036
Customer B ®FB 37,327 N/ATE R *
* Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate Healthcare * EAREEAOTPHEhRAE REBERRE

Solution Services to Contract Customers segment

JRIRTT R IR EVMRA D F10% ©
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - HBI WA R Wz

Revenue represents the aggregate of the gross amounts WAEEFARIBECERERER R
received and receivable from third parties for the provision of ZRG N e R B RE RS Y ek e
corporate healthcare solution services and clinical healthcare WE=HIE 7 4858 -

services during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ E A RS2 2T
2017 2016
2017 F 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Revenue WA
Provision of corporate healthcare EAHNEFIREDEEE
solution services to contract RIEFRAT R
customers:
Medical services BERY 295,567 276,138
Dental services TFRARS 14,953 16,103
Provision of clinical healthcare REHEREERERS
services:
Medical services BERY 151,636 117,258
Dental services FRRS 51,867 46,521
514,023 456,020
Other income and gains Hgl A R Wz
Administrative support fees THRZIEER 2,350 2,292
Bank interest income HRITHBWA 662 430
Interest income on held-to-maturity 55 2 F|#i#E F B UK A
investments 1,904 413
Interest income on available-for-saleA] it H €% & | B U A
investments 495 29
Dividend income from financial BARBEFAEBRZ
assets at fair value through RbEEREWA
profit or loss 84 98
Fair value gains on financial assets AR BEFABEZ
at fair value through profitor loss  &RIEE AL EERKE 330 -
Gain on bargain purchase S B WE 35 401 3,499
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR 2 W 36 23,397 -
Gain on remeasurement of EVFERBEMFEEERT
previously held interests in - Tl
joint ventures 22,847 -
Others Efb 1,156 1,728
53,626 8,489
1 84 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 June 2017
201746 30 A
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBiANRF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBMBRFBSEMNAHEG (Gt T
(crediting): DR IERISH
2017 2016
2017 & 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Auditor's remuneration ZERRDEN 5 2,253 2,061
Cost of inventories consumed BREFEKA 20,500 17,585
Cost of services rendered B RIS A 287,603 258,398
Depreciation and amortisation Pree sy 17,561 9,611
Employee benefit expense EERMFAX (BEE=ZM
(including directors’ =Y

remuneration (note 7))*:
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R B R

other benefits HibigR| 94,312 71,485
Equity-settled share option RS E BN
expense 7,340 6,798
Pension scheme contributions RN E B
(defined contribution schemes)* (EERHERETED 6,420 4,015
108,072 82,298
Equity-settled share option expense A5 45 B M BB AR XX
(including employees and (BEEEMEERER)
professional consultants) 31 8,066 7,546
Foreign exchange differences, net &N =5 (CFE) 129 124
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BB MEE
property, plant and equipment THE 2 K18 78 336
Listing expenses FHmER - 16,376
Minimum leases payments under LERE 2 RIEAARTK
operating leases 35,132 30,536
Write-off of trade receivables M8 E 2 EWGRIE 88 107
Impairment /(reversal of FEUCEE &N B ROBRIE,
impairment) of amounts O E#ERE)
due from associates 23 (282) 1,687
Fair value losses/(gains) on BRAREBEFABRD
financial assets at fair value TREENAAEE
through profit or loss B (W) (330) 696
* Inclusive of employee benefit expense of HK$7,781,000 (2016: * BIREEERBEN BN EERENE
HK$3,631,000) paid/payable to the Group's employees for the rendering 8 18 F 5 3 8 #57,781,0007% 7T (2016 F :
of professional services, which was classified as “Professional services 3,631,000 7T)  EfEEERRTEEER
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. [HEERBER] -
# As at 30 June 2017, the Group had no material forfeited contributions # R2017F 6 A30H © AEEIW &S AR
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future A AR R B RS R R etk (2016
years (2016: Nil). F ) o
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

EEME
AEEEEMERBETERARIMA
RARESEMMRR - BBRBGIIFE
383(1)(@) ~ (b) * (o) R (N ik e F & A 7 (&
BEENDER) RIS 28MWENT ¢

Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT TFETT

Fees we 1,850 1,101
Other emoluments: E B

Salaries, allowances and other benefits % & -~ 3285 & E A 7E F| 7,596 6,746

Equity-settled share option expense DA EE v BBIRIER 6,782 6,222

Pension scheme contributions RIS EIHER 68 256

14,446 13,224

16,296 14,325

RE—FE ARARBEEBERES
PETEERARBREORER RS
BYBkE £ PRHBERMBEHRER
MaE31 - ERNFE A RERERPHER
MREBREAABERRLEBHE
o MRAFEFARBHRENSETD

During the prior year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the
share option schemes of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was

determined as at the date of grant and the amount included STALMEEMS 2 IR -
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FABNBIIFERTESHEEN
during the year were as follows: K
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Mr. Lee Luen-Wai, John BBS JP* THHME L (s HES - A THE)* 250 133
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBsup*  ZEUFREE A (sl 25 - A Fib+)* 200 133
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike* 5 o SR S A 200 133
650 399

* FHERE(WNEFHEZE L FH
) FRRBE(REANEE A F
1) RIS ER2015F 11 A6
HEZTAARRINB I TES -

* Mr. Lee Luen-Wai, John 88s up, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss Jp
and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 6 November 2015.

1 86 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 June 2017
20176 H30H

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 7. EEME )
(@) Independent non-executive directors (Continued) (a) BIAFHITEE(E)
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAEEMBIFNITESTAE
independent non-executive directors during the year M (20164 : &) -
(2016: Nil).

(b) HITES

(b) Executive directors

Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and other  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits expense  contributions  remuneration
¥e BER  NERERZ YN g |
e EtbER) BRERX 5 HHAS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR BT TiEn TR
2017 M17%
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong RRTEE 200 4,112 3,004 - 7316
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen  B2E&+ 200 1,950 1,794 26 3,970
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick DRERE 200 - 95 8 303
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Ay Es 1 200 - 95 8 303
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FFERE 200 1,534 1,794 26 3,554
Mr. Jiang Tianfan™ RN 200 - - - 200
1,200 7,596 6,782 68 15,646
216 W165
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong* BRIEE 7 3,560 2326 220 6223

11
Ms. Kiwok Cheuk Kiwan, Jacquen® 224 1" 17 1,782 1,851 18 3768
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick! SRERE 117 - 97 - 214
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael* BERE 17 - 97 - 214
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix® TRBAL "7 1,404 1851 18 3,390
Mr. Jiang Tianfan* TR 17 - - - 17

702 6,746 6,222 25 13926
* Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was appointed as a director of the Company * FRRTE AR 201564 A 23 BEZT

BRRRES  R2015F8A29BE

on 23 April 2015 and redesignated as an executive director and

the chief executive of the Company on 29 August 2015.

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen was appointed as a director of
the Company on 5 November 2014 and redesignated as an
executive director on 29 August 2015.

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung, Felix and Mr. Jiang Tianfan were appointed as directors
of the Company on 18 August 2015 and redesignated as
executive directors on 29 August 2015.

On 15 June 2017, Mr. Jiang Tianfan resigned as a director of the
Company.

BEAARFRITEERITRAEE

HEELZTHR2014511 ASAEZ T
BARNRIES  R2015F8 A29HE
ATBRITES -

WRELE  BNEEL - FRBL
ERTRNEAER 2015568 B 18 HE
ZREAERRESE - R201548A29
AERTARTES -

R2017F6 A158 ST RN EABT
RNARESE »
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“E-LFER

187



Notes to the Financial Statements

A %5 80 R B o

30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016:
Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2016: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining two (2016: two) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

EEMS

FR AEERECNREMNESHE
VBB 0N 7 52 [ S 0 A\ 7 58 874 OS2
AR BBERRE (20164 « &) o

FRAMEZEERELRERETWHNE
HIZeHE (20164 : M) o

LTERESHFMES

FRN - AAmaTMEEBIE=4 (2016
FZR)EE FENFHFEHERLE
X7 - FREB TG (2016F - M)
RARBFEFNITREINERH
BiE B 2 FEEEB oI T ¢

2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 « ZBE R EMIETR] 2,532 2,737
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT - 190
Equity-settled share option expense AR s s 7 BRI X 558 576
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIERR 41 29

3,131 3,532

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

R FEERFTREREREET
SRR ABLAT

Number of employees

EEAE
2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T & 1,500,000 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T E 2,000,000 75 7T 1
2 2
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

During the prior year, share options were granted to a non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employee in
respect of her services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

8.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

EEERSHFMES @)
WE—FE MEEERIETRAED
SEHMIE S 3t = B RS
e - B — SN RN
HIMBE - SHERE(REBER
BREER) AR BEREL A s
T OMAEEHBREADENSELA
FRFEERFTRERSSHMES
7 HHIRE -

e
EBFEBRERNFREEBEENMET
JFEER B F1EZ 16.5% (2016 F : 16.5%) K
FRREHREE - EtiEERTHER &
MBEASEEKHERR mlE#ER
HPRITRIRATE -

2017
2017 &

2016
2016 4F
HK$'000
FAET

HK$'000
FET

Current — Hong Kong BVEl — &%

Charge for the year FAXH 6,864 6,825

Underprovision/(overprovision) in BAFERETR

prior years (HBRRRE) 200 (360)

Current — Elsewhere BNER — Efhih[=

Charge for the year FAXH 1,878 1,921

Withholding tax T (71) 140

Overprovision in prior years M FERERE (365) (1,131)
Deferred (note 28) IRE (MI3E28) 344 (23)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIAR X B 8,850 7,372

BaBmEEEaRAT
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30 June 2017

201746 A30H

9. INCOME TAX (Continued) 9. FrBEHi®)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before AEBEERRBRBRAIFENTEEE
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax R (AR AL M B AR T RE
rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of the Company’s EEAEERR)TENBRGH L EUE

subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax charge at the Group's

effective tax rate is as follows:

BRI R H TSRS RN T

2017 2016
2017 20165
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET T
Profit before tax RN IR 57,094 14,254
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate  #£%E7%8 16.5% (2016 F : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) HYETE B R PTRT I RR 9,421 2,352
Difference in tax rates for specific ERARE RS E RIS
jurisdictions or enacted by local tax Btk =R
authority, net 355 (368)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  FhiB7E BRI HY & BRTH BT
previous periods (165) (1,491)
Profits and losses attributable to R WNSINNE: Nl
joint ventures and associates MEE 2,043 1,346
Income not subject to tax BAGMMIE 2 WA (8,565) (818)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 T H 3,115 4,687
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BB BB A 2 FEEE (840) -
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 BIAEE 2,600 2,378
Withholding tax in respect of &% B A HREE 2 TR
dividend payments (71) 140
Others EHAth 957 (854)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate  EAEE BRI KT E
ZBEX 8,850 7,372
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30 June 2017
20176 H30H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. B2

2017 2016
2017 & 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Dividends recognised as distribution FABRED RS :
during the year:

Final 2016 — HK2.0 cents 2016 REIE — B
(2015: HK$30,000,000) per T EAR 2.0 810
ordinary share (2015 4F : 30,000,0007%&7T) 14,720 30,000
Less: Dividend for shares held under B IR REETEIIA TR
the share award scheme i 19 A% 2 (44) -
14,676 30,000
Interim 2017 — HKO.5 cent 2017 FhHIRRE — B
(2016: Nil) per ordinary share A% 0.5 81
(2016 : &) 3,680 -
Less: Dividend for shares held under B AR SREETEIIAE T AR
the share award scheme &gy (22) -
3,658 -
18,334 30,000
Dividend proposed after the end of the & EARBHIRAR S ¢
reporting period:
Proposed final 2017 — HK2.2 cents B 2017 FREAARE
(2016: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary — SREBER 2.2
share (20164 = 2.07%Al1) 16,283 14,720
The proposed final 2017 dividend of HK2.2 cents per ordinary FREZE2017 FREREGRERER22
share for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s BILBEFARRTRRAERERRBEF K
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. g LRk
Prior to the Listing, a final dividend of HK$30,000,000 in RARRBIIEG LA - B2 2015F 6 A
respect of the year ended 30 June 2015 was approved by the 30 B 1L 4 & /9 7K 23 A% 2. 30,000,000 % 7T
shareholders of the Company on 2 November 2015. 201511 B2 BERQEIRE#E ©
BABEEEERAA 191
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$44,085,000 (2016:
HK$6,676,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 733,369,479 (2016: 661,092,896) in issue during the
year, as adjusted to exclude the shares held under the share
award scheme. In the prior year, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue was on the assumption
that the capitalisation issue, as further explained in note 30
below, had been completed on 1 July 2015.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$44,085,000. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares of 733,369,479 in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
9,300,829 assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise of all share options into ordinary
shares. No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amount presented for the year ended 30 June 2016
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share amount presented.

11.

al]

?;’A_ EEERERAARGE

EREABRFCEIHERRQR L BE
=15 A A B & [E % 744,085,000 7T
(20165 : 6,676,000 7T) R FRE 31T
- 38 A% 0N #E 7 15 AR 733,369,479 A% (45
AE - TRERMEETEE TEBR
5) (20165 = 661,092,8960% ) 5T & -
F—FE  BBITTERMNEESHE
BREBEREBIT(R T XWF0E—F
fRFE) 2R 201597 A1 B =K °

BR#EEANSEIENAQ AL RE
5B A F 2% 744,085,000 7T
FrE o 5TETA 2 X @A INE TR 8
AT ESREARNMAZFANE BT
733,369,479 % E A% - A RBRRAFTE
BREREABTTEALBRE  &KE
ERFRBET2EBRMNEFSRE
9,300,829 % - MR RITHEBEREL 275
MERERBNCHEARBEIR K
WER B EHEZ2016F6 A30H 5
E2INEREABFSEERAE -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

12. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold and office Medical  equipment
improvements  equipment  equipment  and software
BE-
il RER ERRA
NEEE  BOERE BhRf RE# RE G
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
Thx ThL T TR TR Tén
30 June 2017 017%6A30R
At 30 June 2016 and at R06F6ANER
1 July 2016: M6ETA1A:
Cost A 26,297 4,879 34,046 10,902 546 76,670
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (10,769) (2,452) (16,901) (7,886) (248) (38,254)
Net carrying amount BETE 15,528 2,421 17,145 3,016 300 38,416
At 1 July 2016, net of R016ETA18
accumulated depreciation ENkZaHTE 15,528 2421 17,145 3,016 300 38416
Additions hE 11,566 2,365 9,969 3,965 - 27,865
Acquisitions of subsidfaries Y 2 (3 35)
note 35) 253 198 35 260 - 746
Disposals/write-off HE /i (16) (61) 6) = = (83)
Disposal of subsidiaries [note 3¢) LEMBRE (5E30) (2,048) (599) (2,459) (209) - (5,315)
Depreciation provided during LFHRIE
the year (6,887) (1,023) (6,794) (2,598) (148) (17,450)
Exchange realignment EfEE (93) (22) (120) (6) 0 (245)
At30 June 2017, net of R07E6 AR
accumulated depreciation ENRZ:HTE 18,303 3,285 17,770 4,428 148 43934
At 30 June 2017: R1TE6A0A
Cost s 33,703 5,665 40,707 14,730 537 95,342
Accumulated depreciation 2:tE (15,400) (2,380) (22,937) (10,302) (389) (51,408)
Net carrying amount BE¥E 18,303 3,285 17,770 4,428 148 43,934
BeBEERAR AR 193
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30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERRE@®

(Continued)

Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold and office Medical equipment
improvements equipment equipment  and software
5
R
IEE BAER 2ERMh FEAGE i ait
HKS HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAL ThL Thn TEL TATL
30 June 2016 16F6A0A
At1 July 2015: ROBETAIE:
Cost KA 20,593 3583 25,882 9,180 5% 59,834
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHTE (10,161) (2818) (12,938) (6,782) (108) (32.807)
Net carrying amount BE3E 10432 765 12944 2,398 488 21027
At 1 July 2015, net of R015ETA1E
accumulated depreciation BB E47E 10432 765 12,944 2398 488 21,027
Additions AE 7839 2,021 5858 1,983 - 17,701
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/ ~ WEMHBRE]/
business (note 35) £ (H3E30) 1,048 111 25% 150 - 3907
Disposals/write-off HE /A (203) 99 (100) (10) - @1
Depreciation provided during & F5HENE
the year (3,544) (364) 4130) (1,423 (150) 9,611)
Reclassification B - - 76 (76) - -
Exchange realignment EHAR (44) ®) (101) ) (38) (197)
At 30 June 2016, net of R2016E6A30H
accumulated depreciation BB EA7E 15,528 2427 17,145 3016 300 38,416
At 30 June 2016: R016F6A30R
Cost WA 26,297 4819 34,046 10902 546 76,610
Accumulated depreciation  23HH& (10,769) 245)) (16,901) (7,886) (244) (38,254)
Net carrying amount BEFE 15,528 2421 17,145 3016 300 3,416
1 94 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

13. GOODWILL 13. B8
2017 2016
2017 ¥ 20165
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
At beginning of year REA] 32,755 28,086
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/ LG NIEINGIVE S IR
business (note 35) 8,602 4,669
At end of year REXR 41,357 32,755
Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated RRABRE BREBEHEENEE
to the following cash-generating units for impairment testing: SRETIIREEEEL -
e Hong Kong medical services cash-generating unit; o EHEBERBHESELREN
*  PRC medical services cash-generating unit; and e FHEBERBRESELEM: K
*  Hong Kong dental services cash-generating unit e FHETHRBESELSL -
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the SEERHCELEUNHERETEN
cash-generating units is as follows: i

Hong Kong PRC Hong Kong

medical services medical services  dental services Total
ERBERE B B R AR BB RE my
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20165 20175 2016F 20175 20165 20175 20165

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THExT TEx THT FEx THT FTEx TER

Carrying amount BEREE
of goodwill 9,653 9,653 8,602 - 23,102 23,102 41,357 32,755

BARBEEERAT
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

13. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
The recoverable amounts of the above cash-generating units
have been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets

13.

BEw®E)

EERE AR (8)

IS E A B A AT IO & AR
FREEETTEMET  DENSRE
TE B A 5 4 R 0B TR 512

approved by senior management covering a five-year period. HIH S TRTER o FERARIE S TR R A1
The growth rates and discount rates applied to the cash flow EREGIFTHERMOT :
projections are as follows:
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
Hong Kong medical services BEEERE
Growth rate 1R R 3-10% 6.5%
Discount rate PTIR R 12% 12%
PRC medical services B B8 AR 7S
Growth rate HRE 10% -
Discount rate IR 15% -
Hong Kong dental services BT RRTS
Growth rate HRE 10% 5%
Discount rate PR K 12% 12%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating units for 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
taking into account the expected growth rate.

Growth rate — The growth rate is determined with reference
to the growth rate for the relevant unit, adjusted for expected
business, market development and economic condition.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit which is
determined with reference to the weighted average cost of
capital of the Group.

2017 F 6 A308 K 2016F 6 B30 &t
EReELSSEMFEREANKAT 4
Ra% o aﬁﬁ%#bATIﬂE““%'J
RERERETHEREAR -

FEWRA — AREEREWRARBEE
M EEIETBE FE R — FAABUSH T
WA - RIR T R RE -

WEE — BERE2EFHEMNMNER
RMAEETE  WIREFAHIEY  THEBE
T AR DA T ©

PHE — FRERMEITIR R BER AT R
BR 222 7K £5 18] 8 7R K 2N N SF 35 (B P
FE A BB RS IR AR o
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14. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

15.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

14. HthE\EEE

Customer relationship

EFR&
2017 2016
2017 % 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
At beginning of year REA 333 -
Acquisition of a business (note 35) Wi 25 7% (PR 5E 35) - 333
Amortisation provided during the year A2 #E 84 (111) -
At end of year RER 222 333
At 30 June: M6A30AR :

Cost AR 333 333
Accumulated amortisation Rt (111) -
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 222 333

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REEQATWRE
2016
20164
HK$'000
T
Share of net assets/(liabilities) DIEFREE/(BFE) 920 (10,196)
Due from joint ventures WA ERBIRIE = 34,010
920 23,814

The amounts due from joint ventures were unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment. In the
opinion of the directors, these amounts were considered as
part of the Group's net investments in the joint ventures.

During the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016, the Group
had the following material transactions in connection with its
investments in joint ventures:

(@  On 13 July 2015, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with Pinyu Limited (“Pinyu”) to establish
UMP Phoenix Healthcare on 50-50 basis and set up
medical centres in the Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei
regions, the PRC. Under the terms of the joint venture
agreement, each party will advance interest-free
shareholder’s loan in an aggregate sum of no less than
RMB50 million (equivalent to HK$58 million) to UMP
Phoenix Healthcare in stages. Pinyu is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Resources Phoenix Healthcare
Holdings Company Limited, which is a company listed
on the Stock Exchange and owned 15% (2016: 15%)
equity interest in the Company as at 30 June 2017.

RS ERBRFASEEN 2EAE
BEERH - EFTRA BHENERR
RAEEHERERRFRE & -

REE2017F R2016F6 A30B IEFE -
AEERANTEHERGERARKRESR
BZEARS :

(@) M2015%F7A138 » "N&EEHE S
WERRBI(RBWDITLAEER
# RS AR EER
AEBEHULR)  WHHRBEILER - X
2 AL b & Ak ST BE RS R L © ARIE
BEBRER  FTHNFS AR
MEABEUtR) BN EREE
HEXTLORARESOE S T (E
ER58EEEIT) - M AEHE
BEEERAR AR (KRBT E
HME A A R2017F6 A30H #
BARRDT15%(20164 : 15% ) R%HE)
N2 EMBAR -
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30 June 2017

2017 F 6 H30H

15.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

(b)

On 28 July 2016, the Group entered into another joint
venture agreement with independent third parties to
subscribe for 50% equity interest in /85 BB ERIEA
R 2R (“Shanghai He Dun") for a consideration of RMB1
million (equivalent to HK$1,151,000). Shanghai He Dun is
primarily engaged in the provision of dental services in
Shanghai, the PRC.

On 30 August 2016, UMP Phoenix Healthcare allotted
4,501 ordinary shares to the Group at par for a
consideration of US$45.01 (equivalent to HK$351), which
was settled through current account with UMP Phoenix
Healthcare. On the same date, an amount due from
UMP Phoenix Healthcare to the Group of RMB24.25
million (equivalent to HK$29,122,000) was capitalised as
investment in UMP Phoenix Healthcare.

On 23 March 2017, UMP Phoenix Healthcare disposed
of its 100% equity interests in UMP Medical Centre
Management Limited and its subsidiaries to HAML and
assigned the shareholder’s loan to HAML for a
consideration of in the sum of RMB79.5 million and
HK$2.8 million (equivalent to HK$92,091,000, in
aggregate).

On the same date, the Group completed the UMP
Phoenix Healthcare Subscription. Immediately after the
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Subscription, the Group's
equity interest in the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group
increased from 50% to 70% and the UMP Phoenix
Healthcare Group became subsidiaries of the Group
thereafter. A gain on remeasurement of previously held
interests in joint ventures, net of release of exchange
fluctuation reserve of HK$979,000, of HK$22,847,000 was
recognised in other income and gains in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2017. Further details of this business
combination are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.

15. REERTANRE &)

(b)

R201657 A28H & K £ B 855
NE=HEMN B A /‘ﬁfﬁ;ﬁ%
UREEEAREEREARA
([ EXg&3])50% Bk - 1tffz%A
R¥ 18 &t (EE 7% 1,151,000%
L) EBABEERTRAMER

HIFRRES

R20165E8 A308 @ B A B (L
) IERAEERASE R 4,501 KE
B REASNET(HER
35187L) B BEEAaER(dER)
ZREEFEN--RAB  BHABK
(tR)BERAEEBRBEBARE
24258 87t (188 7 29,122,000 %
T BEEREANB A BB
R)ZIE -

MR2017E3 8238 A%
RMEBEEEEEBHEERNEA
EXHRLERBRAGREWBA
Rz E2HRE  TREEEEEIE
HERHRER  REAAREKTS
BETM28BEETTZEM(EE
A 92,091,000 7T)

BA AEETKEEERALR)
REEIE - ZEHAER(JLR)R
BEIEE  AEEREAER L
) EE 2 B HE B 50%E E70% ¢
MEa Bt R) SEREZK AR
EIBHJEE A c EMFIE BT
N AR 2 Wam (FOBR B 5%
@J 1.5% {4 7 [@ ;% F979,000/8 7T ) &
22,847,000 7T © INE £2017F 6
ANBILEFEZHREBEAER
BEMBARIKEZ - BRIXEKEE G
2E—THBENTBEHRERW T
350
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30 June 2017
20176 H30H
15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REEARINIRE (#)
(continued)
Particulars of the Group's joint venture as at 30 June 2017 are REBEERAN2017F6A30 B
as follows: BT

Percentage of effective interest

Place Of ﬁ;&%é{att
Particulars of registration Ownership Voting Profit
capital held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
RRERGE AR EE LY BEERR RAR  NEHE  IRER
Shanghai He Dun Registered capital of ~ PRC 50 50 50 Provision of dental
RMB1,000,000 services
LEa% AMERARE i BRI RIS
1,000,0007C
The above investment is indirectly held by the Company. A FIREBHARRREERE -
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TERHPRZZE—EFSA=THMEAR
Group’s joint venture as at 30 June 2017 that is not TBERZAEEEERAZHEER

individually material:

2017
2017 &
HK$'000
TER
Share of the joint venture's loss and total FANhEERRBEREZEEELERE
comprehensive loss for the year (231)
Carrying amount of the Group's investment in AEBREAEEQARIMEEREE
the joint venture 920
The UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group, which was considered UMP Phoenix Healthcare & [ # 15 & 2
material joint ventures of the Group as at 30 June 2016, is EER2016F6A30BMNEREGERT] -
engaged in the provision of healthcare services in Mainland R B REREREBRRRERTE - &%
China and was accounted for using the equity method. =g ETIER -
e BBEEERAR 199

“E-LFER



Notes to the Financial Statements

RA 35 3R R B o

30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15.

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount as at 30 June 2016 in the

consolidated financial statements:

REEBQATNERE @)

T &R # 5 UMP Phoenix Healthcare 55 &
MEPFERBE - B BN E
AIZRIEE AR B NSV ERERTE
720164 6 A 30 AR BREE AR

2016
20165
HK$'000
T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEED 29,988
Other current assets Hitmeh&eE 11,543
Current assets mENEE 41,531
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,483
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and CRIBE  TEEEB S REMENKIE
other payables (64,115)
Other current liabilities HitmEhats (2,209)
Current liabilities mEBBE (66,324)
Non-current liabilities FRBALE (83)
Net liabilities BIRFH (20,393)
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in TEBREGERAINERER
the joint ventures:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBE AL 50%
Group's share of net liabilities of the joint ventures NEBH(EAE AT BERE (10,196)
Due from joint ventures JEWE & R RIFIEA 34,010
Carrying amount of the investments REREE 23,814
Revenue e 3,704
Interest income MEBWA 28
Depreciation e 129
Income tax expense FriS il & (224)
Loss for the year FREE (19,934)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FAHMEEER (459)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FARHEGIBER (20,393)
200 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

16. REFEQRNKRE

2017 2016
2017 &

20164
HK$’'000 HK$'000

FB FHT

G EEFE 3,116 2,209

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of
issued shares held

RADRA

e

B A RIMFFAE RN T

Place of Percentage of
incorporation ownership interest
and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
AL R AEEMERRRER
e E]:2i] TEXHK

2017 2016

2017 & 0165

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical
laboratory scanning
services

FERH N AR OBRAT LRk BB feft BRI RR RS

Flash Mover Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 25 - Provision of magnetic
resonance imaging
services

REBRAT LAk &R Bt RN KRR GRS

Sunny Wealth Consultants Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 - Provision of surgical
services

REBRARAA LER &R BRtt T MiARAS

Tiger Era Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical and
consultation services

EBERLA Lak i Bt T Rk AR

UMP Eyecare and Optometry Centre Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical

Limited ("UMP Eyecare”) services and sale of
spectacles

BRBBRNRRES AP LERAE  EAR &R REBERBRHEERR

([Ha®RR])
BeBEERAR AR 201
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30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. REBEERTNRE @)

Place of Percentage of
Particulars of incorporation ownership interest
issued shares held and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
KRERMT ML R AEBAERRRER
Rt gens BiLAl IREH
2017 2016
2017% 20165
UMP Medical Centre (Tsing Yi) Limited ~ Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical
services
BagBh 0 (R ARAR LAk &R Rt BRI
UMP Medical Centre (Grandiose) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical
Limited ("UMP Grandiose") services
Bagiho (EHE) LER &R RILBRRI

ARAR(HAERE))

UMP Medical Centre (Yuen Long) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Inactive
Limited ("UMP Yuen Long")
BEBEBRL(THA)ERAR LER &R TER
L=yl
The above investments are indirectly held by the Company. i ERA B EERE -
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The statutory financial statements of the above associates
were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of associates, UMP Eyecare, UMP Grandiose and UMP
Yuen Long, because the share of losses of these associates
exceeded the Group's interests in these associates and the
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. The
amounts of the Group's unrecognised share of losses of these
associates for the current year and cumulatively were
HK$604,000 (2016: HK$703,000) and HK$3,130,000 (2016:
HK$2,526,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not individually
material:

Share of the associates’ profit and
total comprehensive income ST N L

for the year

REERHEE N7
KEBREE

Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group's investments in
the associates

FREIEBERARNE

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

16. REEERRINKRE @)
M EBE AT EE RS RELIEEE
BRKGHAEEART KR IRERE S
—FREATEE -

AEBECRIERERIEB 2 AR (BE
IRE - BAERUE LB A TTE) MEE
AREEILEBERRNEBERDBHA
SER L EME AR ER - MAKEL
BAEEZERNERY - AMEERRFA
SEAEANEBEZSHLEAREBED
51| % 604,000 % 7T (2016 6 = 703,000 7T)
3,130,000 7T (2016 4F = 2,526,000 %
T) °

NEREHIER S I I E A A B
BRTIEBTEER

2017
2017 &

2016
2016 4F
HK$'000
FAET

HK$'000
FET

1,622

1,805

3,116 2,209

BaBmEEEaRAT
“E-LFER
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

17. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Debt investments, at

17. EEZIHRE

2017
2017 &

2016
2016 4F
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
TR

BERE - B HK AR E

amortised cost 61,022 56,728

Analysed into: DHITHE
Non-current portion FERNERER 1 46,017 26,721
Current portion BNERER (D 15,005 30,007
61,022 56,728

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's held-to-maturity investments
represented debt investments with fixed maturity dates
between 2017 and 2022 and fixed interest rates ranging from
1.3% to 4.9% per annum (2016: 1.0% to 4.9% per annum).

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

HE2017F6A308  "EBFEEE
HEEEAFETIHAENT201742
2FMEBFRE  EBEMENT
1.3% 2 4.9% (20165 « FFENF1.0%
Z49%) °

18. AMtHERE

2016
2016 4F

2017
2017 &
HK$'000
FE&xT

HK$'000
TAT

Unlisted equity investments, at cost FE LTRSS @ IR AT &= 3,510 3,510
Listed debt investments, at fair value EHEREE  BAREEE 5,915 5,497
9,425 9,007

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$418,000 (2016: Nil).

As at 30 June 2017, the unlisted equity investments were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of
them in the near future.

FR AEBAHRIEREZEF
418,000 7T (2016 F « )R EMEE IR
A RERR ©

R201756 A30H » FFEMRERER
BRASEORES R - RARAEAR(EE
fEtZBEEXN  EFR/ELREER
TEERAISERTE - AEEEEREHA
HEBE -
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19.

20.

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

INVENTORIES 19. F&
2017 2016
2017 &F 2016 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET TFETT
Pharmaceutical supplies Bemfit e 6,685 6,907
TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EZEWRERE

B 5 EUGRIR

Trade receivables

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$'000

T 7T

47,450

HK$'000
FTERT

56,791

The Group's trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a designated policy to monitor and
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEBMERANEFPZESHRREEN
FEETAET - FEH-—KR/1EA - 4
ITERFPALEREIEA -BHEHE
FHRERRERREE - AEBHRY
REERBGRIBEFFBERES - XRE
HEBR - PABSRI R B R OB E &
K-mfEndesRe2ETHEMN -
AREEY B EE 5 RUGKIR SRR
BEMAERREIEMEERTRE - B
5 EUGRIANFT B o

RBEMRNE S REFIAREZAH
HRRER DITEAT -

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$'000

F&T

HK$'000
FTERT

Within 1 month IREI 48,544 34,705
1to 2 months 1Z22{EA 3,127 6,073
2 to 3 months 22318 A 4,187 2,646
Over 3 months 3MEAME 933 4,026

56,791 47,450

BABBEEERAR
“E-LFER
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

20. EZEWRIE (&)

{51 2 2k R 4% AR R (B 1) & 5 FE UL SR IR
ZERER AT

2017 2016
2017 &£ 20164

HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Neither past due nor impaired R EA R (A 48,544 34,686
Less than 1 month past due wEIDR1@EA 3,127 6,092
1 to 3 months past due BEA1E3EA 3,809 6,109
More than 3 months past due BEIZ R 3E A 1,311 563

56,791 47,450

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the trade receivables as at 30 June 2017 are trade
receivables due from related companies of HK$499,000 (2016:
HK$283,000), which have the same credit period as other
contract customers. CTFE is a major beneficial shareholder of
these related companies in which Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick,
an executive director of the Company is the Chief Executive
Officer of CTFE.

ARBPARENE ZREFIREE T
IR RRENSRTP B -

AMERRENE ZREFIALES £ M
AEBERIRFEBENBILEFA
B RIBAEER  ARAREZRRH
RERERLEBERE L - BREHE
DR RA] 2RO - WEF R ZF 8
RAVERE R -

R2017F6 A0 EME SRR ERRE
R AR RIAE 5 RIS 499,000 7
7T (20164 : 283,000387T) » 3% Z AN
EEPHEGCEHRAHER - ARXEDR

EZEEBAFTNIETEZRE A
REIRTEBYLRERERARNRELE
MITERAEHL -
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21.

22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

21. ARRE RESREAMAER

M

2017 2016
2017 % 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Prepayments A HIE 2,745 2,603
Deposits paid for purchases of BEWE BE&
items of property, BEEIRES
plant and equipment 8,377 6,281
Deposits RER 10,488 14,321
Other receivables H At R FRIE 2,502 2,510
24,112 25,715
Less: Portion classified as B Blo AIERBEENE G,
non-current assets (15,263) (16,281)
Current portion TRENEL D 8,849 9,434

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

PR EEERINALRE - BIFEEN L
RERRA R 2 B E B BT HANY SR KGR ARD 8%
BRE S M EYGRIRRR

22. %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬁéﬂ'gﬁﬁm‘ﬁ

2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ FHAREIRE (R AR

BETE) 2,356 2,026

The above listed equity investments at 30 June 2017 and 2016
were classified as held for trading.

A 2017 E R 201656 A30 B/ £/
BEEEGABEEENSREE -

BARBEEERAT
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

23. BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

23. EARE N R 2 EER

2017 2016

2017 F 20164F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Due from associates i NG B 10,937 5,619
Impairment RE (4,744) (5,02¢6)

6,193 593
The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free and HHEENR 2 EHRBERR 28 RE

have no fixed terms of repayment. & EEE -

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due

from associates are as follows:

FEWEE =& R R IR E R B < E BT

2017 2016

2017 F 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

At beginning of year REH 5,026 3,339
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) & RERREEE (K13t 6) - 1,687
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B BRI EEE (M 6) (282) -
At end of year RER 4,744 5,026

Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts
due from associates is a provision for individually impaired
amounts of HK$4,744,000 (2016: HK$5,026,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$6,322,000 (2016:
HK$5,136,000), of which the related debtors were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered.

24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

JE Ui Bt 2 1 R R IE 2 R E BB B 1 A

Bk B 4,744,000 % 7T (2016 £F : 5,026,000
BI)ELOEE  BEINERER
6,322,000/ 7T (20164 : 5,136,000/87T)
HEES AL RV BREE - ALt - BHE
BEUR B120 7> FEUL I o

24. BB DR Z AR

2017 2016

2017 5 20164

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TFE T FATT

Due from related companies ezl NI 5,284 -
Due to related companies i) NI R 423 _
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

(Continued)

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Name of related companies

BB AR BB

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

24. EARABE D Bl 2 EERR (8)

Relationship with the Company or the Group
BRAQTHAEEZBE

GZ Ruian

EYAE RS

CTFE

AXRBEE

HAML and its subsidiaries

BRAEEENAMBAR

ERGEMERBEERATF
ERFEHERBERERLQA

Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited
("Rich Point")

Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited
([Rich Point])

GZ Ruian is controlled directly by Dr. Sun Man Kin, an executive
director of the Company.

BENImEZBARRNTEFAXEB LR RKES -

Mr. Patrick Tsang, an executive director of the Company, is the
Chief Executive Officer of CTFE.
RAFHITERTELREAELERBAABER ZITHAH, -

HAML and its subsidiaries are jointly controlled by a subsidiary
of CTFE and a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited
BERAEEENENBARABAREEZMEB AR KIAIZ
SEBERQFZMEB AR HLEZES

IR SEFERBEFR A Alis a group company of CTFE
IRGEHRERBEERARREARBREEZEERA -

Rich Point was the then holding company of subsidiaries now

comprising the Group before completion of the reorganisation

on 30 December 2014

J‘5A2014$12H 30 B SEAE AT
NEZ AT

Rich Point & &N £ B 58 T K

BaBmEEEaRAT
“E-LFER
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30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 24. EREABE DT 28R ()

(Continued)

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies, FERAES A B FUESES  BRESELT
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong 1EBIE3BIMNAIELRBBRAF(BREES
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong Kong FZSERD OB -

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Maximum Maximum

amount At 30 June amount

At outstanding 2016 and outstanding

30 June during at1July during the

2017 the year 2016  prior year
R2016 5

6A308 K
R2017 E FREE 20165 FRARE  R2015F
6H30R KEEHE 7818 REEBEFHE 7818
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT FHT TAT FHT
GZ Ruian BN 57 57 - 1,473 1,473
HAML and its subsidiaries REEETER
HINB AR 5,227 85,930 - - _
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

25. BERBESEEYREBEHER

2017 2016
2017 &£ 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITER 404,894 161,982
Time deposits TEHRTF K 30,000 100,100

434,894 262,082
Less: Pledged deposits (note) B IR (M) (821) (783)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREFEEY 434,073 261,299

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB")
amounted to HK$15,154,000 (2016: HK$17,689,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Note: Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2017 is a deposit of
HK$500,000 (2016: HK$500,000) in connection with a surety bond issued
by a bank in favour of an independent third party for potential damages
of dental equipment.

Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2017 is another deposit
of HK$321,000 (2016: HK$283,000) in connection with a bank guarantee
issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing of a medical centre
of the Group.

RBEBER REBUARBE(TAR
¥ DEHEMIR S RIRTTH#R B 15,154,000
7 T (20164F : 17,689,000 7T ) - AR
BWIEEHRERAEMEY AWM B
BT EE AR LA SNEE B AEH R A
E -EEMMEEERT  ~A5EEE
FREREETINEESNIRTER A
RE=HMmE -

RITERRERS BRITERAN R0 F
BHRFFE - EHERFROHA[ A
EoBR-—BEZEATE  R¥EALEHE
BN IR &R B - RS G HE BF A
RIREA B - RITHER M EHERFR
PMEBR I BT HY 2 )R8 HOIRTT o

Mict: EPRERBRE—S8E - RFTEA—BBL
EZMBEFRZBRBELORBORE
HENER - ZEFRR2017F6A30BH
#2758 /500,00078 7T (20164 : 500,000/ 7T) °

BETREE—FHA—RBTAEEHRA
EAEE—RMAZHELWEBITERAEN
TR ZEEHR2017F6 A0BMHRER
321,000 7T (2016 4F + 283,000787T) °

WoEBREERAT
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

26. EZENRIE

RBERRNE S RN FIAZERAH
M RRER DMTIAE -

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within 1 month 1MEAR 22,506 17,887
1 to 3 months 1231@A 30,866 28,381
Over 3 months 3EAME 375 1,023
53,747 47,291

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on terms ranging from 30 to 90 days.

27. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND
DEFERRED INCOME

EHRMNFERRE A RN I0EI0K
NEH -

HMEAR  FREAREL

L'ON

2017 2016

2017 20165

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHIT

Other payables E fth BT R 12,806 10,628
Accruals TEIRE A 5,940 4,981
Deposits received BURE S 463 4,444
Deferred income FEIEUT A 8,515 10,536
Due to non-controlling interests JE AT FEHE AR A 2 RIE 8,523 8,919
Deferred rental FRIEHE S 436 2,022
Provision for reinstatement costs R AN B 29 472 -
37,155 41,530

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally repayable on demand. The amounts due to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

HpEN R EERERD RS A —RIE
ERER - BNMERRIFEZEBRERR
AEER  2RAEETERPR -
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30 June 2017
201746 H30H
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IELERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FRRELHBEBEERBEZESOT :

the year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax assets ELEBBEEELRE
Losses
Depreciation  available for
in excess offsetting
of related future
depreciation taxable
allowance profits
## AR A AR 8
mEREZ RIHRB
e FERESIR =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET FH&TT
At 1 July 2015 201547 418 990 252 1,242
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERNFFAEZEEEBRK
to the consolidated statement (BEFRABEERN%R) W
of profit or loss during the year RIERIE (P EE9)
(note 9) (680) 1,254 574
At 30 June 2016 and R2016F 6 A308 &
at 1 July 2016 2016%F7H1H 310 1,506 1,816
Deferred tax charged FABHFEBERRR
to the consolidated statement BYIERER T8 (M1 9)
of profit or loss during the year
(note 9) (45) (238) (283)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36)  HEMWBAF (FIFE36) (10) - (10)
At 30 June 2017 M20177 56 H30H 255 1,268 1,523
BABBEEERAA 213
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30 June 2017

201746 A30H

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. IEIEFLIE (&)
Gross deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEEEAEE

Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments

in excess of  arising from
related business

depreciation combination

B EE EBEH

wEZ EEMN
WERE AAEERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FABT FHET
At 1 July 2015 ©®2015%F7 18 450 - 450
Deferred tax charged to FRNBEHEEBRRIRL
the consolidated statement RIERIE (FIEE9)
of profit or loss during the year
(note 9) 551 - 551
Acquisition of a business (note 35) UgRE—IE 275 (Fi3¥ 35) - 55 55
At 30 June 2016 and MR2016F 6 A30H &
at 1 July 2016 2016F7 A1H 1,001 55 1,056
Deferred tax charged FRNEEEBERRR
to the consolidated statement BIRAE RS IE (M5 9)
of profit or loss during the year
(note 9) 61 - 61
At 30 June 2017 R2017 %6 A30H 1,062 55 1,117
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and 7%%5'] BE) ETELEHEBEEERER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of WA MBIRRAKREERE - TR
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred Hzﬂﬁ‘%#ﬁ% B &9 i 51 K &) A 5 BIR AE T
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: THERFE DT

2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE IR R R IR A

the consolidated statement of EERRIEE = F 5
financial position 1,375 1,157
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R & B S AK R R HERR
the consolidated statement of EERIEREFR
financial position (969) (397)
406 760
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 30 June 2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$13,354,000 (2016: HK$4,200,000),
subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$12,129,000 (2016:
HK$7,509,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future
taxable profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or
10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 30 June 2017, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$1,312,000 at 30 June 2017 (2016:
HK$119,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

28. IEIEFLIE (8)

R2017F6 8308 REBEEFBEL
2 RERTIBEIB A 513,354,000 7T
(20164F : 4,200,000 7T) (BEHEEBM
BRAE) ZEREEBAERPHAE
BEEEBEBZ AR ZRKEZRHRF
e NEBNBEFBEAEELEZ KIE
25 I8 18 49 12,129,000 7% 7T (2016 4F -
7,509,000 7 ) (75 5 8 B8 B 7% 14 23 [F)
) ZESHEEEERATRER - 7
AEREEEBIEZ AR Z R RERH
FE o F A AR BE B SR SR FE R FR FB 2R
B AW ERZE B EEREERE
BE -

BIEFRRDEMERE - RPBRKRER
VZINERECERIINEREETIR S
BB ERI0% BN TEI R o It R T A
200841 A1 B A - I i#E A 2007
F12A31N BB ZEF) o 4 B K fEEH)
BIREEREAEEE NG LI RL -
ARAREZTENHE - XEBEEAHN
MHRB5%10% - Eit » NEBAE
A AR B K BE X S B B B 2 /) Bt 2008 4 1
R1BREAZREMND IR E MBMATE
E o

R2017E6 A308 @ W ERE A& ER
AR B AR ST BB B A R R FE R & R (ZB S
MIBITE) M A TE N B RIEE T
B-EBEZRE  ZEMBRARRAYEE
T RATRE DR B AT - 12017 F
6A308  BERERPEAEZHBA
AEBNARBRECHEBEEENRAY
B oM R 51,312,000 7T(20164F :
119,000/ 7¢) °

2 A ) P BRUIE 3% O Bl B3 4B X P AS AR

=71
= °
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30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

29. PROVISION 29. B1E

2017 2016
2017 201645
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
At beginning of year REA] 1,718 1,372
Addition during the year FRIEM = 346
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) & BB A R (PR 36) (163) -
Exchange alignment B 3, 5 B (9) -
At end of year RER 1,546 1,718

Less: Portion classified as current B ARARBEENIGN
liabilities (note 27) (Bf5E27) (472) -
Non-current portion EMBESD 1,074 1,718

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return
certain of its leased properties to the conditions as stipulated
in the respective tenancy agreements at the expiration or
sooner determination of the corresponding lease term as
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was
estimated based on certain assumptions and estimates made
by the directors with reference to quoted prices and/or other
available information. The assumptions and estimates are

reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised as appropriate.

REBARET LS HEOGR  NEE
FRBESEHEGRKERYERHIERR
ERRBANAEEEEMBEENET
ME - BERRABREBLHEREEZ2ER
BR,/RHEME MG BT HAE R K
SRR o R KRR E T AR AR L
MEEZIE -

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
Shares iz 4
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T T
Authorised: VERE
5,000,000,000 (2016: 5,000,000,000) 5,000,000,000 f%
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 (2016 % : 5,000,000,000 f%)
(2016: HK$0.001) each FHREE0.001 T
(20164 : 0.00177T)
B E Ak 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITMER
737,492,000 (2016: 736,000,000) 737,492,000 f%
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 (20164 : 736,000,000 A&%)
(2016: HK$0.001) each SAREE0.001 47T
(20164 : 0.0017%&7T)
EOREF LS 737 736
21 6 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

A %580 RO i

30 June 2017
20176 H30H
30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. B ()
Shares (Continued) B (&)
The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued RATIREZE2017F KX 2016F 6 B30 H
share capital during the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016 EFEZEERBEITRAZEMT :

are as follows:

Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares
EERYA EEREE
HK$'000
FTAT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 July 2015 R2015F7 A 1H 5,000,000 388
Increase of 50,000 ordinary shares of 1 9150,000 8% R EE
HK$7.80 each 7.80 8 7T 2 L ik (b) 50,000 390
Cancellation of authorised but unissued 3 #5& MR E B 0.01 ETH
shares of US$0.01 each EEERETRS (e) (5,000,000) (388)
Sub-division of 50,000 ordinary shares 150,000 % B AR E1E7.80
of HK$7.80 each into ordinary shares BT BRRFAR
of HK$0.01 each BREE00 AL LBk (f 38,950,000 -
Sub-division of 39,000,000 ordinary # 39,000,000 i & A% E &
shares of HK$0.01 each into 0.01B 7T L@ R4
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each REREE0.00ET
ZEER (9 351,000,000 -
Increase of 4,610,000,000 ordinary 3#914,610,000,000 J& & B
shares of HK$0.001 each EE0.001 & ikt (9) 4,610,000,000 4,610
At 30 June 2016, at 1 July 2016 R20165F 64308 « 2016F
and at 30 June 2017 7ATEN2017E6A30H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 July 2015 R2015F7 18 1 -
Issuance of 99,999 ordinary shares %£1799,999 IR B R E E
of US$0.01 each 001 ET 2 Emk (a) 99,999 8
Share repurchase [ ) 18 (c) (100,000) 8)
Issuance of 1,000 ordinary shares 171,000 R FREET.80
of HK$7.80 each BT L ER (d) 1,000 8
Sub-division of 1,000 issued ordinary #5 1,000 KR E(E7.808 T
shares of HK$7.80 each into ordinary ZEBETERER
shares of HK$0.01 each FARBRAEBECN AT
ZEER ] 779,000 -
Sub-division of 780,000 issued ordinary 780,000 i & A% T {€.0.01
shares of HK$0.01 each into ordinary BILZEBITLER
shares of HK$0.001 each i 48 A B AR E 8 0.001
Bz LBk ) 7,020,000 -
Capitalisation issue BT (h) 544,200,000 544
Issuance under initial public offering BEENAFRERT (i) 184,000,000 184
At 30 June 2016 and at 1 July 2016 R20165F6 A30 B K 2016F
7H1H 736,000,000 736
Exercise of share options diie (i) 1,492,000 1
At 30 June 2017 R2017F6A30H 737,492,000 737
BeBBEEBRAR 217
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30 June 2017

2017 F 6 H30H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

(a

On 8 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued 99,999
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at par to the then
ultimate holding company of the Company.

On 25 August 2015, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased by HK$390,000 by the creation
of 50,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$7.80 each,
ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing shares
of the Company.

On 25 August 2015, the Company repurchased 100,000
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at par from the then
shareholders of the Company (which was paid out from
the proceeds of the issue of 1,000 ordinary shares of
HK$7.80 each referred to in (d) below).

On 25 August 2015, the Company allotted and issued
1,000 ordinary shares of HK$7.80 each at par to the then
shareholders of the Company.

On 25 August 2015, the authorised but unissued share
capital of the Company of 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
US$0.01 each was cancelled.

On 25 August 2015, each issued and unissued ordinary
share of HK$7.80 was sub-divided into 780 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each such that the authorised share
capital of the Company was HK$390,000 divided into
39,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of
the Company passed on 2 November 2015, (i) every
ordinary share of HK$0.01 in the capital of the Company
was sub-divided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each such that the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$390,000 divided into 390,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each; and (i) the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased to
HK$5,000,000 by the creation of 4,610,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each, ranking pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of
the Company passed on 13 November 2015,
544,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way
of capitalisation from the share premium account to the
then shareholders on a pro-rata basis. This allotment
and capitalisation issue was conditional on the share
premium account being credited as a result of the issue
of new shares to the public in connection with the
Company'’s initial public offering as detailed in note (i)
below.

30. A& (&)
R (1)

(a)

MR2015F7 A8H » AARIKMEE
Bt 3% K 2517 99,999 A% & A% I {E 0.01
ETLZEBBRTAR R E R REE
[IENEI

M2015F8 A25H @ i 1B 1 hn %8
4150,000 B = BX EE 7.80 8 T & 3@
% (R ATAE A mEEARFIRAE KD
ZERZER)  AREEERA
1 HN1Z 390,000 78 7T, ©

M2015%8 A25H » AR T A A
7~ a)E B I 5 2 {E 88 B 100,000
B EE0.0I T E®MAL - AT
X (d) i 317 1,000 A% A% E B 7.80
BT BEATSRIEL T -

M2015F8 A25H » AKX RIIEZE
{ERC 3 & %577 1,000 A% T AX E E 7.80
BTEBR T ARRERARE -

MR2015F8 A25H © KR AETE
1B 2K 3% 17 A% 75 5,000,000 % 77 A% &
E0.01 ETEBRIET -

M2015E8 8250 K2 & 1TR
REEITEIREE 7.8078 T T @ALHT
405780 R FAXEE0.01 8 L@
f% A2 B TE A% 48 390,000 7% 7T
% 39,000,000 I & A% B {H0.01 7
TCERA o

BIE2015F11A2B AR AR
RHBBMEmREE  (\VAQFE
NAEAREE0.01 78 7T @A IR 4m
A0 B IR EE0.00T BT B
AR BSE TE AR AR 390,0008 7T D A
390,000,000 A% & A% 1 € 0.001 7% 7T
TR KB B 1 EE b
4,610,000,000 f% & A% I 1€ 0.001 7%
TTEBIR(ATAE S EEARRRIR
BERMDEZEERSER) XARDE
TE AR 7RI Z= 5,000,000 78 7T ©

B 2015F 11 A13B A QTR
HBBMEBRZEE 544,200,000
A% 5 A% [ 5.0.001 7 7T % 38 A% & 1%
BRI AR EBRIR Ll
BRI A BT IREEA
BRI AT - FROEERAARRD
AIE X AFEE BT ST 5E )
Bl ) /)R B BT R M 8153
BR1E 5 0] F UARR 2% N B (L BE1T
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

31.

Shares (Continued)

(i) In connection with the Company’s initial public offering,
184,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were
issued at a price of HK$2.06 per share for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$379,040,000. Dealing in the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 November
2015.

0] The subscription rights attaching to 1,492,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$1.2228 per share, resulting in the issue of 1,492,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,824,000. An
amount of HK$508,000 was transferred from the share-
based payment reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options and share awards

Details of the Company'’s share option schemes and the share
options under the schemes and the Company'’s share award
scheme are included in notes 31 and 32 to the financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme except that (i) no further options
could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the share
options are different as further detailed below.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

30. A& (&)

31.

B3 (%)

() A2 AEXRDHAZEE
184,000,000 f% & A% [ 18 0.001 7 7T
BRI B 20678 T B 3%
T BRI ARERERED
379,040,000 7T o 78 22 B B 19 1
2015F 1M A7 B EMRFTHAGKE

= ,

=

() 1,492,00017 & R4 P MY SR B 12
REBETMR1.2228BTTITE - A
171,492,000 A% & AL HI {2 0.001 /8
T2 EER  HIBMAXA RN
18 48 %8 751,824,000/ 7T » 1T L
RE AR HE 12 - /3 508,000 7T TR IAR
HIARD RER 2 M REHERE
Pt B R o

B RER R 1 2R B

AN B R B AR A AT 8 AT BT T B AR A
AR AN B RR D SR BT B 515 2 B E R
B SRARMIFE 31 32 -

BRESE

RAREEERAFEERBERETE
(TERCRBEEAEREE ) MER
EREI D REDEGE AR
AR RRSAEEZEXINB AR
BEBR2EEREERDLEHN - BAQ
FA 3% &5 T B M At 81 3 B IR R R AR
STEMRFRAEEL - LA ERSNi) Al R IE
BRAFREEABRE SR L BRE
R () BERENITEEBRITES - AE
BRI -

BABBEEERAT
—E—tEEH
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30 June 2017
20176 A30H

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the Company's
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, consultants of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the
Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was approved and adopted on 18 August
2015. The Share Option Scheme became effective on
27 November 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Schemes is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Schemes within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

31.

BIRESTE (e

B A ER2REREARRES (BE
BYIERTES) AEBEMES - M
AEBREERIBRBGOEER A%
EHER  AEBEFE - ARQRAIHRE
LA Ko 7K X BB B 1 B B9 4 {a] JE 4% AR AR
B oo BRI E R IERERT E15 2015
FeA18HBBWER - BAREE
R2015F 11 27 B £ BRIELE M
FRECESKER] B EZBHRERSH
BI04 o

B B R 8RB e RITE B &
= 8B AERETERE AR R R
A2 ZITAD 10% » RIZE AR AT ME
2@ A HRA R B SR ER2EE
BOTNROHESHE - RRAQBNE
IR BTG 1% ° ERIFE L LR ER
M-SR EBREABBERAS LK
RYLAE -

MARFES  THAHIEIZBRXK
EAREHEARENBREAELE
BEIIFENTESE - LI AAR
AEERRIB L IFNTE ST IR
EMBAR LI IEREBBAQRIE
fa] B ) 2 1T AR 19 0.1% AR (B (R A
NRB R E L A BT E) R EMR
12 ASREABERSBEEET)  AFEL
KRR S D ERRALE -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$1.2228 and the share options are
exercisable after a vesting period of one to two years in the
following manner:

Vesting period of
the relevant percentage of the options

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2016

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2017

BREAFEILHNEEH

20158 H18AZE 201658 H17H

20158 H18AZE 201748 H17H

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

31. BRETE ()
BOR A BB A B R S BB T AR
HFT (B 51,0208 5 7T » BERRRE AT 3 —
ERERBRERIAT A RITE -

Maximum
percentage of
options
exercisable
AT RS R Y
BEADL

10%

90%

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of the
share options; and (iii) the average of the closing prices of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RIBERAER SR X TRRE
ERAXNRBAREG 1B TERE
BB - IR RS B E R BB A
TEHARBEFET REBHEHA
H REREZHBEMENDRI10FH
Sl

BRI ETERENTEERES
BT TR )RR EE ) B
REERERAMRARBBRDRE
BHERLH R BMOWHE R BRAE
HIRERAMMRAR RN N ERER
REHBEHARER S BMFHRME
(ABZERE) °

BRELER THAEARKRE R
RRE LREZERN -

BaBmEEEaRAT
“E-LFER
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30 June 2017
2017 F 6 H30H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

31. BRETE

FR- BRARBERBRETSAT
RARTTER BRI T -

2017 2016
2017 £ 20164

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
IS fE INHEFH) ARt
IEE A 1B g

HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BT T4 AT F15
At beginning of year REH 1.2228 46,400 - -
Granted during the year FERFH - - 1.2228 48,000
Forfeited during the year FrR Uk - - 1.2228 (1,600)
Exercised during the year ERITE 1.2228 (1,492) - -
At end of year RER 1.2228 44,908 1.2228 46,400

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$4.15 per
share (2016: No share options were exercised).

The following share options under the Share Option Scheme
were outstanding during the year:

FRTERBREEAZMEFARER
FRANSEITT(2016F « W HMEAEE
1718)

TR BEREEETHARITENER
mT

2017 2016
2017 4 20164F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
pilik: B2 R pillL: B fE R
1T1EE #H 1T1E(E 28

HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRABTT T3 BRATT T
At beginning of year REH 1.27 2,426 - -
Granted during the year FRFRH - - 1.27 2,426
At end of year RER 1.27 2,426 1.27 2,426
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2017

Number

of options

BRERE

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

31. BRESTEl (&)
1R AT E B RRAE A SRS MR MO 1T (5B R
BT

2017 &

Exercise price* Exercise period

ITEEx TES

‘000  HKS$ per share
145 HiRATT
3,148 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 2016%F 8 R 18HE2022%F 11 A26H
41,760 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 20178 R 18HE2022%F 11 A26H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2017 to 30 June 2021 201776 A30HE2021F 6 A30H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2018 to 30 June 2021 201856 A30HZE 20216 A30H
47,334

2016

Number
of options

Exercise price*

2016 %

Exercise period

BREHE TEE TEH
‘000  HKS$ per share
T BRABTT
4,640 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 201658 H18BE2022F 11 H26 R
41,760 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 20178 A18BE2022F 11 A26 8
1,213 1.27 30 June 2017 to 30 June 2021 2017 6 H30AZE2021F6 A30H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2018 to 30 June 2021 2018 6 A30AZE 202196 A30A
48,826

*

of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the prior
year was HK$17,341,000 (HK$0.34 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$8,066,000 (2016:
HK$7,546,000) during the year ended 30 June 2017.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case

* BRENTEENBHERRARBETIARL
BB B A SRR By iy S5 2K

F—FERLERENAAEBES
17,341,0008 7L (B JR0.34 L) - E b
REBRBEE2017F6 A308 ILEERE
2 B8 A% 4 B9 2 8,066,000 7T (2016 6 :
7,546,000/ 7C) °

BABBEEERAR
“E-LFER
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the prior year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

31. BRETE
RN E T BREN D
AEEREL BB EREE - &5
T B RRAE T 93 0 IR K R M » TR T
H TR R M8 A L -

2016
2016 4F

Dividend yield (%) % Bk 5 2R (%) 1.50
Expected volatility (%) ?EHH& & (%) 29.04-41.40
Risk-free interest rate (%) % TR (%) 0.63-1.49
Expected life of options (year) Eﬁﬂy\iféiﬁ,ﬁﬂfﬁ,ﬁﬂ (%) 5.00-7.30

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)

IR fE (BB T)

1.2228-1.27

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
47,334,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 47,334,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$47,000 and
share premium of HK$57,947,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 44,691,000 share options outstanding under
the Schemes, which represented approximately 6.0% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ’ﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁsﬁj’t?—ﬁ&ﬂ%—fﬁﬁiz
EEITER o BHK IR R R R B
RE ] R BR AR B E (AT RERA u}iﬂ%ﬁﬁf’%
KR -

BMER AN BEFEMACTELBRE
A EL b 452 o

RBEEHR AQ2AREEAE
M%mmﬁﬁxﬁﬁ%%% RIE AR

PNEBATEANER  BEITERRITE
A I M G B B BE 17 AN 2 /) 47,334,000 A%
REHNE 3B AR 2 B /MR 2K 47,000 75 7T M A%
13 % 857,947,000 7T (14 3 176 X
Al) e

REBYBHRREMEBR  AQER
1BET 818 44,691,00017 18 ARTTE BB ARLAE -
HERARNRANZ BB EITRNE6.0% -
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32. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 June 2016, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of
recognising the contributions by certain eligible participants
and providing them with incentives in order to retain them for
the continual operation and development of the Group and
to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the
Company’s directors, senior management and other
employees of the Group, and employed experts of the
Group. The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from 30 June 2016, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited to 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company at any time. The
maximum number of shares which may be awarded to each
eligible participant in the Share Award Scheme is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share Award
Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected and the
number of shares to be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is determined by the board of directors. The shares
to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be
purchased by a trustee (the “Trustee”) from the open market
out of cash contributed by the Group and be held on trust for
the Selected Participant until such shares are vested with the
Selected Participant in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any shares held on trust for the Group or the Selected
Participant.

During the year, the Group purchased 4,454,000 (2016: Nil) of
its own shares through the Trustee from open market. The
total amount paid to acquire the shares was approximately
HK$5,843,000 (2016: Nil) and has been deducted from equity.
As at 30 June 2017, such shares were classified as treasury
shares of the Company as they were not yet vested.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

32. R EREEHE

2016 6 A308 + AR & AR D 82
BErE (TR D BT BEEAS TS
TEERDEEMEERMRBULLE T 5
B NBERSAREEEERLS R
B UHRSIABEABHESAEEERKR
E—HEE -

Bt REFENAER2EERBEAR
AEE SAEEBRAEEHEMES
ARAEENZEER - BRIFRITEUH
HIEFT - &R B E 8 B 201656
A30HRBI0FAERK

RIER D RE B EER B &S RN
B AR QR H AR EITRAN
2% MR o RBIR BT BT RER T &
BEBRZ2EENEERNDBEUARAR
AIBRFABEBRITRAN 1% BR -

SEE D REFENSERSEE ([#
ESEEDAEFGET - MRERND
REAEBTREOENBERESS
BEE - IRIEA ) EEE B TR K
M BEFEA(ZFEAD AREEEMH
MIRENAFMIZEA - LAEFEL N
REESEERE  EEZFHRORE
Petn BB ET BMRR B TR RS2 R
ERLE -

ERANEUAREREE2HEER
FEFANEAIRNDITERSEE -

FR AEBBEBITABARMSE
A H K & B 194,454,000 3% (2016 4F :
) RNEROAIZINBRLBOA
5,843,000/ 7T (2016 5 « ) - D AR
AR - 20176 A30H - IR B
RO EKEE REDEAKRATNE
TFRAD o
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32.

33.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s shares held under the
share award scheme during the year are as follows:

Purchases of shares for the share award
scheme and at 30 June 2017

32.

MRS BRI BB E RN K
M2017F6 A30H

B3 R BhET &l (&)
B SRS BIE TEE AL TRMRE
Nz BEIT :

Shares held
Number of under the share
ordinary shares

award scheme
B% 17 2€ Eh 5t &
EHTEBRAG
HK$'000
FETT

ERREE

4,454,000 5,843

During the year, the Company did not award any shares to
any eligible participant under the Share Award Scheme (2016:
Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 123 of
the financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents (i) the fair value of the
shares of the then ultimate holding company that were used
to satisfy the consideration of the Group's acquisition of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries and additional interests
in certain subsidiaries in 2014; and (ii) the waiver of amounts
due to the then ultimate holding company and a major
beneficial shareholder of the Company for the acquisition of a
subsidiary.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve represents the transfer of the profit
generated from subsidiaries incorporated in Macau from
retained profits to the legal reserve in accordance with article
377 of the Macao Commercial Code until the legal reserve
balance reaches half of the capital of the relevant subsidiaries.
The legal reserve is not distributable.

33.

FA - RNABILEARBIA RS
ERAER2EERTEMBKN (2016
FE) -

fwtE
AEERAEERIBEFE N RS
BRAZDRANYHRRE 12BENE
ARRBDE -

HEHE

HE R ()2 REIERRQRRN 2014
FRABRASERES THERRR
BRETHBAR ZBEIMER ZREN
e R BIE - (i) e U E — A
MEARENERREERATIR %
RAFEEERBRAFIA -

RGO RBER 2 NRRERE

BB AERZIREERED R LR
WARITENBEEE 2 AR EE RYH
HRME 24P ABRD RERZ MRS
ZEBRTAE-TEL - ZEBEA
NBREREETER SRS R EE
AR A B R A 8 B S 508 Ui s 8
EBFHE -

EEMRE

VA TE AR R S FE R P RE AR AR AL BV BT B 2
B8 A B R IRCORPI BDE #5377 ik A
BENBEREACHE BEELERHE
RRERSTWNBARBAN —£/IE -
EERBIADIK ©
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20176 H30H
34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH M. FEEEFERERNIERE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING M B A B
INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non- BEEAFERER 2 AEBNE QR
controlling interests are set out below: IEEFAT -
2017
2017
Percentage of equity interest held by BEBEHBEREMB AR
non-controlling interests of UMP Healthcare ((BeBBETPEEE]®
China and its subsidiaries FEERERTENRER DL
(the "UMP Healthcare China Group”) 20%
2017
2017
HK$'000
THET
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling DTS B BIRE 2 F A
interests of the UMP Healthcare China Group 4,070
Accumulated balance of non-controlling interests R ifE A BB A RBBTHEE
of the UMP Healthcare China Group at the IR S v Rt Een
reporting date 65,032
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TR RS B B B A R
information of the UMP Healthcare China Group. The E o PR EE © B AR LB EA A RIEE
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :
2017
2017
HK$'000
THET
Revenue A 15,555
Profit for the year FREF 753
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALE 754
Current assets MEBE 199,849
Non-current assets EREEE 23,631
Current liabilities RBBE (56,953)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (40)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEEMARS RS FE (7,234)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RERHARESREFE (2,698)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MERETRR S R R (51,190)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RE KR EEBYRAFE (61,122)
e BBEEERAR 227
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH M. FEEEIEREZNEEE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Mt B A Tl (&)

INTERESTS (Continued)

2016
2016 4F

Percentage of equity interest held by 238 Specialist Medical Centre
non-controlling interest of 238 Specialist Limited ([ 238 Specialist])
Medical Centre Limited (“238 Specialist”) FEREREENRER D 40%
2016
2016 4F
HK$'000
THBT
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling 7 BE ¥ 238 Specialist FE1% %
interest of 238 Specialist EERMFERFE 142
Accumulated balance of non-controlling interest of 7345 H 88 238 Specialist
238 Specialist at the reporting date FEFERRRE 2 ) BT A 8% 739
The following table illustrates the summarised financial T 5% # 511 238 Specialist 8 81 7 & ¥} #E
information of 238 Specialist. The amounts disclosed are 2o IRBEN SR M ARLBEMR A FM
before any inter-company eliminations: HER
2016
20164
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue WA 17,048
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFERZEBALBEE
for the year 355
Current assets TMENVE B 4,124
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,348
Current liabilities MEBAE (4,624)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEEMAMNIR S R R (900)
Net cash flows used in investing activities BREEBFAMNESRE TR (2,270)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEBYR D 5 (3,170)
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to develop the Group's corporate healthcare solution
and clinical healthcare businesses and to continually provide
comprehensive and integrated healthcare services for the
benefit of the patients, the Group entered into the following
transactions during the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016:

(@  On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Shanghai Eaton Consulting from GZ Ruian for
a cash consideration of RMB5.1 million (equivalent to
HK$6.2 million). Shanghai Eaton Consulting and its
subsidiaries (the “Shanghai Eaton Consulting Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of healthcare
and medical services in the PRC.

(b)  On 31 May 2016, the Group acquired the business of an
ophthalmology clinic (the "Ophthalmology Clinic
Business”) from an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HK$5.1 million.

() On 17 October 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in UMP Pudong from an independent third
party for a consideration of RMB8.3 million (equivalent
to HK$9.5 million). UMP Pudong is primarily engaged in
the provision of medical services in Shanghai, the PRC.

(d) On 23 March 2017, the Group completed the UMP
Phoenix Healthcare Subscription. Immediately after the
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Subscription, the Group’s
equity interest in the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group
increased from 50% to 70% and the UMP Phoenix
Healthcare Group became subsidiaries of the Group
thereafter.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

35. ¥%50f
AERASENDEERREBATR
MEAREEREERVEE HBERE
BAERTEBEERERE  AEENE
2017 F KR 2016F 6 A30H LFERS
MRS :

(@) 20154108308 » REBE AR
SREARES1BETEERS.2
BEEL) MEMNRLUE g8
%1%1}&“ EEIRHE o EIBRER
A RERB AR ([ EERER
fEEAsEE]) EZRP R ERM
RiEREERS -

(b) HM2016F5A31H REE IR
SRESIEEBTABILE=FH
WEERB 2 =B (BRI 2%
%) e

(© M2016F10817 8 KEER —
B = R EeE B 2R
E REAARESIFETL(HEE
REOSEEBIL) - LEBREEXE
R BN EREEBERY

(d  HM2017F3A238 © A& B %K
UMP Phoenix Healthcare ;28& £ I8 -
22 BE UMP Phoenix Healthcare 7% B
FIA & AN £ B R UMP Phoenix
Healthcare £ B 2 % # B3 50% 3% &
70% * T UMP Phoenix Healthcare &£
BB AREBENEB AT
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of UMP
Pudong and the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group as at the
dates of business combinations were as follows:

35. ¥K& 6t
BZE2017F6HA30HLEE
REBE B E LBHERUMP
Phoenix Healthcare £ 7 a] :% 5l & & &
BEMAREBENT

Fair value
UMP Phoenix recognised
UMP Healthcare on business
Pudong Group  combinations
UMP Phoenix ES i
LEHE Healthcare 58 BRMARLEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3 THT THT T
Property, plant and equipment b E = 12 235 51 746
Trade receivables B S EWFIR 18 - 18
Deposits and other receivables RESREMEKZIE 78 210 288
Due from the Group EU AR E B IE 1,403 - 1,403
Due from related companies of the Group  JEIAE B HE A 7] 208 - 9,600 9,600
Cash and bank balances Be LT 110 129,267 129,377
Trade payables BHEFE - (114) (114)
Other payables and accruals HENRERERER (386) (488) (874)
Due to the Group ERAKER (572) (46,217) (46,789)
Due to a related company of the Group ~ [ERt AEE—EEH A AN
I - (1) (1
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A7 BEVIRO A HBIEE
HERE 886 92,768 93,654
Non-controlling interest RS - (27,830) (27,830)
886 64,938 65,824
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEnEE 13 8,602 - 8,602
Gain on bargain purchase recognised NERBRRAEMBKAR
in other income and gains in the Wb RN E BN RS
consolidated statement of profit
or loss 5 - (401) (401)
Total consideration BRE 9,488 64,537 74,025
Satisfied by: U TFI&EIEER -
Cash Be 9,488 36,306 45,794
50% equity interest in the UMP FAUMP Phoenix Healthcare
Phoenix Healthcare Group EBR)50% Mg - 28,231 28,231
9,488 64,537 74,025

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the dates of business combinations amounted to
HK$18,000 and HK$83,000, respectively. The gross contractual
amounts of trade receivables and other receivables were
HK$18,000 and HK$83,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$257,000 for these
business combinations. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in other expenses, net in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

B 5 REER R At EBGRIER XA
Bf B B 2 St B{E 2 Bl & 18,0008 7T I
83,000/ 7T ° B 5 & Y 5K IR K L Atb g Uk
HIAR G DR E D 5 5 18,00078 7T &
83,0008 7T °

AEEREEXRBAFELERZHA
257,000/ 7T ° WFERXHRAD X HI AT
AFRBRRNWEMFESIFE
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017 (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of UMP Pudong because
the consideration paid for the acquisition effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies
from combining operations of UMP Pudong and the Group.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The gain on bargain purchase of HK$401,000 arising from the
business combination of the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group
was primarily attributable to the consideration for the UMP
Phoenix Healthcare Subscription of RMB32.3 million
(equivalent to HK$36.3 million) being less than the fair value
of equity interest of the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group
subscribed.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combinations of
UMP Pudong and the UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group is as
follows:

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

35. ¥ 586t

BE2017F6A30BLLEE (%)
Wi e EEEEEARRKES
HASXNREERBESHLEHER
ANEE B E 2 (a0 R BB R W s 18 B
TR - BBRTETSHEED RAER -
RRAABENHEAZRNELEEMNER
B BmEEREEERENR
)Eﬁo

UMP Phoenix Healthcare £ B ¥ 7 & 6
B AR B BB U2 401,000 8 T = B 2Rk
BH UMP Phoenix Healthcare 72 88 £ 18 X
BARKRIEETHEERIEES
7C) B TR UMP Phoenix Healthcare &
EfxEs AAEE -

|+ /5 8% B K UMP Phoenix Healthcare &
ERNEBEHSIENBESRESTHOT ¢

HK$'000
TAT

Cash consideration "eRE (45,794)
Cash and bank balances acquired Frigig s & KR T 4 129,377
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included s AREEBAELRSRENRE R

in cash flows from investing activities ReEBYMRAFE 83,583

Since the combinations, the contributions to the Group's
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June

2017 were as follows:

BOHE HAKEHEE2017F6A308
IR 2 Wt e 2 BRI

Revenue Profit/(loss)
W FE(EE)
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THExT FETT
UMP Pudong e 7,476 2,613
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group UMP Phoenix Healthcare £ - (2,793)
7,476 (180)
BABBEELRAT 231
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35. ¥ &6t
Year ended 30 June 2017 (Continued) BZE2017F6A30HLFE (&)
Had the combinations of UMP Pudong and the UMP Phoenix fH B F 5 B 2 XUMP Phoenix
Healthcare Group taken place at the beginning of the year Healthcare & B K & f R £ 2017 5F 6
ended 30 June 2017, the revenue of the Group and the profit BB ILFEFYHET AEEBEHZE
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017 would have 2017 £ 6 A30 B IEFE 2 Yaas Fos F &
been HK$520,253,000 and HK$61,337,000, respectively. 2 Bl 520,253,000 7T & 61,337,000 3%

T o

Year ended 30 June 2016 BZ2016F6A30HLLFE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the FERRREZAEENBRIZMER
Shanghai Eaton Consulting Group and the Ophthalmology RWEBEZ A HAMNEERBENAR
Clinic Business as at the dates of acquisitions were as follows: BEWT :

Shanghai
Eaton Fair value

Consulting  Ophthalmology recognised

Group  Clinic Business  on acquisitions

BR BRI WERR

REFASE %% AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERSZ 12 3793 114 3,907
Other intangible asset EEREE 14 - 333 333
Inventories FE 176 - 176
Trade receivables 2 SEWIE 865 - 865
Prepayments, deposits and other BAE  RESRAM
receivables YRR 12,161 - 12,161
Cash and bank balances Be kBT 6,712 - 6,712
Trade payables BHEMNTIE (945) - (945)
Other payables and accruals EthENFIERERER (8,748) - (8,748)
Tax payable FEfHIE 412) - @12
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHERE 28 - (55) (59)
Total identifiable net assets BOREEFNEZ
at fair value AHAEEFERT 13,602 392 13,994
Non-controlling interests RS (3,895) - (3,895)
Goodwill on acquisition WEmE 13 - 4,669 4,669
Gain on bargain purchase recognised R BRRERALM
in other income and gains in WA R0 EREE
the consolidated statement Yz
of profit or loss 5 (3,499) - (3499
Satisfied by cash AR EEN 6,208 5,061 11,269
232 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the dates of acquisitions amounted to HK$865,000 and
HK$10,571,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were HK$865,000
and HK$10,571,000, respectively.

No transaction cost was incurred for these acquisitions.

The gain on bargain purchase of HK$3,499,000 arising from
the acquisition of the Shanghai Eaton Consulting Group was
primarily attributable to the improved operating performance
of the Shanghai Eaton Consulting Group during the period
from conclusion of the equity transfer agreement to the date
of the acquisition.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Ophthalmology Clinic
Business because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of
expected synergies from combining operations of the
Ophthalmology Clinic Business and the Group. These
benefits were not recognised separately from goodwill
because they did not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised was expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of
the Shanghai Eaton Consulting Group and the Ophthalmology
Clinic Business was as follows:

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

35. ¥ 586t

BZE2016F6 308 ILLFE (4)
RUEE B ER - E 5 MW GRTE & H i Uk
FIBH) A A B E 5 R & 865,000 7T &
10,571,000 7T - B 5 FE U I8 K E A
FEW IR R & #) B EE 7 R 4 865,000 4 7T
110,571,000 7T °

HZEWELREERZEA -

KEWE LERRREZASENRE
W BB W 55 3,499,000 B T E BB AR L&
RRRRIE AR BN AT LS R &
ZWE A MPRNEERRNE -

BERM2MEBELTAENREER
WEXNHOREBERER THEXES
DR T P 5 75 BN 5 B R 5 0 TR HR 16
(7] R 2 3 s AR R O SRR » th 2z A
SHFESRABER  DAENEERET
& BB E L & ERNRERITE - i E
EERHEEHRENHR A -

WiE LR RREEAEERBRZ M
EHMBROMAT

HK$'000
THT

Cash consideration WERE (11,269)
Cash and bank balances acquired RS RRITAEH 6,712
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ARG ESRESRENRE
included in cash flows used in investing activities ~ MIR&EBYR L F58 (4,557)
BAEBEEARAT 233
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)
Since the acquisitions, the contributions to the Group’s
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June
2016 were as follows:

35. ¥ &6t
BZE2016F6 30 ILFE (&)
B % HWAEBEHEE2016F6 A
0B IEEZ WA RESFETEET -

Profit
5
HK$'000
T

Revenue

LN

HK$'000
THT

Shanghai Eaton Consulting Group LPERRREERNEE 20,266 1,573
Ophthalmology Clinic Business RELZ FT % 194 4
20,460 1,577

Had the combinations of the Shanghai Eaton Consulting
Group and the Ophthalmology Clinic Business taken place
at the beginning of the year ended 30 June 2016, the
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2016 would have been HK$471,649,000
and HK$10,726,000, respectively.

BAHLERERBEZAEBRREZ
PR ENEBE 20166 A308 IH4F
EBZE - BIEZE201656A30H IE4F
B AEBBARAEEFRFBES
Rl A471,649,00078 7T % 10,726,000/ 7T °

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

234



Notes to the Financial Statements

A %580 RO i

30 June 2017
2017465308
36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMEATR

On 23 March 2017, the Group disposed of its 100% equity M2017F3 4238 - AEEHRIRRE
interest in the UMP Management Ill Group to HAML and EHARE2IEETLRILBEEETL(A
assigned the shareholder’s loan to HAML for a consideration HARE 28,471,000/ 7T) » MBEAE
of in the sum of RMB22.3 million and HK$3.4 million EEHEMABKERE=-"SCEE 230

(equivalent to HK$28,471,000, in aggregate). R AEEEEEIBEERRER -

2017

2017 &

Notes HK$'000

B =E FTET

Net assets disposed of: FrHE&EEFE :

Property, plant and equipment ME - R MG 12 5,315

Deferred tax assets FEERIEE = 28 10

Inventories 5E 109

Trade receivables B 5 EWFIR 117

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JENFIE - RiEe &

H fth FEUFRIE 2,091

Due from the Group PR AR S BIFRIE 257

Cash and bank balances e RRTTHEH 1,029

Trade payables B IR (23)

Other payables and accruals HEmEMRIENTERER (3,003)

Due to the Group R AREEFRIA (590)

Due to a joint venture of the Group ENAEE-—HKEERF

RIE (653)

Tax payable JERTHIE (18)

Provision BiE 29 (163)

4,478
Exchange fluctuation reserve SN 8% Eh 4 596
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEA R 23,397
28,471

Satisfied by: BT -

Cash e 28,471
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEBMAERKERBF -"E£BMNIRES NI
respect of the disposal of the UMP Management Ill Group is SEBMRNFEINTAT -
as follows:

HK$'000
TR

Cash consideration BeRE 28,471
Cash and bank balances disposed of &R & RIRIT4 R (1,029)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included s AREEBAELRSRENRE R

in cash flows from investing activities R EBYRAFHE 27,442

BaBmEEEaRAT
“E-LFER
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37.

38.

39.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY NON-
CONTROLLING INTEREST

On 23 March 2017, Dynamic Ally completed the UMP
Healthcare China Subscription for a consideration of RMB110
million (equivalent to HK$123,526,000). Immediately after the
UMP Healthcare China Subscription, the UMP Healthcare
China Group is owned as to 80% by the Group and 20% by
Dynamic Ally. The carrying value of the 20% interest in the net
assets of the UMP Healthcare China Group as at the date of
the UMP Healthcare China Subscription was HK$33,182,000.
Accordingly, the difference of HK$90,344,000 was recognised
in retained profits. The proportionate share of the cumulative
amounts of legal reserve and exchange fluctuation reserve of
the UMP Healthcare China Group recognised in other
comprehensive income is reattributed to the non-controlling
interests.

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS
IN SUBSIDIARIES

In addition to the 70% equity interests in Beijing Eaton Clinic
and Shanghai Eaton Clinic acquired through the acquisition
of Shanghai Eaton Consulting as detailed in note 35 to the
financial statements, on 1 January 2016, the Group acquired
the remaining 30% equity interests in Beijing Eaton Clinic and
Shanghai Eaton Clinic from an independent third party for a
cash consideration of RMB3.2 million (equivalent to HK$3.8
million). The consideration was determined with reference to
the net asset values of Beijing Eaton Clinic and Shanghai
Eaton Clinic as at 1 January 2016.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the prior year, the Group entered into tenancy
agreements in respect of certain of its medical centres and
office premises under operating leases. Pursuant to the terms
of respective tenancy agreements entered into by the Group,
the Group is required to restore the leased properties to the
conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements.
Accordingly, a provision for reinstatement costs in respect of
the leased properties of the Group amounting to HK$346,000
was recognised and these costs were included as part of the
cost of the property, plant and equipment of the Group and
reflected as additions to leasehold improvements of the
Group during the prior year.

37.

38.

39.

FERERLSE

7201743 A23 8 * Dynamic Ally A
X B A R #110,000,0007C( 1§ & 7
123,526,000 7 7T.) 72 PX i & B8 %5 7 B 3R
BEE - ZREBACBHETBEREEE
B BMEBBEPREEHAER R
Dynamic Ally 73 5l # 4 80% K 20% # % °
RBEBEBTEABEFEES BeE
BhEEEEEFEZ 20%EH 2 RE
/33,182,000 T At - ERETF

) B8 7 78 2 #H 90,344,000 7T o R H A

2 EURA T ATHERE S B %5 BUAE &

ﬁﬁili)‘?ﬁ)?@bﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁA%EZﬁTE%ﬂ
 EATRIE T IR AR

W 55 B R BEL S 5

BTEBKE LSRR RRZRKEIL

BRI B R LB RIS A 70% Ik
E (ANBA TS SRR P SE 35 P4t ) - 702016 5F
TATE  ARER—2BILE=TWE
IERRBRPIZEH R EBRRPIZEHT
H30% R HeREBERARKE3Z2AE
T(RER3IBAEEET) - RETI2ELL
RIRRPIZE K LB IRPIZ #2016
F1ATHNEEFEERE

FaN=) iﬂél}lbiﬁpﬂ-ﬂ

FEFBRERS
%Lfﬁﬁ REEGEGEHEETH
BETEBHORRATYHEETLEL - 1R
BAREBEMT SHEONIER  AEBA
%ﬁh%%ﬁ@im%%ﬁmm#% &
CRAEEREYESREAIEND
ﬁ:%ﬁ%%&m%n ﬁ&:%%&ﬁ
BAEEME « BB KRR AN —3B5
Wk AR AEENTEE Y EEEIEN -
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties, medical
centres and office equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 9 years (2016: 1 to 6 years). Certain leases
are terminable with notice periods of 2 to 3 months (2016: 2
to 3 months) given by the Group.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

40. REHEERE
AR BRI @S E YRS T
D% - BHHLRBARE  WER
EFHRERR/IEIF(2016F 1 156
) EFRETMAREE T 2531
A (20165 : 2E 318 A) dOBMMAKLE -

R2017F 6 A308 » REBIRER T
BHZ BN T RS EHERMSAR
REEAEFTBLEANT

2017 2016

2017 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT THETT

Within one year —F R 30,430 34,748
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZhF(DEEEME) 13,900 62,890
44,330 97,638

41. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 40 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

41. EiE
B bR EA0 R B a0 AT SR E AR
oh o RIBE IR - AEEMEAEKEDN
—|T :

2017
2017 &

2016
20164
HK$'000
F&7T

HK$'000
FB

Contracted, but not provided for: DETAVB AR B

Leasehold improvements HEMEEE 443 2,065
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment {R{E « B E R A ERE 25 -
Medical equipment BERE 116 5,782
Computer equipment and software B SR B RET 59 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 46(a)) Weig — I A 7 (M 46(a)) 50,985 -

Capital contribution payable to Eft&ERBHEE
joint ventures - 30,060
51,628 37,907

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ own
capital commitments, which are not included in the above, is
as follows:

ERIMERER

Contracted, but not provided for

o REBEEEEERARBFHNER
AR (EARFIALER) AT

2017
2017 &

2016
20164
HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&xT T

- 20,884

BABBEEERAR
“E-LFER
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2017F6H30H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

42. BB R 5
(a) BUFBHREEMMTFFERYR
5 RUEREHIN  RER - AE
B SR T T E AR BN -

2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 £

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT

Associates: BENT
Administrative support fee THZFHERARA
income

Professional services expense B E RIS E A
Healthcare services income BEREARISMA

Joint ventures: S5ERQNT
Administrative support fee THEZFERIRA
income
Management fee income EEBERWA
Professional services expense HERIEER
Related companies™: BEEE AT :
Property rental and related MEHRERBBER
expenses
Contract healthcare solution A4 BEREEFR AR
services income AR FS U A
Management fee income EEERIA
Administrative support fee TR FERKRA
income

Professional services expense EHERIEE A

704 511
4,562 6,146
153 324
258 2,968
518 -
1,538 1,466
5,724 5,141
11,878 11,038
2,673 993
25 -
850 487

Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the Company
are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of these related
companies.

(i) The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

(ii) The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by associates and joint ventures and was
charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

(iii) The healthcare services income was related to medical services
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

(iv) The property rental and related expenses were related to the
leasing of certain medical centres or premises for the Group's
operation and were charged at terms stipulated in the respective
tenancy agreements.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ARRETEER IBESRRTH
FEWHARNEER, REHRR o

T BB A RARER AN
AR %5 45 12 S 45 AR A AR B 30 A B4R
BT E A E R IR E -

BERBEMDBERTREERT
AAEBIRENRERTY - RAES
B T B RFRIEE

BREAERBBAZAEERENE
B AR AR AFERE 0 AR B A E RO 1
R E -

MERERAREREAEES TEY
TORAEENLLESHEH TR
PARREARAIPTRT AR IRTUR E -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 42, BEE HF R F (&)
(@) (Continued) (a) (&)

Notes: (Continued) faE - (&)

(v) Contract healthcare solution services income was related to the v) AU BERERRTEZREUA LG
provision of healthcare services to the employees of related BAEE N RV (B BRI BB (R EIRTS
companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed between BB RIE MR M E 4 TE IR
the relevant parties. o

(vi) The management fee income was related to the administrative (vi) IR AR A EAREBIRENITER R
and management services rendered by the Group and was EIRRIEABRA N AR IR A B RIS R AT
charged at terms stipulated in the respective service MEBERUWE -
agreements.

(vi)  The professional services expense was related to healthcare (i) EHEREEHHABMBAIIRENER
services rendered by the related companies and was charged at RIZARISHERE - WRBABE S HEEL
terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties. ERMERIRE -

(b) Other transactions with related parties (b) HiBEEAIRS

Professional services fees paid to an executive director MAERNEBRIRREERERGEN T

of the Company in relation to the rendering of AR —BPTEENEERGE

healthcare services to the Group are as follows: T

2017 2016
2017 % 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael R EREE A 2,671 3,196
(c) Compensation of key management personnel () XEBXTEEEAS ZHM :

of the Group:

2017 2016
2017 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Short term employee benefits FEEE B BN 10,069 8,838
Post-employment benefits BB 1R B A 94 289
Equity-settled share option expense IAfEZS4EE 7 B IRRERI L 7,151 6,603
Total compensation paid to key ERNEEEIEAB ZRNEZE
management personnel 17,314 15,730
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in R EE WM — P FHBENY
note 7 to the financial statements. KM
HABBEEERAT 239
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2017

Financial assets

43. SRITESE
RBEMFR - SELRIANEETESR

FEAT

2017 &
ERMEE

Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss — held maturity  Loans and financial
for trading investments  receivables assets
BRARERE
AABHEN
CREE — BEZE EXR AtHE
HIFEE HBRE EW R tRER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THT TR THT
Held-to-maturity investments ~ #5 Z5|#&& - 61,022 = = 61,022
Available-for-sale investments  AJ {1 EH & - - - 9,425 9,425
Trade receivables Z SN - - 56,791 - 56,791
Financial assets included in SAENTIE  REE R
prepayments, deposits HibRUCGRIER
and other receivables PREE = - 12,990 = 12,990
Financial assets at fairvalue AR BB ABE
through profit or loss NeMEE 2,356 - - - 2,356
Due from associates R & AR FIE - - 6,193 - 6,193
Due from related companies ~ JEULEEHE 1 B 708 - - 5,284 - 5,284
Pledged deposits BERER = - 821 - 821
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEED - - 434,073 - 434,073
2,356 61,022 516,152 9,425 588,955
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. €I E9 8@
(Continued)
2017 (Continued) 2017 £ (&)
Financial liabilities cEAas

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

bi7g: 5
RAGTER
CA L A=R
HK$'000
FHT
Trade payables Z SN FUE 53,747
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAEMEMKE  BIREBA K
accruals and deferred income BREWARNESHEE 24,745
Due to associates AR NEIE S| 213
Due to related companies FEST RS A B 5KIE 423
79,128
2016 20164
Financial assets TREE

Financial

assets at

fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss — held maturity Loans and financial
fortrading  investments  receivables assets

SREE— HEE g7k AftheE
HEEER A FEWRIE TREE Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT THT THT THL
Held-to-maturity investments 58 ZZ|HRE - 56,728 - - 56,728
Available-for-sale investments  A[{EHERE - - - 9,007 9,007
Trade receivables 2 S EWEE - - 47 450 - 47 450
Financial assets included in SABNRE  RESR
prepayments, deposits RE MR FIER
and other receivables TREE - - 13,679 - 13,679
Financial assets at fairvalue KRR EEFA
through profit or loss BENEREE 2,026 - - - 2,026
Due from associates [ yNTF - - 593 - 593
Pledged deposits BERER - - 783 - 783
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESZEY - - 261,299 - 261,299
2,026 56,728 323,804 9,007 391,565
BEBEEEFRAA 241
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43.

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
2016 (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables,
accruals and deferred income

Due to associates

B RN F0R
FEAEMEMNFR - BIREAR
BELEWANETREE

FEfTE 2 R BIF0R

43. EMIE9E »)

2016 (&)
TRAMS

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BN

st
SHEE
HK$'000
Fit

47,291

22,076
266

69,633

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44. BT HZAABERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, accruals and deferred income, balances with
associates and related companies approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities/no
fixed terms of repayment of these instruments or the effect of
discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are
based on quoted market prices.

EEF

REEEFE ReMRSFEY - K&
HEX BEZRWHIA - E5EMNK
- FEATRM R - REE R E AR
RENTREE  sTARMEBNFOR -
BREAMEERANSRAE HEi
ERRMMEBARNEHRN AN EER
FEERS  TRERFTAZIHE
R, ZETAREEEEARKIEA
MRTEWTERK -

EREELRABNANEEREBRRS
77 (MIFRAHBERIFEE) RERIR ST
R TEANSBEALR -

EBREMEFRENATEEBERA
RMZHREET -
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44 €@ T EZAAEBERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EESSIED)

Fair value hierarchy NABEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TR AXEESBRTANRARBEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: 2ER

Assets measured at fair value: BARBESEBNHEE

As at 30 June 2017 R2017$ 6 A30H

Fair value measurement using

AREEFERANEE

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
SER™ 5 BX BX
BE AHEIE TUTEERE
(B—#) (B=#) (B=&) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT THET

Available-for-sale investments: A[{tHERE :

Debt investments ERKEE = 5,915 = 5,915
Equity investments at fair value & AR BEA
through profit or loss BRNRERE 2,356 = = 2,356
2,356 5,915 - 8,271
BMABKEEFRAR 243
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44 €@ TEZAAEBERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEEHK @
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RABEZEHR(E)
As at 30 June 2016 R2016F6 A30H

Fair value measurement using
DR EEFERANEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R T 5 EDN EX
WE AEBRZREE TUERHE
(BF—H) (=) (B=%) HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FHET FHT

Available-for-sale investments: A[{tHERA -

Debt investments BBERE - 5,497 - 5,497
Equity investments at fair BARBEF AR

value through profit or loss RIRR IS & 2,026 - - 2,026

2,026 5,497 - 7,523
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN eMEEFI1BEE2EAAE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BfEcHTEER  E3ETUEE
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2016: Nil). ASKEH (20164 © &) -
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at MR2017F6A308 » AEEBEUAR
fair value as at 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil). BEFENTISRAEQ0165F - &) -
244 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

A %580 RO i

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

With respect to listed equity and debt investments, the Group
purchases and holds only through various creditworthy
financial institutions.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, unlisted available-for-sale investments,
and amounts due from associates and related companies,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 20% (2016: 19%) and 54%
(2016: 48%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from
the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 20 to the financial statements.

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

45. cREREEAERBER

AEENTIECRTIARERELRS
SEWMARERFER - ZFERTAN
TEAMERAKENEERTEES
AEBBZHRERHRAZEELMNEMD
TREERAE MEZFEREFELE
SRR

rEEeRMIAELANTIERARAEER
Rk kneEER EFSRMALRE
EEERZFRABNOBRLBRLAT

EERR
AEEERERUREEAIRENE=S
HEITR G o WRAKEOEK - FA #
REBEGRTRETRINEP LABBIE
EZERFR®  TAMEE - I KK
BersERsRlERnER  EmmE
HOERARIL TEK -

AEEEFBEERINMBEHERE
KFs B LR EBRE -

AEBEMEREE (BRREMREE
By BWER - EHEKFIAE  TA
BNRE - RES REMREFEN S
BMEE HARNEBEAABRENERE
E-FEHAHELERE  BEBEQ
AIREEBARMFIR) MEERRREARS
BFHEOMES  &SRRBENRZ
STAMNKEEE - FEERRETE R
BEFE/HFRER -

RIBEHR  REBAES T EEED
E - AASEEONE SREKHES o
B B 20% (201645 : 19%) K 54% (2016
F o 48%) B AEBERAEFEARAKR
B AUER

AEBEELBE HREFENEERR
WO H)E — S E(CBIB R BER MR
BEEE20 ©
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. cREAKREEEERBE @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk R ED 1% LB
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash AEFEEENAREEERERZ MR
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management S NIReEBY UWBEAXEEMNEE
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of REES T ERESRERIOTE -
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors ERErFHEMNMNEEAREENEEER
the Group's working capital requirements regularly. BEL -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the RIMER  REBIZRAHREIBNAR
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BEENemeENEERESNT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

No fixed
terms of
repayment/ Less than
on demand 3 months
EEE
EEAR,
BREREER PR3{EA &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET THET TET
Trade payables B S ENFIE 375 53,372 53,747
Financial liabilities included in sFAE MR FRIE
other payables, accruals and TaR B A KIRE WS
deferred income HNemasE = 24,745 24,745
Due to associates R NCIE ] 213 - 213
Due to related companies AL NGIE e 423 - 423
1,011 78,117 79,128
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. S RiEREBEBERBE @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TRED MR ()

No fixed terms

of repayment/ Less than

on demand 3 months Total
EEEEERR

SIRENR(ER LR 3MEA X1l

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TFET FET

Trade payables B S ENMNIE 1,023 46,268 47,291
Financial liabilities included st AE M FOE
in other payables, accruals TEIRE B MBS

and deferred income NemBE - 22,076 22,076

Due to associates ST BS: 2 2 B FRIB 266 - 266
1,289 68,344 69,633
Capital management EXER
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management AEBEERERNEERARARERE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going ERFELEMENTHEFERNERNL
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to o UAXFHHEBRARREERAE
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. (=K
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBRBEBERRECRABEED
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions FERREEE R R ABREEARERE - B
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To P ABREREE AEEeHRBRMN
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust TRENRE  REES TRENET
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to AR o AN B A AR SN ED b AN &Y
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to BRERGR - RBIE2017F6 308
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes K2016F6 A30B L E - EAEER
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 2 BORSIR I R FE -
managing capital during the years ended 30 June 2017 and
30 June 2016.
The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to REBONEREBARAIEE AL
owners of the Company. o
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2017 F 6 H30H

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following significant events occurred after

the end of the reporting period:

(a)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group entered
into a provisional agreement for sale and purchase with
an independent third party to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Excellent City Limited, which is engaged
in property investment in Hong Kong for a cash
consideration of HK$56,650,000, out of which, deposits
of HK$5,665,000 were paid by the Group during the
year.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 10
August 2017, the above transaction was completed and
the outstanding consideration of HK$50,985,000 was
fully settled.

On 23 September 2017, the Group entered into a
provisional agreement for sale and purchase with the
same independent third party to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Way Spread Limited, which is
engaged in property investment in Hong Kong, for a
cash consideration of HK$57,165,000. The transaction is
expected to complete on or before 10 January 2018.

46. REHHEBHF
RBEMRsRYE  AEEHETIE
REH

(a)

REE2017F6A308 IF F & -
AEBHE-ZBIEZ LR
KREEMZUAKRBREENREY
¥ % & ZExcellent City Limited
2EHEBTRA BeRE
556,650,000 T H ] &
56650008 TE HAEBERFR
S A e

WEHAMARE - R20179F 8810
B X BE7%A " A HRE
50,985,000 78 7T & R EUE T -

R20177F9 823 KEBEHRF
—BBUE =RV EREE B
LA¥R 38 4 K {8 57,165,000 7 7T J B8
REBREYEKE ZWay
Spread Limited 2 & &B B # 17 ¥
7K o FBEIRZ R 5185 201841 A 10
Hek 2 BITERX °
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017
2017 &

HK$'000
TR

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

47. 1R B B AR R &

BERRBAARBFBMRRKRFFN

2016
20164

HK$'000

TET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR E = -
Held-to-maturity investments RHEZIHKRE 46,017 26,721
Available-for-sale investments ]t ERE 5,915 5,497
Total non-current assets IEmBEELTE 51,932 32,218
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE K Bt R MR IE 915 630
Held-to-maturity investments RHEZIHKRE 15,005 30,007
Due from subsidiaries A EEPNGIE S 187,948 147,789
Due from a joint venture e —Ea & A RIKIE = 93
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIREEED 132,645 170,415
Total current assets TmEVEEMERE 336,513 348,934
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBBE
Accruals and other payable TEIRE R R E A FETFRIE 1,044 824
Due to subsidiaries EANLRIENGIE¢E 4,045 3,426
Tax payable FERTRIE 734 -
Total current liabilities B BEERE 5,823 4,250
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEVEEFE 330,690 344,684
Net assets BEFRE 382,622 376,902
EQUITY i
Issued capital BEITRA 737 736
Reserves (note) it (E) 381,885 376,166
Total equity RS 382,622 376,902
BEBBEBRERAR 249
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A %5 80 R B o

30 June 2017
2017F6H30H

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. KR BB BRRET (@)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RNATHABBENT -
Shares Available-
held under for-sale Retained
Share the share  Share-based investment profits/
premium award payment revaluation  (accumulated
account scheme reserve reserve losses) Total
RAREE URGHRER FAHHEERE BFE/
RREE BETEZRA PACE N1 ] Efif#E (R&tiER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTET FTER FTET FTET FTET
(note 32) (note 33)
(B E32) (FfH#E33)
At 1 July 2015 #R2015%7A18 - - - - (966) (966)
Profit and total comprehensive ERFERZERA
income for the year pekc] - - - - 46,357 46,357
Final 2015 dividend 2015 F REMK 2 - - - - (30,000) (30,000)
Capitalisation issue of FHEROERNMET
shares upon listing (544) - - - - (544)
Issue of shares upon listing EERGET 378,856 - - - - 378,856
Share issue expenses R {7 B TR (25,083) - - - - (25,083)
Equity-settled share option DA ER A E 2 BB
arrangements T8 - - 7,546 - - 7,546
At 30 June 2016 and M2016F 6 A308 &
at 1 July 2016 2016F7A1H 353,229 - 7,546 - 15,391 376,166
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - 19,589 19,589

Other comprehensive income FREMZEBA

for the year:

Changes in fair value of AHNERENDNEE
available-for-sale investments &5 - - - 418 - 418
Total comprehensive income FRZENALR
for the year - - - 418 19,589 20,007
Final 2016 dividend 2016 FRER 2 - - - - (14,676) (14,676)
Interim 2017 dividend 2017 FFHIRE - - - - (3,658) (3,658)
Issue of shares upon exercise TR IER BT D
of share options 2,331 - (508) - - 1,823
Purchases of shares for the BEARID B =T &8 B AR (D
share award scheme - (5,843) - - - (5,843)
Equity-settled share option DR EE 2 ERE
arrangements ZH - - 8,066 - - 8,066
At 30 June 2017 M2017F6A30H 355,560 (5,843) 15,104 418 16,646 381,885
48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 48. H#itEMBAR R K
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for BB mERN2017F9R 260 EEE=TI
issue by the board of directors on 26 September 2017. NIRRT o
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Financial Summary

MGE=R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- ARNEBERBEREVBREENEEREE 8
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as  ERIFIERERME (kA C A HEEZ
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set  EIRKR) SHIWOT -

out below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
mEXE

Year ended 30 June
BZ6A30RHILLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

2017 & 20164 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

FET TFET FET TET FETT
Revenue WA 514,023 456,020 401,037 353,025 316,291
Profit before tax B 25 A1 A R 57,094 14,254 47,780 49,199 40,905
Income tax expense FriS®is Xz (8,850) (7,372 (6,920) (6,653) (5,894)
Profit for the year FRFE 48,244 6,882 40,860 42,546 35,011
Attributable to: AT &7 G
Owners of the Company KAREER A 44,085 6,676 41,392 41,537 33,601
Non-controlling interests FEPRRR 4,159 206 (532) 1,009 1,410

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE

As at 30 June
M6H30H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

2017 &£ 20164 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

TET FABT FAT T FATT
Total assets BEMAE 698,439 509,638 249,645 231,591 192,853
Total liabilities BEEE 102,825 99,040 183,454 82,038 77,313
595,614 410,598 66,191 149,553 115,540

Equity attributable to: A& B -
Owners of the Company KNATIHER A 532,619 412,103 67,711 148,536 112,514
Non-controlling interests IR 62,995 (1,505) (1,520) 1,017 3,026

595,614 410,598 66,191 149,553 115,540

BARBREERAT
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= =

B 5

“2017 AGM” the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30
November 2017

[2017 F IR FRIBFAE | ARRAFR2017F11 A0 B (EHM) BTHRRBFAE

“2H2018" second half of 2018

[2018 5 N4 | 2018 F 44

" Affiliated Clinic(s)"”

[t 52 Ffr )

" Affiliated Doctor”,
" Affiliated Dentist”,
" Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers”

(B4 - [HE T 8
[ Bgh o8 4 BY AR TS B2 AR |

"Announcement”

“Articles” or "Articles of Association”

(AR s [~ RIARR

“ Audit Committee”
2w 3=

"Auxiliary Services”

[ %5 Bh AR 75

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or
will enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical
Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members
WIHFBHAEELEBENGEFEERNRE I HENZAT - B R8I
BIRHBERE - FRRE R SKEH BRI

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/Auxiliary Services Provider(s) who has/have entered or
will enter into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to
Plan Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement,
has/have received or will receive an amount from the Group based on the
volume of Plan Members treated
EEEESEARET IR RURE TR ENELE T
RISIRMEE - BRIBZ RGN KRECHABREZOFEKEHBB AL
& W B kIR

the announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2016 in relation
to, among other things, the disposal of UMP Management and UMP
Management Il to HAML, the subscription of new shares in UMP
Healthcare China by NWS Subsidiary and the subscription of new shares in
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) by UMP Healthcare China
ARBRAHB2016F12A158NAE  NEER (AT RE) AEREE
EENEHABKEERMABKERF = MAZNBRRRERS S
T B B9 ¥ AR DA e Bt 5 B8 75 o B SR B B & B8 15 (AL 30 BT AR A

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company currently
in force

B AT AR AR RIEET MBS 2 RARRY

the audit committee of the Board

ExgEnLBe

includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional
Chinese medicine, vision care and optometry and child health assessment
BRBEZEMMEBRE WIRAE  PE  BRHEELBRAARRER
BRI RATA
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LGk

“Auxiliary Services Provider” auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the
Group as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical
Centres in accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the
Group, and the Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers

[ B AR TR ERIBERIAEEZRESBERNGHRERERE  RIFEAEERS
) BB ] 155 2 O 1R RAE UMIP B 75 o /D SR (R B B AR 755+ DA N Bk B 5 B R 15 42
&

"BBS” Bronze Bauhinia Star

[EFEE HRFEE

“Board” the board of Directors

[EEg Exg

"Circular” the circular of the Company dated 8 February 2017 in relation to, among

other things, the disposal of UMP Management and UMP Management |lI
to HAML, the subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare China by NWS
Subsidiary and the subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
by UMP Healthcare China

(58K ARBAHB2017F2A8H BN AR BB (AT EE) NEREER
BHEMSBEHRERMNBHEBBERE=  MEAEWMBRARRBHSBES
Fh B B R RS0 DA e Bt S B8 15 o B R B B & B8 1 (4B ) BT AR {n)

"

“Corporate Governance Code the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules
[exERTAl ErRBIM S A AR E AT
"Chairman” the chairman of the Board
[E/%] BEEgXR
"Chief Executive Officer” the chief executive officer of the Company
[TBAE ZA/NCIESTIE €t
"Code of Conduct for the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees adopted
Securities Transactions by the Company

by Employees”
[BEEETESFRXHH RAFFRBEEETESFR HHETER
Rsr R ]

"Company” UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014
AN Sﬁé%ﬁ%’ilﬁﬁﬁ A R2014F 11 A5 BIRIEM S BB EEEMAIIE
BRRA
BaBBEEFR AR 253
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EHE

“"Contract Customers”

“CR Phoenix”

[ B RE 8

"CR Phoenix Healthcare Group”
[EHEREREREER]
“CTFE”

[EAMREEE]

“Dental” or “Dental Services”

[ZF R 8 [ 2P RHR#

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for
Plan Members

sEt Bl B BRREENE G EAEET L EEAZNRBRAR RbE
HY e

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd.), a company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands with limited liability and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1515)

EHREBERZERERAR (ERNEBEEEERAR)  RASHSE
AL OB A AT E AR E B B R A &) (AR 5% - 1515)

CR Phoenix and its subsidiaries

EEREBERNENB AR

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability

BARBEEARAR  RIFFBEOIEMKZABER AR

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and
secondary dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics,
implants and whitening
BIRERITRIRES (A5 T R ) AR E B BHRS (1 & R T4 -
Al  EEkAExa)

“Dentists” dentist who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to
provide Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with
the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated
Dentists

[T 8] ERIBEERIXAEBZERERANTE - RIBRAEERITHRERE HE
GERER A BT ORNRET RS - AREBB TR

“Directors” directors of the Company

[E%] RRAREF

"Doctors” doctor who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to
provide Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with
the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group and the Affiliated
Doctors

(B4 ] ERIBERIXAEBZERBERNES - RIBEANEEZFTHRERE R
ERERS B O NRHEBRRE - ARBER

"FY2016" the financial year ended 30 June 2016

[2016 A ER4F X | BHE2016F6A30HIEHBEFE
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“FY2017"
[2017 IERFE |

“general practitioner”

(2R84

"Global Offering”

[2EREE]

“"Group”, "we" or “UMP”
[A&EE] - [FM]

(Bt & 8875 )

"HAML"

[BREEETE]

"Healthcare Management
Model”

BB REBEIER]

“"Healthcare Ventures”

[Healthcare Ventures |

MHK$H or HHKDH

[Tl

“"Hong Kong”
(&%)

the financial year ended 30 June 2017
HE2017F6A30RLEVBFE

Doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of
contact for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to
the appropriate specialists or services required

BEX2MIIBRNEL  REARBERHERZE - BT ANERTE
BN RBEZESENIRE

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and
outside the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on
Regulation S, the details of which are set out in the section headed
“Structure of the Global Offering” of the Prospectus
ARBAEFERARREKBESROIEXBERIINBEER ZFHEENRD - &
BERNARER [2REENRE ]| —&HP

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARRREKERF]

Healthcare Assets Management Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, which is owned as to 50% by Healthcare
Ventures and 50% by NWS Subsidiary as at 30 June 2017
BEEETEARAR  RNEBEMARZAOBRATR » K201746 A30H
5 All# Healthcare Ventures [ 3 £l & 2~ 5% B %5 50% # %

the Group's business model that is founded on the basis that general
practitioners are best suited to serve as the first point of contact for
patients given their training in family medicine
AEENEBEAZZENEIRERS)IRN2MBERES REER
HEXZE

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTFE
Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited * 1RIE 28 iR & B & A I E M AL /Y
BRAF RARFNEERREEAREBEENZENE AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REERBR TR
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HHE S

“"Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ &8 RRPIERR
BERERE]

“Hong Kong & Macau
Corporate Healthcare
Solution Services”

[BAMRMEEE
1%15;%%9%777&)%&7}%

“Joint Venture Agreement”

[& & ek

" jpr

[ R ]

“Listing Date”
[ FTEEA]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R Al

“"Macau”

[P ]

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

[88% | o [ BB AR
“Model Code”
[MEZE<F A

"NM”
[B&ETK]

" NWS "

[l

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong
and Macau

REBMORFR A 8B REERAERRERS

provision of corporate healthcare solutions services in Hong Kong and
Macau

REBRRFIRHEEBRREZERTT R

the joint venture agreement entered into between UMP Healthcare China,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Pinyu on 13 July 2015 for
the purpose of forming UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
BEBBHE(RAREZENBRR)EPinyu 201567 A13BEIHE
&tk - LAKAZ UMP Healthcare (Beijing)

Justice of the Peace

K@t

27 November 2015
2015411 A 27 H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

BEx2 g s LR Al

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
DR PIEF RIT TR

include general practice and specialist practice

BREREMEBRELRENER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
FHRBIK ST PrE EH BT AERETESF R HNRLETE

not meaningful

BETK

NWS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
659)

MEEEEBRAR  EAREEMALNBERAR - REERRAERES
(Bt 5% : 659)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Ok
“NWS Subsidiary” Dynamic Ally Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS
[FralEME A ] Dynamic Ally Limited * MEBZEMAIZOER AR - BMEENEEEE
ERpEEPNG]
“Pinyu” Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin

Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Phoenix

[Pinyul 2k [ 7244 mMARAR REXBRELHESEVZMRINEGRIF - BARRE
ERRITRERHREBRNEEZELZENBEAT

“Plan Members” members of the Group's corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically
include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of
corporations and/or their dependants

[FtEIpK & AEBEPEEFREBNFEKE  —REEEEEERREERBEAR
BENEER LHERB

"Post-IPO Share Option the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the
Scheme” Company on 2 November 2015

[BRARBEER RRTFR 20155 11 B2 BHUE KRR BR QB SR BARE S
R RERT 3

"PRC" People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong

Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

(e REARKNE (BHARSET S - TRIEEE  BRFAKSE

“PRC Corporate Healthcare development of corporate healthcare solutions and clinical healthcare
Solutions & Clinical services in the PRC

Healthcare Business ” or
"PRC Developing Business”

(BB RBEERE PEBRREERN R RERBRREREN T ENER
R TT R KR IR
BERERR X
[E R %R

"PRC Health Check-up provision of check-up services for (i) PRC residents traveling abroad for
Business” study or for work and (i) for corporate employees

[ B R i k75 RO EEIMNEBRTIENHBEER K () ¥E S R ENBRRE

"Pre-IPO Share Option the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on
Scheme” 18 August 2015

[BRAFREER EFgN 201558 A 18 B LA MR B R A& &R EE AR iERT &
Bt Sl

“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015

[ ER ] ARARIBHR2015F 11 417 BERER

1

“Remuneration Committee” the remuneration committee of the Board

[(FHZE 2] ExevHzEe
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R 5

“RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR TEIEEEWARE

“Rich Point Group”
[Rich Point £ & |

"SBS”
[REFEE

“Self-paid Patients”

[BERE]

“Shanghai Eaton Consulting”

[ LERRREER]
“Shanghai He Dun”

[ EBe3

“Share Award Scheme”
[ M B2 @ =t 21
“Share(s)"

[ &5 |

“Snow Lake Group”

[Snow Lake £E |

Rich Point and its associates
Rich Point N E & A 7]

Silver Bauhinia Star

REFEE

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pays
for services using cash or credit card
IAEERENBEBETORDALERABREHERRINRBERANE
&

PERRREBZARBERAQE], a limited liability company established in
the PRC and is an indirect subsidiary of the Company
PERRRREARBARLIA  RPBERINERAF  BARFNE
EHB AT

FBAHEBERIEAR AT, acompany established in the PRC
EEEHEERBERAR - RHPBERIHAF

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June
2016
EFEN20164F 6 A 30 A #LE IR IR BB AT 8

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company
KR AR AR =R EE 0.001 BT 2 L @A

based on the publicly available information so far, Snow Lake China Master
Long Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China
Offshore Fund, Ltd. (which holds 80.93% of Snow Lake China Master Fund,
Ltd.), Snow Lake Capital Limited (as investment manager of Snow Lake
China Master Long Fund, Ltd. and Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.)
and Snow Lake Capital (HK) Limited (as investment manager of Snow Lake
China Master Long Fund, Ltd. and Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.)
HEREBERIARASER  Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. * Snow
Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. * Snow Lake China Offshore Fund, Ltd. (5
Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.#80.93%) * Snow Lake Capital Limited
(YE& Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. & Snow Lake China Master
Fund, Ltd. Ay 3% & & ¥2 A ) & Snow Lake Capital (HK) Limited ( { 4 Snow
Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. }2 Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.
BIREEEA)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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“specialist practice” or
"specialist services”

[ERER ] 3 [ FRIRES]

"Stock Exchange”
[ B FfT

“UMP Healthcare (Beijing)” or
“UMP Phoenix Healthcare”

(EER bR K
[ UMP Phoenix Healthcare |

"UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group” or
“UMP Phoenix Healthcare Group”
(e BK () £E] 3
[UMP Phoenix Healthcare & H |

“UMP Healthcare China”

(Bt & BT E ]

"UMP Management”

the range of specialist practice offered by UMP, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine,
Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine,
Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology,
Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology
(ENT), Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology, Respiratory Medicine,
Rheumatology and Urology, an updated list of which is available on www.
ump.com.hk

BEBBRHf —FIENBEER  S8ROEE - KER - AW - BRE
RAHE  REBE - BB NITHEA - BB - AF - BRR - 19ER
SR RER S RE BRIRAIGR - EESWRRL - ZRE NEINEL
PRETRE - W AR - BUR R EOBKEL - & B #E BN www.ump.com.hk £
A ER]

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEREBMARSMARAR

UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Limited (to be renamed as “UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group Limited”
the British Virgin Islands approving the change of company name), a

, subject to the Registrar of Corporate Affairs of

company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and owned by UMP Healthcare China and Pinyu as to 70%
and 30%, respectively

UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Limited ( # 5 % % [UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group Limited| * MR RBEXAS A A B MR R R4t /#EE A Al
BEEFAMEE)  REBERBELEHSEVIZMRIZIOAR - HRlHBE 2
B R A 70% K& 30%

UMP Healthcare (Beijing) and its subsidiaries

Basgk o) REMBA

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and a 80%-owned subsidiary of
the Company

UMP Healthcare China Limited - *ETE%%%%%W%E%WIE@%@@E
RARAHEE 80% =K B LR

UMP Medical Centre Management Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HAML

BAEBKETRLEEBRAR  BESEENIMKXINAR  AEEEE
EENEENBRT

BABBEEERAT
—E—tEEH
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HHE S

"UMP Management IIl”

(B EES=]

“"UMP Medical Centre(s)”

(Bt A B

“UMP Network”

[UMP 4845 |

“"UMP Pudong”

[ i

"USs”
ES

UMP Medical Centre Management (lll) Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HAML

BAEBHBHLER(EZ)BRAR  REFEAOEMKINAR - S8
BEEEENZEMNBAR

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or
Auxiliary Services which is/are operated by the Group

RERERS - TRBER SBHREORETL - mAEELS

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and
(i) Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but each
of which has entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical
Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members

BROARELLENBABEHETORMBBLHM (LIFRAKREREEND
P MEEEAEEI B BIK SRHEBERY - TERBEE X
5 B AR %)

B EEPIZ AR AR (formerly known as HIFHRERRFIZEBAR A A
a company established in the PRC and is an indirect subsidiary of the
Company

EEmBEPIZ AR LR (AIHE LERBRPIZHEERAR)  RPBERTL
WARDR  RARANEENEAR

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America.

XBAEEBET -
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